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P R O C E E D I N G S  

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Good  morning,  everyone.  My  name 

is  Ruth  Goldway,  and I am the  chairman  of  the 

United  States  Postal  Regulatory  Commission.  And 

I'm  joined  here  today  by  Vice  Chairman  Tony 

H m o n d  on  my  right  and  Commissioner  Mark  Acton 

on  my  left.  On  behalf  of  the  commission  we 

welcome  all  of  you  here  today.  It's a pleasure 

to  be  in  Rapid  City  for  this  important  hearing 

and  for  the  postal  service  proposal  to  end 

Saturday  mail  delivery  service  nationwide. 

I'd  like  to  thank  the  Journey  Museum 

and  the  museum  staff  for  their  support  in 

enabling  the  commission  to  use  this  facility  for 

today's  hearing.  The  commission  is  pleased  to 

hold a field  hearing  in  the  city  of  presidents. 

The  presidential  statues  on  the  streets  of  Rapid 

City  and  the  nearby  facade  of  Mt.  Rushmore  are a 

lasting  testament  to  the  leadership  that  has 

guided  our  nation  since  its  birth,  but  it's  the 

people of the  city  and  across  the  country  that 

provide  the  authority  and  give  the  power  to 

those  leaders. 

Today  the  commission  has  come  to 

hear  from  the  citizens of Rapid  City  about  an 
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important  issue  facing  our  nation.  We  are  here 

to  examine a significant  proposal  to  change  the 

service  that's  now  provided  and  to  measure  the 

impact  that  that  could  have  on  local 

communities,  rural  America  and  on  the  mail 

system  itself. 

Some  of  you  here  today  may  not  be 

familiar  with  the  work  of  the  Postal  Regulatory 

Commission.  The  commission  is  the  statutory 

regulator  of  the  postal  service.  We  have  the 

responsibility  to  oversee  the  postal  service 

with  regard  to  rate  setting,  universal  service, 

service  standard  performance  and  for  the  overall 

transparency  and  accountability  of  the  postal 

service  to  the  American  people.  Day-to-day 

operational  management  of  the  postal  service  is 

the  responsibility  of  the  Postmaster  General  and 

its  management  team.  All  of  us  who  are 

commissioners  have  been  appointed  by  the 

President  and  confirmed  by  the  United  States 

Senate  for  specific  terms  of  office,  and  we  are 

a bipartisan  group. 

This  hearing  is  part  of  the  national 

public  review  begun  by  the  commission  on 

March  30th  of  this  year.  We  are  preparing a 
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recommendation  regarding  the  United  States 

Postal  Service's  proposal  to  eliminate  Saturday 

mail  delivery  service  nationwide.  The  postal 

service  is  required  to  ask  the  commission  for  an 

advisory  opinion  on  any  change  in  nationwide 

service  it  proposes.  This  is  one  of  the  most 

significant  changes  the  postal  service  has  ever 

presented  to  the  commission. 

The  postal  service  has  advised  the 

commission  that  due  to  falling  mail  volumes  and 

revenues,  it  is  considering  eliminating  Saturday 

mail  collection  and  delivery  service  except  for 

express  mail  and  post  office  box  service. 

Commission  procedures  provide  for 

public  on-the-record  hearings  to  analyze  and 

cross-examine  the  postal  service's  proposal  and 

its  supporting  evidence.  During  the  process, 

mail  users  and  interested  members  of  the  public 

may  offer  supporting  or  opposing  views,  both 

informally  and as part  of  the  more  formal 

technical  presentations. 

In  view  of  the  widespread  impact 

that  this  proposal  will  have,  it  will  affect 

literally  every  citizen  and  business  in  the 

nation.  The  commission  is  conducting  seven 
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field  hearings  in  addition  to  our  proceedings  in 

Washington,  D.C. so that  we  hear  directly  from 

the  customers,  employees  and  organizations  that 

will  be  directly  affected. 

The  elimination  of  one  mail  delivery 

day  is  not a new  concept.  It  has  been  proposed 

many  times,  and  it  was  the  subject  of  extensive 

Congressional  review  in  1977  and  1980.  In  1983 

the  Congress  adopted  specific  language  that 

requires  the  postal  service  to  maintain  six-day 

delivery.  The  postal  service  has  also  asked 

Congress  to  rescind  this  language  at  the  same 

time  that  it  has  come  to  us.  The  Congress  has 

told  us,  the  commission,  that  our  advisory 

committee,  the  commission's  opinion,  including 

what  we  learn  here  today  in  the  field,  will  be 

considered  by  Congress  as  it  reviews  the  postal 

service's  request  to  change  the  law. 

The  postal  service  has  the 

responsibility  to  serve  every  citizen,  household 

and  business  throughout  America,  and  it  remains 

far  and  away  the  world's  largest  mail  service 

provider,  with  expected  mail  volume  of  about 

165  billion  pieces  this  year. 

This  hearing  provides  critical  and 
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essential  information  and a vital  forum  for  the 

public  to  provide  input  as  the  postal  service 

seeks,  under  difficult  circumstances,  to  find 

the  right  balance  between  service  and  cost 

control. 

I'd  like  to  ask  my  fellow 

commissioners  if  they  want  to  make  any 

statements  for  the  record  before  we  begin. 

Vice  Chairman Hartunond? 

MR.  HAMMOND:  Thank  you,  Madam  Chairman. 

And  thank  you  all  for  being  here. 

And I especially  thank  the  chairman 

for  bringing  us  to  Rapid  City,  South  Dakota. 

Of  course  while I come  from a town 

of  400  in  Missouri, so Rapid  City  is a very  big 

place  to  me,  but  this  was  set  up  to  be a little 

more  of  getting  out  into  the  country  and  having 

testimony  from  everyone  from  some  of  our  larger 

first-class  mailers  and  to  some  of  the  smaller, 

but  just  as  vitally  important,  people  of  the 

mailing  industry,  and  postal  employees,  too. So 

I especially  appreciate  you  scheduling  this  one. 

And  this -- like  the  chairman  said,  this  is  one 

of  the  most  important  issues  that  we've  faced, 

and  we  certainly  take  our  job  very  seriously  in 
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consideration  of  this. 

So I do  thank  you  all  for  being  here 

from  our  witnesses,  and I look  forward  to 

hearing  from  all  of  you. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  And  Commissioner  Acton? 

MR. ACTON:  Thank  you,  Madam  Chairman. 

I just  want  to  thank  our  witnesses 

for  their  time  and  testimony,  as  well  as  for  all 

the  attendees  taking  time  to  come  out  and  see  us 

today.  This  is  an  important  issue,  and  we  look 

forward  to  hearing  from  all  of  you. 

MS. GOLDWAY: I joined  my  fellow  commissioners 

on a brief  visit  to  Mt.  Rushmore  yesterday 

evening.  We  were  lucky  to  get  there  just  before 

the  rain,  and  it  was  an  inspirational  moment  for 

us  and a real  icon  in  America,  and  we're  really 

honored to be  here  with  you  today  and  very 

pleased  that  there's  been  such a good  turnout  of 

citizenry  and  the  press  to  participate. 

I want  to  emphasis  how  important  the 

public  scrutiny  of  this  process  is  and  the 

importance  of  the  commission's  role  in  providing 

review.  Citizen  participation is a cornerstone 

of  any  good  government  regulatory  program.  To 

date,  the  commission  has  received  about 8,000 
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letters  and  e-mails  from  the  public  on  this 

issue. Also, following  our  formal  testimony, 

anyone  in  the  audience  who  is  interested  in 

making a statement  may  do  so.  We ask that  these 

remarks  be  no  longer  than  three  minutes.  The 

testimony  provided  by  our  witnesses  today  will 

help  educate  and  inform  the  commission  as  we 

continue  our  study  of  the  postal  service's 

proposal,  and  it  will  help  the  postal  service 

directly, I believe,  as  well. I sincerely 

appreciate  the  witnesses'  willingness  to  be  here 

and to add  to  the  commission's  record  on  this 

important  issue. 

I'll describe  the  process  now. 

We'll  hear  from  two  panels  of  witnesses  today. 

I will  introduce  each  panel  in  turn,  swear  them 

in  and  allow  them  to  provide  oral  statements  for 

our  record.  Then  there  will  be  an  opportunity 

for  commissioners  to  question  each  panel. 

These  hearings  are  being 

transcribed,  and  the  witnesses'  testimony  and 

responses  to  questions  from  the  commission  will 

be  part  of  the  evidentiary  record  of  this  case. 

Other  participants  will  have  the  opportunity to 

review  the  transcript  of  this  hearing  and  offer 
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their  comments  if  they so choose  during  the 

rebuttal  phase  of  this  case  later  this  summer. 

And  now I ' d  like  to  introduce  our 

first  panel.  First  we  have  Mark  Schreiner. 

Mark  is  the  owner  of  Print  Mark-et  here  in  Rapid 

City.  And  also  on  our  panel  is  Mury  Salls. 

Mury  is  the  senior  vice-president  for  DST 

Mailing  Services  and  president  of  the  Major 

Mailers  Association. 

Gentlemen,  thank  you  for  being  here. 

I'll now  swear  you  in.  Would  you  rise?  Do  you 

swear  that  the  testimony  you're  about  to  give  is 

the  truth  and  nothing  but  the  truth? 

MR. SCHREINER:  Yes. 

MR. SALLS:  Yes. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

The  record  says  that  the  witnesses 

have  affirmed  their  position.  Both  have 

answered  in  the  affirmative. 

And  now,  Mr.  Schreiner, I'll ask  you 

to  lead  off,  if  you  wouldn't  mind. 

MR. SCHREINER: I can  only  speak  from  the 

standard  mail  side. I do  standard  mail,  as  well 

as  printing. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Can  everyone  hear? 
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I think -- take  the  mic a little 

closer  to  you. 

MR. SCHREINER:  I'm a local  printer  and  mailer 

here  in  Rapid  City. I do  standard  mail  only, so 

I can  only  speak  from  that  side. 

I really  feel  that  the  change  will 

have  to  become  better  planning  from  the 

customer.  The  major  concern  is  the  rates.  The 

biggest  part  of  mailing  is  the  postal  rates. 

Usually  printing  and  addressing  is  not  as 

substantial  as  the  rates. So the  rate  increases 

over  the  past  several  years  have  changed  the 

industry  drastically  and  is a concern. 

As  far  as  the  delivery  day,  it'll 

take  better  planning  from  the  customer,  and I 

feel  that  it's  not a substantial  change. I 

mean,  it's a change,  but  with  the  planning 

properly -- from  the  standard  mail  side  there's 

already a built-in  three-day  delivery,  and I 

feel  that  it  would  be a big  change  to  the 

customer,  but  we  can  plan  around  it. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Are  you -- is  that  your  statement? 

MR. SCHREINER:  Uh-huh. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

I guess  we'll  go  to  Mr. Salk next. 
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And  then  we'll  ask  you  both  questions. 

MR. SALLS: Good  morning. I appreciate  the 

opportunity  to  be  here  and  provide  testimony  at 

this  hearing.  My  testimony  will  focus  on 

first-class  mail  and  the  association's  views  and 

concerns  about  what  this  impact  will  have  to  our 

business,  as  well  as  what  we  expect  for  the 

consumers  to  respond  to  such a change. 

" A ' s  membership  is  comprised  of 

large  businesses  and  service  providers  in  the 

telecommunications,  utility,  banking,  financial 

services,  insurance,  and  healthcare  industries. 

Each  month  our  membership  sends  billions  of 

statements,  invoices  and  other  critical 

communications  to  consumers  throughout  the 

United  States  and  its  territories.  Most  of 

those  mail  pieces  include a reply  envelope.  The 

postal  service  is  the  primary  channel  for 

distribution  and  payments. As you're  aware, 

this  is  gradually  shifting  to  electronic. 

Competition  is  intense,  and "A members  must 

take  advantage  of  lower  costs  and  meet  consumer 

demand  for  Internet  and  mobile  payment  channels. 

Even  with  the  shift  to  electronic 

channels, "A believes  the  postal  service  can 
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continue  to  provide  vital  services  for  years  to 

come.  However,  we  believe  the  postal  service  is 

at a pivotal  point  with  its  largest  customers. 

The  postal  service,  Congress  and  this  commission 

have  roles  that  will  potentially  accelerate  or 

slow  the  diversion  of  mail  to  electronic 

delivery. 

"A posed  many  questions  and 

concerns  to  the  postal  service  regarding  this 

proposal.  The  postal  service  has  attempted  to 

minimize  the  impact  to  businesses  and  consumer 

We've  taken  the  specific  changes  back  to  our 

individual  companies  to  assess  the  business 

consequences.  Although  the  impact  has  been 

S .  

lessened,  we  expect a reduction  in  service  will 

lessen  the  value  of  the  postal  service  and  cause 

an  acceleration  in  electronic  adoption. 

Given  sufficient  time,  businesses 

and  consumers  can  adapt  to  five-day  delivery. 

The  most  troublesome  area  is  remittance  payment. 

Despite  the  postal  service  commitment  to  provide 

lockbox  service  on  weekends,  there  will  be  an 

impact  as  the  collection  of  mail  is  halted  on 

Saturday. A large  segment  of  the  population 

pays  bills  on  the  weekends. Loss of  Saturday 
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pick-up  will  probably  shift  volumes  out a day, 

but  the  consumer  may  view  this  as a risky 

proposition  and  choose  electronic  instead. 

Businesses  expect  the  postal  service  to  provide 

appropriate  notification  and  education  to  the 

public  regarding  the  elimination of Saturday 

delivery.  Additional  education  to  the  consumer 

by  business  may  mitigate  this,  but  reduced 

service  will  be  seen  as  one  more  reason  to  go 

green  and  encourage  customers  to  pay 

electronically. 

"A sees  that  eliminating  Saturday 

street  delivery  will  also  impose  new  costs  on 

mailers.  Some  expenses  will  be  one  time  such 

reprogramming  for  billing  dates,  collections, 

cetera  and  will  require  additional  time  to  te 

and  develop  those  systems.  There  will  be, 

however,  ongoing  costs  for  consumer  support. 

as 

et 

st 

Print  centers  will  have  to  staff  up  remittance 

sites  likewise  to  handle  peak  volumes  that  will 

grow.  The  timing  of  such a change  couldn't  be 

worse  for  business.  Resources  are  tight.  The 

postal  service  has  enacted  new  rules  that  have 

left  the  mailing  industry  scrambling  for 

solutions,  and  more  changes  are  waiting  in  the 
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wings.  Many  initiatives  pushed  by  the  postal 

service  offer  businesses  little  value  or 

improvement  but  financial  pressures  instead. 

Reduced  delivery  and  other  burdensome 

requirements  are  increasing,  and  that's 

increasing  the  sentiment of business  mailers 

that  we  would  be  better  off  investing  in 

electronic  solutions  instead of pouring  more 

money  into  capital  and  software  in  order  to 

mail. 

It's " A ' s  belief  that  more  effort 

should  be  made  by  the  postal  service  to  explore 

cost  savings  and  revenue  generation.  For 

example,  is  first-night  (sic)  overnight  local 

delivery  really  needed?  Generally  businesses 

don't  establish  billing  due  dates  based  on  the 

bill  being  delivered  overnight.  This  might  be 

an  area  for  the  postal  service  to  reevaluate  its 

cost  savings.  On  the  revenue  side, "A is 

pleased  that  the  postal  service  is  looking  into 

initiatives  for  mailers  to  include a reply  piece 

for  free.  This  initiative  could,  with 

reasonable  rules,  provide  further  value  to  the 

mail  and  potentially  slow  the  electronic 

diversion  of  payments.  However,  any  impact  to 
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remittance  delivery  by  the  postal  service  under 

five-day  delivery  could  negate  that  effort. 

The  results  from  the  postal  service 

poll  regarding  the  choice  between  five-day 

street  delivery  versus  the  postage  increase 

aren't  very  different  from  the "A's own 

assessment.  Members  would  opt  for  five-day 

delivery  first.  However,  that  choice  does  not 

appear  to  be  on  the  table.  The  postal  service 

has  stated  that  it  will  seek  an  exigent  increase 

in  the  near  future.  Given  this  direction, I 

would  ask:  How  much  understanding  does  the 

postal  service  have  of  the  business  and  consumer 

e 

reaction  to  bolt a price  increase  and  reduce 

service?  Combined  with  the  pressure of other 

changing  mailing  requirements,  this  doesn't  makj 

good  business  sense.  Does  the  much  touted 

ten-year  plan  have  realistic  volumes? "A 

believes  that  the  postal  service  suggested 

pricing  strategies  and  reduced  delivery  will 

increase  electronic  adoption  greater  than  the 

rate  projected  by  the  postal  service  and  its 

consultant. 

Doesn't  the  biggest  opportunity  to 

balance  the  financials  reside  with  Congress  and 
~~ ~ ~~ ~~~~ ~ ~ 
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the  postal  service  to  resolve  the $75 billion 

overpayment  in  the  retirement  fund  and  other 

initiatives  that  have  been  pointed  out  by  the 

Office  of  the  Inspector  General? "A advocates 

that  the  commission  recommend  against  decreasing 

delivery  service  and  encourage  the  postal 

service  and  Congress  to  resolve  the 

overpayment.  At  some  point  in  time  it  may  be 

necessary  to  go  to  five-day  delivery,  but  we 

don't  see  that  that  time  is  now  at  hand.  Thank 

you. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you  both  for  your  testimony. 

I guess  I'd  like  to  know a little 

bit  more,  Mr.  Schreiner,  about  your  business. 

Is  it  based  locally  here  in  South  Dakota,  or  do 

you  do  regional  or  national  mailings  from  your 

company? 

MR. SCHREINER:  We  do  regional  mailings  and  once 

in a while a national  mailing,  yes. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Do  you  see  there's  any  difference 

in  the  needs  of  the  region  here,  the  western 

region,  as  opposed  to  the  other  country,  with 

regard  to  mail  delivery  and  service,  either 

difference  in  your  needs  or  difference  in  the 

service  that  you  currently  get? 
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MR. SCHREINER:  There's  delays  once  it  leaves 

the  area.  You  know,  you  don't  get  near  the 

service  that  you  do  for  the  local  mail  services. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: So would  you  think  if  you  were 

reduced  from  six  to  five  that  those  delays  would 

increase? 

MR.  SCHREINER:  Yes,  they  would, I feel. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  But  since  you're  doing  mostly 

advertising  mail,  you  build  in  that -- 

MR. SCHREINER:  Usually  build  in  that  delay, 

yes. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: -- delay  as  well? 

MR. SCHREINER:  Uh-huh. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  And I believe  your  testimony 

touched  on  what  Mr.  Salls  said,  which  is  that 

you'd  prefer  no  rate  increase,  and  you  could 

live  with,  adjust  to  this -- 

MR. SCHREINER:  That's  correct. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: -- service  reduction. 

MR. SCHREINER:  Direct  mail  is  very -- I'm 

sorry. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  We  appear  to  have  both  on  the 

table  here.  It  isn't  one  or  the  other. So can 

you  give  us  advice  as  to  how  to  proceed  since  we 

have  both  on  the  table?  If  you're  going  to  have 
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a rate  increase  anyway,  do  you  think  it's 

essential  to  keep  six-day  delivery,  or  would  the 

two  together  be  okay? 

MR. SCHREINER: I believe  in  this  economy  right 

now  that  in  order  to  keep  the  mailing  and  keep 

direct  mail  as a viable  option  for  businesses  to 

sell  their  products  and  get  their  word  out,  the 

price  increases  are a big  part  of  that  decision, 

what  avenue  of  advertising  they're  going  to  use. 

Studies  show  that  direct  mail  is  still a good 

option,  and  price  has  got  to  be a big  part  of 

that. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: And, Mr.  Salls,  maybe  you  can -- 

I'm familiar  with  DST,  but  maybe  you  can  inform 

some  of  our  audience  about  it  and  the  record 

because  you  have a very  impressive  organization. 

MR. SALLS:  Well,  thank  you. 

DST  is a very  large  service 

provider.  We  actually  do  billing  for  many 

companies,  and  we  produce  approximately 

2.4  billion  pieces  of  first-class  mail a year, 

and  we  do  send  to, I think  it's  somewhere  around 

95  percent of all  the  mailboxes  in  the  country. 

So actually  one  of  our  primary  areas  and  one  of 

my  clients  is  right  here  in  South  Dakota,  and 
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that's  one  of  the  reasons  why  we  wanted  to  be 

part of this  is  for  first-class,  especially 

where  it's  critical  business  communications  and 

often  very  regulated,  it's  very  critical  for  us 

delivery  is  there,  reliability  is  there. 

MS. GOLDWAY: So it's -- one  of  the  big  credit 

card  companies  has  its -- it  receives 

remittances  here  in  South  Dakota;  is  that  right? 

MR. SALLS: I believe  that  is  correct,  yes. 

MS. GOLDWAY: So that's  an  important  part  of  the 

South  Dakota  economy  as  well? 

MR. SALLS:  Yes,  it  is. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  And  could  you  discuss  for  me a bit 

more  your  interest  in  perhaps  cutting  overnight 

delivery  rather  than  the  six-day  in  options  that 

the  postal  service  might  have  to  adjust  delivery 

standards?  That's  something  it  could  do  without 

legislative  change.  It  would  just  have  to  come 

to  us.  It  would  not  need  to  go  to  Congress  for 

that.  Have  you  discussed  this  with  the  postal 

service? 

MR. SALLS: We  have  just  recently  brought  it  up 

with  the  postal  service.  Part  of  it is, as  we 

met  as a bunch  of  first-class  mailers,  we  were 

looking  at  where  could  we  change  things  that 
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would  reduce  costs  to  the  postal  service  but 

really  not  impact  the  consumer  or  the 

businesses. 

And  typically  what  we  did -- and  no 

one  in  the  entire  group  could  actually  say 

anybody  that  counts  on  overnight  mail,  no  one 

for  First  Class.  Whether  it's  outgoing  or  even 

the  remittances  coming  in,  nobody  counts  on  it. 

But  yet  when  you  look  at  the  postal 

service  processing,  they  almost  have  one 

separate  process  just  for  handling  all  the 

overnight  mail,  whether  it  be  for  the 

collections  and  separation  or  even  the  delivery. 

I've  actually  been  into a plant  where I saw  that 

they  held  all  the  business  outgoing  mail  that 

wasn't  local,  didn't  touch  it  until  all  the 

local  was  done. 

So it's  very  obvious  that  there's 

some  optimizing,  at  least  in  my  opinion,  the 

actual  efficiencies  of  their  equipment,  their 

processing,  because  they  bifurcated  overnight 

from  the  two-  and  three-day  product,  and  yet  all 

of  it  is  letter  mail  or  flats  of  the  various 

types. So we  think  that  that  is  causing  an 

increased  cost  that  could  go  out. 
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And  as  far  as  change,  we  agree  with 

you,  absolutely,  doesn't  require  Congress; 

doesn't  require  the  Regulatory  Commission 

approval -- 

MS. GOLDWAY:  No,  it  does  require  our  approval. 

MR. SALLS:  Oh,  it  does  require?  Okay, I stand 

corrected. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Not  approval,  our -- yes,  maybe 

our  approval  in  standards  issues,  but  it's 

certainly  something  that -- 

MR. SALLS:  Relatively  speaking,  though,  we  say 

don't  take  it  out  beyond  three  days  still,  but 

just  make  the  standard  two  days  or  three  days 

and  then  for  the  outlying  areas  the  four  and  the 

five . 
MS. GOLDWAY:  Well,  when  the  postal  service  was 

considering  the  six  to  five  day,  did  they  make 

that -- did  they  present  that  option  to  you  at 

all? I know  they  met  with a lot  of  mailers 

around  the  country  before  they  provided  their 

detailed  proposal  to  us. 

MR. SALLS:  My  understanding  is,  and  what 

they've  told us -- and  nobody  has  told  me 

definitively  what  they  looked  at,  but  they 

looked  more  in  the  way  of  moving  the  overall 
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block  out. So instead  of  just,  you  know,  one  to 

three  for  the  Continental  United  States,  they 

were  looking  at,  Well,  what  if  we  go  to  two  to 

five?  They  looked  at  other  ways  of  stretching 

out  the  outer  side  of  it,  and  that's  where  it 

has a huge  impact  to  business  mailers  and 

remittance  payments  is  if  it  takes too long. 

So ours  was,  at  least  they  didn't 

say  they  did  it,  was  just  look  at  that  close  in 

overnight. 

MS. GOLDWAY: I see.  Okay,  that's  very 

interesting. 

The  other  thing I request of you,  if 

you  could -- it  came  up  in  the  Chicago  hearings. 

Other  mailers  were  talking  about  the  costs  that 

they  were  going  to  bear  for  the  implementation 

of  the  change  from  six  to  five  day,  and  if  you 

have  any  information  you'd  like  to  share  with  us 

or  your  members  would  like  to  share  with  us  on 

the  costs  that  you  will  have  to  absorb  in  making 

those  changes,  that  would  be  useful  for  the 

deliberations  that  we  have  when  we're  looking  at 

the  cost  impact of the  changes,  the  savings  and 

the  cost, so I would  ask  you  to  do  that,  if  you 

can. 
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MR.  SALLS:  I'll  pursue  doing  that.  We'd  asked 

the  membership,  and  it  was  in  the  million-dollar 

range  for  any  one  company. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Well,  Art  Donley  was a little  bit 

more  specific,  and  if  we  could  get  more 

information,  we'd  appreciate  that. 

MR. SALLS:  We'll  do  that. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

Now,  Vice  Chairman Hmond? 

MR. HAMMOND:  Thank  you,  Madam  Chairman. 

If I could  follow  up,  Mr.  Salls,  on 

when  you  were  talking  about, I guess  still 

concept,  of  if  the  postal  service  were  allowed 

or  did  indeed  stretch  out  delivery  of 

first-class  mail  essentially  is  what  you're 

talking  about,  on a one,  two,  three  days  at 

most,  all  first-class  mail  roughly  is  the  goal. 

Whereas  opposed  to  like  what 

Mr.  Schreiner  does  on  standard  mail,  it's  more 

three-,  four-,  five-day  delivery,  and  they  pay a 

much  less  rate  for  standard  mail  than  the  First 

Class.  Are  you  talking  about -- I assume  you 

don't  want  standards  lowered  without a price 

change  to  account  for  that? I mean,  you're  not 

talking  about -- well,  okay,  roughly  if  we  just 
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say  first-class  stamp,  44  cents,  if  you  were 

putting a 44-cent  stamp  on  it,  you're  thinking 

that  you're  going  to  get  one,  at  worst  two-day 

delivery.  Whereas  if  you  allow  the  postal 

service  to  stretch  out  that  delivery  two,  three, 

or  four  days,  you  still  don't  want  to  pay  44 

cents,  do  you? I mean,  you  want  to  work  out 

something  that  would  be  commensurate  with  the 

change  in  that  standard? Is that  what  you're 

talking  about? 

MR. SALLS: No, actually,  we're  not.  We're 

looking  more  in  line  with  the  postal  service 

expects  to  get  about $3 billion  of  savings  net 

for  eliminating  Saturday.  We're  saying  right 

now  is  the  wrong  time  to  do  that  because  that's 

going  to  accelerate  electronic  adoption.  What 

we're  saying  is  look  at  the  costs  for  the 

overnight  area,  just  the  overnight,  just 

eliminating  that  and  moving  it  to  two  days so 

it's  part  of  the  two-day  standard.  If  there's 

money  to  be  saved,  if  it's a billion  or  whatever 

it  is,  take  that,  use  it  to  offset  the  cost 

problem  that  they  have. 

We're  not  looking  or  recommending 

that  they  actually  reduce  the  first-class  stamp. 
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It's  our  belief,  at  least  right  now -- once 

again,  we're  looking  at  the  choice  of  six  day 

versus  five  day.  Okay,  we'll  take  five  days  if 

there's  no  increase,  but  they're  saying  there's 

going  to  be  an  increase, so we're  saying  no, 

look  at  other  ways  of  reducing  costs. 

MR. HAMMOND: Okay.  You're  not  talking -- and 

maybe  Mr.  Schreiner  has  heard  of  this  or  thought 

about  this  before.  There  has  been  discussion  at 

various  times  of -- and,  like I say,  really, 

First  Class,  we  pay  First  Class  in  order  to  get 

first-class  service.  We  pay  standard  in  order 

to  get,  not  to  say  lesser  service  but a more 

stretched  out  service  and  lower  costs  which 

result  from  that.  There  have  been  those  who 

have  said,  "Let's  talk  some  about  what 

essentially  would  be  somewhat  of a hybrid 

between  the  two  of  where  you  get a little 

quicker  delivery  for a little  more  than  standard 

but a little  slower  delivery  from  First  Class." 

Have  either  of  you  thought  about  anything  like 

that  as  possibly  actually a new  class  of  mail  to 

bring  in  revenue  and  new  ideas  for  the  postal 

service? 

MR. SALLS:  Actually,  if  you  go  back  to  the -- 
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there  was a work  group,  and  now I can't  remember 

what  it  was  called.  Back  in  1990  we  suggested a 

business  class  of  mail  that,  granted,  it 

wouldn't  be  for  probably,  you  know, a bill,  but 

there's  other  correspondence,  other  things  that 

are  sent  out,  as  well  as  advertising  that  we'd 

rather  see  go  faster  that  would  fit  in  that,  and 

it  wouldn't  have  to  have  all  the  bells  and 

whistles  and  costs  associated  with  First  Class, 

but  it  would  have  the  better  delivery. So we 

very  much  would  like  to  see  it,  but  we  see  it 

probably  more  in  line  of  either  some 

correspondence  or  up-selling  from  advertising 

mail. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Mr.  Schreiner,  do  you  have a 

coment? 

MR. SCHREINER:  No, I do  not  right  now.  Thank 

you. 

MR. HAMMOND:  That's  all  for  right  now. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Commissioner  Acton? 

MR. ACTON:  Thank  you,  Madam  Chairman. 

Mr.  Salls, I think  you  mentioned  in 

the  course of your  testimony  your  concerns  or 

your  membership's  concerns  about  the  possibility 

of the  value  of  the  postal  service  and  the  value 
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of  the  mail  would  be  compromised  by  this 

proposal.  Could  you  talk a little  bit  more 

about  that? 

MR. SALLS: Yes.  Right  now  one  of  the  most 

difficult  things  that's  happening  in  the 

business  environment  is  customer  retention, 

tough  economic  time,  and  customer  service  is 

paramount.  We  see  that  taking  away  the  sixth 

day  of  delivery  for,  in  particular  the  sixth  day 

of payment,  will  cause  issues  with loss of 

customers  or,  in  particular  for  the  postal 

service,  plain  and  simply  electronic  adoption, 

and  this  is  where  we  see  it  lessens  the  value. 

It's  amazing,  and I think  it's  in 

the  Postal  Service  Household  Diary  Study,  the 

number  of  households  that  pay  their  bills  on 

weekend.  If I go  in  on  Saturday  expecting 

Saturday  morning I can  pay  my  bill  but I know 

there's no pickup,  my  choices,  do I drop  it  in 

the  mail  then  on  Monday  and  now  I've  got  to 

consider  will  it  be  late,  or  is  it  easier  just 

to  go  on  my  computer  at  that  time,  pay  it 

electronically,  forget  the  postal  service?  And 

that's  where  we  are  definitely  seeing  the  value 

go  away  because  for  consumers  it  becomes  an 

CINDY K. Pl?INGSToN, CSR, RPR 
(605) 877-1806 Cindywrting@Ftap.Midco.Net 

mailto:Cindywrting@Ftap.Midco.Net


- 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 - 

28 

issue  of  choice,  and  the  choice  is  going  to  be 

convenience  and  ease  of  use  and  they  lose 

Saturday. 

MR. ACTON:  How  about  this  concept  that  the 

service  performance  standards  were  established 

in  the  expectation  that  Saturday  delivery  would 

be  occurring?  The  regulators  are a bit 

concerned  with  if  Saturday  delivery  is 

eliminated,  it  could  impact  the  service 

performance  standards  and  that  entire  issue 

being  revisited.  Do  you  have  any  thoughts  about 

that? 

MR. SALLS: I would  agree  with  the  commission's 

assessment.  We  truly  see  that,  especially  if 

you  look  at  the  large  mailers  like  at  DST,  if 

mail  literally  is  sitting  and  we  take  the  July 

4th  holiday  coming  up,  for  three  days  without 

moving,  logistically  for  First  Class  how  does 

the  postal  service  actually  get  it  from  Point A 

to  Point B in  time?  Because  the  volumes  are so 

great. 

I'll give  you  an  example.  We  can 

have -- because  July  4th  happens  to  be  quarterly 

mailing, so financial  statements  peak  at  that 

time,  we  can  actually  have  as  many  as  25 
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trailers  leaving  our  facility a day.  If  all  of 

a sudden  those  are  held  up  and  the  postal 

service  has  to  process  triple  that  amount,  it's 

going  to  impact  their  ability  to  meet  the 

service comitments. 

MR. ACTON: Do you  think  it  would  impact  at  the 

level  where  the  regulator of the  service  needs 

to  reassess  their  performance  expectations? 

MR. SALLS: I think  it  will  because  consumers 

and  businesses  will  probably  scream  at  that 

point  in  time. 

MR.  ACTON:  You  mentioned  the  healthcare  and 

pension  cost,  and  you  should  know  that,  I'll 

state  for  the  record,  that  the  commission  has 

looked  into  the  matter  of  the  healthcare  cost, 

and  we're  presently  requesting  the  service 

examine  the  pension  cost  expenses. 

And  we  are  in  agreement  with  you 

with  respect  to,  at  least  to  the  healthcare 

findings,  that  Congress  should  be  taking a look 

at  that  model,  particularly  with  respect  to  the 

assumptions  that  are  involved.  Some  new 

arrangements  in  terms  of  refinancing  or 

re-amortizing  those  expenses  is  called  for 

because  it's  something  that  it's  forcing a lot 
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of  regrettable  decision-making  now  that  may  not 

have  to  occur  until  later,  if  at  all,  like  this 

proposal  to  eliminate  Saturday  delivery  and  also 

the  expectation  that  we'll  be  adding  soon  an 

exigent  rate  case. 

So just  know  that  in  that  particular 

regard  the  commission  has  taken a rather 

uncommon  public  policy  initiative  to  try  to 

advise  Congress  to  take  some  of  those 

recommendations  to  remunerate  that  expense. 

MR. SALLS:  We  appreciate  it,  believe  me. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  And,  further,  we  will  have  our own 

study  on  the  pension  issue  to  provide  to 

Congress  and  the  postal  service  sometime  in 

early  July so that  we  think  that  we  will  be 

involved  in  that  debate  as  well,  and  that's 

where  the  big  numbers  are,  multi  billion-dollar 

funds  that  are  available,  or  should  be  available 

to  the  postal  service. 

MR. ACTON:  One  last  question. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Yeah. 

MR. ACTON:  Mr.  Schreiner,  you've  got a lot  of 

experience  in  what  we're  talking  about  here  for 

Saturday  delivery.  Do  you  agree  with  Mr.  Salls' 

assessment  that  if  Saturday  delivery  is 
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eliminated  there  could  be  some  impact  on  your 

service  performance  expectation? Do you  think 

that  the  quality  of  the  speed  and  delivery  would 

be  compromised  or  that  some  assessment  by  the 

regulator  of  the  service  would  be  called  for  in 

light  of  one  less  day  of  delivery? 

MR. SCHREINER:  Yes,  because  the  impact  of  the 

mail,  like  he's  saying,  is  not  being  moved  on 

that  weekend.  First  Class  is  going  to  come 

first.  Standard  mail  is  going  to  get  pushed 

back  because  we  are  paying a lesser  rate  and  the 

service  is  not  there. So yes,  there  will  be 

delays. 

Costs  need  to  be  cut.  We  can't  just 

keep  raising  rates  and  expect  people  to  keep 

mailing.  They  will  go  to  other  sources.  E-mail 

is a competition.  You  know,  we  have a lot  of 

competition  when  it  comes  to  mail. 

MR. ACTON:  Okay.  Thanks,  gentlemen. 

Thank  you,  Madam  Chair. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thanks. 

I just  have  one  more  question  for 

Mr.  Schreiner.  It  seems  to  me  that  your 

mailings  are a good  barometer  of  the  economy, 

and  do  you  see  that  there's  some  turnaround  that 
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your  volumes  are  growing  again,  or  have  they 

just  flattened  out  and  not  grown?  What's  your 

sense  of  the  economy  through  your  business? 

MR. SCHREINER: I see  people  cutting  back  on  the 

number  of  mailings. I see  people  cutting  their 

lists  down. I had a mailer  that  went  from  4,000 

a month  down  to a thousand a month  because  of 

cost,  but  they  are  cutting  their  mailing.  Some 

are  coming  back  because  they  know  they  have  to 

advertise  and  they  have  to  reach  those  customers 

and  grow  their  business  by  reaching  new 

customers,  but  for  the  majority  I've  seen 

stagnant  in  the  last -- 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Still  stagnant,  pretty  much? 

MR. SCHREINER:  Yes. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Mr.  Salls,  do  you  have a comment 

on  that? 

MR. SALLS: No. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you  both  very  much  for  your 

testimony.  It's  been  very  helpful  to  us. I 

really  appreciate  it. I appreciate  you  coming 

here,  and  I'm  glad  that  you  have  such a strong 

contact  with  South  Dakota. 

MR. SALLS:  You're  welcome. 

MR. SCHREINER:  Thank  you. 
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MS. GOLDWAY:  Keep  it  up. 

And  that  concludes  our  first  panel. 

Thank  you  so  much  for  sharing  your  insights. 

And  now  we'd  like  to  invite  our 

second  panel  of  witnesses  to  come  forward. 

Good  morning,  gentlemen.  Thank  you 

for  joining  us  today. 

This  is  our  second  panel.  It's  my 

pleasure  to  welcome  them.  Leading  off  will  be 

Clem  Felchle  who  is  the  Dakotas  District  Manager 

for  the  United  States  Postal  Service.  And  he'll 

be  joined  by  Robert  Tolman  who  is  the  South 

Dakota  legislative  chair  for  the  National 

Association  of  Postal  Supervisors.  And  our 

final  witness  on  the  panel  is  Gary  Evensen  who 

is the  rural  letter  carrier  from  Rapid  City, 

South  Dakota. 

Thank  you  all  for  being  here. I'd 

like  you  to  stand  up  and I'll swear  you  in.  Do 

you  swear  or  affirm  that  the  testimony  you're 

about  to  give  is  the  truth  and  nothing  but  the 

truth? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Yes. 

MR. T O W :  Yes. 

MR. EVENSEN:  Yes. 
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MS.  GOLDWAY:  Let  the  record  show  that  the 

witnesses  acknowledged  in  the  affirmative. 

And  now  I'll  ask  Mr.  Felchle  to 

begin. 

MR. FELCHLE:  Chairman  Goldway,  Vice  Chairman 

H m o n d  and  Commissioner  Acton,  good  morning. 

I'm  Clem  Felchle.  I'm  the  manager  of  the 

Dakotas  District  for  the  United  States  Postal 

Service. I welcome  the  Postal  Regulatory 

Commission  to  Rapid  City,  South  Dakota. 

As  you  may  know,  Dakota  comes  from a 

Sioux  word  for  friend.  Even  if  your  visit  to 

Rapid  City  is a short  one,  I'm  sure  you're  going 

to  leave  with  the  sense  of  the  Dakota  spirit 

that  makes  life  in  this  part  of  the  country so 

special. 

I began  my  postal  career  in  1974  in 

Grand  Forks,  North  Dakota.  I've  been  privileged 

to serve  as a craft  employee,  as  well  as a 

manager.  I've  been a front-line  supervisor, 

director  of  mail  processing,  director  of  city 

operations,  bulk  mail  center  manager,  manager of 

senior  plant  operations  and  also a postmaster. 

The  highlight  of  my  postal  career 

has  been  coming  back  to  the  Dakotas'  District  as 
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its  manager  in  June  of  2005. I love  the  job. I 

love  the  great  work  ethic  of  the  people  in  our 

4,700  employees  who  are a part  of  our  Dakotas' 

team.  Despite  the  serious  challenges  facing  the 

postal  service,  the  Dakotas'  district  employees 

are  dedicated  to  providing  something  that I 

believe  no  other  part  of  the  postal  network  can 

provide  and  that  being  the  Dakotas'  quality 

customer  service. 

Our  district  office  is  in  Sioux 

Falls,  South  Dakota.  We  manage  all  the  postal 

operations  for  the  states  of  North  Dakota  and 

South  Dakota,  as  well  as  the  northwest  corner  of 

the  State  of  Minnesota.  Our  service  area 

includes  the  three-digit  zip  codes  of  565,  567, 

570  through  577  and  580  through  588. 

In  response  to  the  commission's 

invitation,  I've  submitted a written  statement 

for  the  record  that  includes  details  concerning 

postal  retail  access  and  delivery  in  the 

Dakotas'  district.  In  the  interest  of  brevity, 

I will  not  repeat  all  those  nwnbers  here  but 

definitely  will  entertain  any  questions  you  may 

have  about  them. 

Mailing  in  the  Dakotas'  district 
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flows  through  processing  distribution  centers 

located  in  Sioux  Falls,  South  Dakota  and  Fargo, 

North  Dakota.  We  operate  about  740  post 

offices.  There  are  more  than  630,000  street 

addresses  and  approximately  234,000  post  office 

boxes  in  the  Dakotas'  district. 

Just  under  50  percent  of  our  street 

deliveries  are  on  city  carrier  routes.  Almost 

43  percent  of  street  deliveries  are  performed  by 

rural  carriers,  and  more  than 7 percent  are 

provided  by  contract  delivery  service  drivers. 

We  have  ten  Native  American 

reservations  in  North  and  South  Dakota, 

including  three  of  the  largest  geographically  in 

the  United  States.  Of  the  districts  that  you 

have  selected  for  your  field  hearings,  ours is 

easily  the  largest  one  geographically  and 

probably  the  most  heavily  rural  in  character. 

To enhance  customer  convenience, 

retail  operations  in  the  Dakotas'  district  are 

supplemented  by  more  than  150  stamp  consignment 

locations  allowing  customers  to  purchase  stamps 

at  grocery  stores,  office  supply  outlets  and 

other  retail  locations.  Stamps  also  may  be 

purchased  at  more  than a hundred  automated 
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teller  machines.  We  also  have 89 contract 

postal  units. 

As a district  manager, I confer 

regularly  with  my  area  vice  president.  I'm 

aware  of  the  financial  pressures  facing  the 

postal  service  and  the  need  for  drastic  action 

to  reduce  costs.  Accordingly, I understand  why 

senior  postal  management  has  determined  that  the 

five-day  plan  is  necessary  to  improve  the 

long-term  financial  stability  of  the  postal 

service. 

As  you  know,  the  five-day  plan  would 

eliminate  Saturday  delivery  of  all  mail  to 

street  addresses,  with  the  exception  of  Express 

Mail.  The  plan  would  also  eliminate  collection 

of  mail  on  Saturdays,  as  well  as  the  Saturday 

processing  of  outgoing  mail. 

Postal  retail  units  will  continue  to 

provide  window  service  on  Saturdays.  The 

processing of incoming  mail  will  not  change,  and 

post  office  boxes  will  continue  to  receive  mail 

Monday  through  Saturday. 

The  postal  service  intends  to 

implement  these  changes  during  calendar  year 

2011,  though  an  exact  implementation  date  has 
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not  been  set.  Our  plan  is  contingent  upon 

Congress  not  enacting a prohibition  for  fiscal 

year  2011. I will  leave  speculation  about  the 

outcome  of  the  ongoing  legislative  process  to 

others. 

The  justification  for  the  five-day 

plan  is  presented  in  detailed  testimony 

submitted  by  senior  postal  executives  from 

headquarters  and  other  expert  witnesses  who  are 

scheduled  to  testify  before  the  commission  in 

Washington,  D.C.  next  month. I'll defer  to  them 

to  explain  the  operational  details,  the  cost  and 

revenue  implications,  and  the  national  policy 

issues  relating  to  the  proposed  service  changes. 

I know  that  the  commission  regularly 

reviews  extensive  national  operational  and 

financial  data  and  that  you  are  generally 

familiar  with  the  grim  volume,  cost  and  revenue 

trends  that  the  postal  service  has  been 

experiencing.  Those  trends  are  reflected  here 

also  in  the  Dakotas'  district. 

From  Quarter 1 of  fiscal  year  2005 

to  the  same  quarter  in  2010,  we've  experienced a 

20 percent  volume  decrease.  At  the  same  time, 

the  total  number  of  city  and  rural  delivery 

CINDY K. PE'INGSTON, CSR, RPR 
(605)  877-1806 CindyF&portmg@Rap.Midco.Net 

mailto:CindyF&portmg@Rap.Midco.Net


- 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 - 

39 

points  in  the  district  has  increased  by 

7 percent.  As a result,  total  volume  per 

delivery  point  has  declined  by  25  percent.  We 

have  experienced a 12  percent  decline  in 

cancellations  and a 5 percent  decline  in  retail 

transactions  in  recent  years.  Still,  total 

operating  revenue  for  the  Dakotas'  district  has 

increased  by a total  of 1 percent  from  the  first 

quarter  of  2005  to  the  first  quarter  of  2010. 

Since  our  district's  mail  revenue  has  held 

stable  despite  national  trends,  we  have 

experienced  only a 5 percent  decrease  in  revenue 

per  delivery  point  over  this  five-year  period. 

My  managers  and I maintain  regular 

contact  with  postal  customers.  They  routinely 

tell  us  that  they  are  increasingly  satisfied 

with  the  service  that  we  provide.  They  also  let 

us  know  how  the  Internet  is  changing  the  way 

they  choose  to  conduct  personal  and  commercial 

transactions  traditionally  sent  by  mail.  As 

Internet  access  continues  to  expand  in  rural 

areas, I expect  more  rural  mailers  to  take 

advantage  of  its  benefits  in  ways  that  could 

diminish  some  types of mail  volume. 

Assuming  the  postal  service 
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implements  the  five-day  plan, I will  be 

responsible  for  ensuring  that  my  managers, 

retail  and  delivery  employees  communicate 

effectively  with  our  customers.  It  is  critical 

that  our  customers  clearly  understand  what 

changes  are  coming,  when  those  changes  will 

occur  and  what  mailing  options  they  will  have. 

Five-day  delivery  and  other  service 

changes  will  require  adjustments  for  many 

customers,  minor  for  some  and  more  substantial 

for  others.  Certain  customers  may  find  that  our 

new  operating  model  will  not  suit  their  mailing 

and  shipping  needs.  Still, I firmly  believe 

that  our  ongoing  commitment  to  continuous 

service  improvement  can  and  will  attract 

customers  to  the  postal  service. 

If  you  get a chance  to  review 

yesterday's  Rapid  City  Journal,  you'll  find a 

front-page  story  indicating  that  the  local 

customers  generally  do  not  regard  the 

elimination  of  Saturday  delivery  as a great 

loss. The  household  and  business  customers I 

talk  to  all  seem  to  understand  that  the  postal 

service  faces  difficult  choices  and  that  there 

are  no  easy  solutions.  Customers  emphasize  to 
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me  that  if a change  is  inevitable,  they  want 

plenty  of  advance  notice  to  adjust. 

Accordingly,  the  postal  service  will  give  six 

months'  advance  notice  of  the  implementation 

date  selected  for  our  five-day  plan. 

When a date  is  established  and a 

communications  plan  is  launched, I am committed 

to  ensuring  that  the  Dakotas'  district 

residential  and  business  customers  can 

transition  as  smoothly  as  possible  and 

understand  how  they  can  continue  relying  upon 

the  postal  service  to  meet  their  mailing  and 

shipping  needs. 

We  have a user-friendly  five-day 

delivery  website  at  USPS.com.  It  provides 

planning  guides  and  frequently  asked  questions, 

with  answers  tailored  specifically  for  household 

and  commercial  customers. 

When  the  time  comes, I understand 

that  multiple  mailings  to  residential  and 

business  customers  will  explain  all  service 

changes  and  customer  options.  This  will  be 

especially  important  in  those  portions  of  my 

district  where  customers  are  not  likely  to  have 

Internet  access.  New  signs  designed  to  inform 
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our  customers  will  appear  in  retail  lobbies. 

Modified  labels  on  collection  boxes  will  reflect 

the  elimination  of  Saturday  collections. 

Newspapers  and  television  and  radio  broadcast 

news  programs  have  proven  useful  in  getting  the 

word  out  about  the  possibility  of a change  to 

five-day  delivery  service.  When  it  becomes a 

reality,  we  will  coordinate  with  the  western 

area  and  headquarters  to  use  these  media  to 

supplement  our  direct  customer  communications. 

I appreciate  the  opportunity  to 

appear  before  you  today  and  provide  this 

statement. I can  now  try  to  answer  some of your 

questions.  If I am  not  the  right  person  to 

provide  an  answer, I will  work  with  postal 

service  counsel  to  ensure  that  the  commission 

gets a response  to  any  outstanding  questions  you 

may  have. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you,  Mr.  Felchle. 

And  now,  Mr.  Tolman,  please. 

MR. TOLMAN:  Thank  you  and  good  morning, 

Chairman  Goldway  and  members of the  commission. 

Thank  you  for  coming  to  Rapid  City  to  hold  this 

important  meeting  on  the  consequences  of 

changing  the  number  of  postal  delivery  days  from 
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six  to  five. 

My  name  is  Robert  Tolman,  and I 

serve  as  the  South  Dakota  legislative  chair  for 

the  National  Association  of  Postal  Supervisors 

or  NAPS. 

For  the  past  20  years I have  served 

as  postmaster  in  four  different  sized  towns  in 

the  Rapid  City  area.  My  postal  career  includes 

service  as a temporary  supervisor  in  the  Rapid 

City  Post  Office  for  both  mail  processing  tours, 

the  Computer  Forwarding  Unit,  as  the  window 

supervisor,  and  also  as  an  ad-hoc  customer 

service  representative  visiting  local  mailers  to 

assist  them  with  their  mailing  needs. 

I appear  to  you  today  to  express  my 

views as a citizen  and  as a member of NAPS.  And 

I appear  in  my  own  personal  capacity  and  not  as 

a representative of the  United  States  Postal 

Service. 

In  March  of  2010,  Postmaster  General 

Potter  outlined  an  aggressive  plan  to  cut  costs, 

increase  productivity  and  secure  legislative  and 

regulatory  changes  to  maintain a viable  postal 

service.  More  than 50 solutions  were  proposed 

to  address  the  mail  volume  declines,  increases 
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in  workforce  costs  and  changes  in  consumer 

mailing  behaviors.  One  of  the  most 

controversial  proposals  has  involved  reducing 

the  frequency  of  mail  delivery  from  six  days  to 

five . 
I urge  the comission, in  rendering 

its  advisory  opinion  on  five-day  delivery,  to 

consider a move  as  the  last  resort  in  dealing 

with  the  postal  service's  financial 

difficulties,  not  as a first  option.  We  at NAPS 

understand  that  the  postal  service  is  in a 

difficult  financial  condition,  and  we  do 

understand  something  needs  to  be  done.  And 

something  will  be  done.  However,  we  ask  that 

this  be a last  resort. 

In  recent  Congressional  testimony, 

Postmaster  General  Potter  himself  acknowledged 

that  five-day  delivery  could  be  avoided  and 

other  pressing  financial  challenges  solved  if 

Congress  was  to  consider  the  estimated  $75 

billion  overpayment  in  the  pre  1971  hired  post 

office  employees  and  that  would  remove  the  need 

for  five-day  delivery,  in  his  words,  for 

probably  another  five  years.  Knowing  that,  one 

wonders  why  five-day  delivery  would  be 
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considered  and  implemented  before  the  pension 

overpayment  issue  has  been  considered  and 

resolved  by  Congress. 

After  all,  five-day  delivery  would 

have  significant  ramifications. All first-class 

street  delivery  mail  sent  on  Wednesday  with a 

three-day  service  commitment  would  not  make 

Saturday  delivery.  All  mail  for  two-day  street 

commitment  sent  on  Thursday  would  be  delayed 

until  Monday,  and  Friday's  entire  overnight 

street  committed  mail  would  be  delayed  until 

Monday.  All  street  delivery  mail  for  the  entire 

nation  would  be  affected  on  those  days.  The 

same  is  true  for  advertising  or  standard  mail 

but  only  would  play  with  different  days  of  the 

week.  The  plan  also  calls  for  any  item  mailed 

on  Saturday  to  receive  no  processing  until 

Monday  before  moved. 

The  five-day  plan  will  be 

experienced  and  felt  directly  by  the  public, 

compared  to  the  indirect  impact  that 

behind-the-scenes  cost-saving  moves  that  the 

postal  service  does  such  as  mail  processing 

consolidations. 

With  the  five-day  plan I estimate, 
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and  that's  my  personal  estimate  based  on  my 20 

years  of  dealing  with  the  mail,  approximately 20 

to  25  percent  of  the  total  volume  of  mail 

nationwide  would  be  in  some  way  directly 

affected.  The  negative  outcome  of  longer 

delivery  times  would  be  felt  immediately, 

creating  public  dissatisfaction  with  the  mail 

service.  This  will  erode  the  value  of  mail  and, 

in  turn,  lead  to  less  use  of  the  postal  system. 

I believe  this  is  the  wrong  direction  to  take. 

We  need a vibrant,  service-oriented  organization 

that  serves  our  citizens,  not  one  that  is 

retracting  service  and  removing  itself  from 

everyday  American  life. 

In  the  past  few  years  consolidations 

of  some of the  mail  processing  facilities  have 

been  opposed  by  home-state  federal  lawmakers 

because  of  the  adverse  impact  that  it  would  have 

on  those  jobs  in  their  area  and  the  postal 

service  provided  at  that  local  level.  Five-day 

delivery  will  generate  the  same  outcome  on a far 

more  enormous  scale. 

Most  importantly,  the loss of 

current  levels  of  mail  service  will  be  felt  by 

the  entire  nation,  not  just small areas  affected 
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by  plant  consolidations.  The loss of  delivery 

jobs  will  be  nationwide,  as  opposed  to  the  small 

loss of  locally-impacted  consolidated  plant 

jobs.  How  many  Fortune  500  sized  companies, 

which  the  postal  service,  if  it  was a private 

organization,  is  one,  would  consider  reducing 

their  services  with  the  likely  result  of  opening 

the  door  to  competitors  to  gain  market  share 

literally  almost  overnight? 

Given  my  20  years of postal 

management  experience, I know  of  no  postal 

operations  in  Western  South  Dakota  that  has 

extra  fluff  or  excess  employees  as  part  of  their 

operation.  The  Dakotas’  District  Compliment 

Committee  analyzes  all  vacancies  and  combines 

duties  before  posting  any  vacant  positions.  Our 

employees  are  expected  to  reduce  any  expense 

wherever  possible.  Nationwide  last  year  the 

postal  service  nationwide  cut  costs  by  over 

$6  billion. 

Customer  satisfaction  is  critical  to 

the  success  of  the  postal  operation,  and  it 

gives  me  great  pride  to  report  from a 2009 

Gallup  Research  Customer  Service P o l l  that  the 

Spearfish,  Custer  and  Black  Hawk  Post  Offices 
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received  their  highest  award, a five-star  rating 

for  customer  service  for  those  three  offices  in 

2009. The  Rapid  City  Post  Office  has  already 

received  it  at  an  earlier  date. I don't  know 

exactly  when.  It  was  no  simple  achievement  for 

what I considered to be  operating  on a bare 

minimum  operation.  Our  employees  are  still 

giving  their  best  in  difficult  financial  times. 

In  closing, I urge  the  commission  to 

continue  to  carefully  study  the  impact  of  the 

five-day  delivery  proposal. I do  not  believe 

the  proposal  is  consistent  with  the  postal 

service's  obligation  to  provide  prompt,  reliable 

and  efficient  postal  services  to  customers  in 

all  areas  and  all  communities  across  the  nation. 

Thank  you  for  your  public  service  as 

members  of  this  commission  and  overseeing  the 

postal  service. All of  us  in  the  Rapid  City 

area  are  appreciative  of  your  time  and  thank  you 

for  accepting  our  views. 

In  closing,  your  decision  will 

probably  be  as  monumental  as  the  memorial  itself 

at  Mt.  Rushmore.  Thank  you. 

MS. GOLDWAY: Thank  you,  Mr.  Tolman.  That's 

quite a burden  that  you've  placed  on  us. 
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Now  Gary  Evensen. 

MR.  EVENSEN:  Good  morning,  Chairman  Goldway, 

Vice  Chairman  Hammond  and  Commissioner  Acton. 

Thank  you  for  coming  to  Rapid  City. I would 

like  to  especially  thank  the  person  or  persons 

who  chose  Rapid  City  as  one  of  the  sites  to  take 

this  testimony. 

My  name  is  Gary  Evensen.  I'm a 

rural  carrier  in  Rapid  City  and  have  been a 

rural  carrier  for  over 30 years. I am a past 

president  of  the  South  Dakota  Rural  Carriers' 

Association. 

Rapid  City  and  the  surrounding  area 

is a very  rural  part  of  America.  Eliminating 

Saturday  delivery  would  greatly  impact  rural 

America  much  more  than  urban  and  suburban 

America.  Many  people  depend  on  the  postal 

service  delivering  anything  from  prescription 

medicines  to  gifts  from  grandma  and  grandpa  to 

the  dreaded  bills,  and  not  just  Monday  through 

Friday.  Customers  in  rural  areas  rely  on 

Saturday  delivery  because  they  know  that  they, 

or  someone  in  their  family,  will  be  home  to  sign 

for  these  prescription  medicines,  for  baby 

chicks  or  for  an  important  repair  part.  There 
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are  rural  routes  in  South  Dakota  that  are  150  to 

170  miles  long.  Without  Saturday  delivery,  some 

customers  would  have  to  drive  30,  40  or  possibly 

50 miles  or  more  round-trip  to  go  to  the  post 

office  to  get  that  mail.  It is not  possible  for 

a farmer  or  rancher to predict  when a piece  of 

equipment  will  break  down so they  could  order 

the  part  to  be  delivered  Monday  through  Friday. 

If  the  machine  would  break  down  on a Thursday 

evening,  they  could  order  the  part  that  evening 

or  Friday  morning  and  have  it  delivered  by 

Express  Mail  on  Saturday.  Without  Saturday 

delivery  they  may  have  to  wait  until  Monday  or, 

in  the  case  of a Monday  holiday,  until  Tuesday 

to  receive  that  part.  This  could  cause a 

financial  hardship  through  the loss of  part  of a 

crop. 

It  has  been  stated  that  the  post 

office  box  holders  would  still  be  able  to  get 

their  mail  on  Saturday.  That  cannot  be  true  in 

all  cases  because  some  of  the  smaller  post 

offices  in  South  Dakota  and  other  states  get  all 

of  their  daily  mail  brought  to  them  by a rural 

carrier.  With  no  Saturday  delivery,  there  would 

be  no  mail  available  for  the  customers  in  those 

CINDY K. PE'INGSTON, CSR, RPR 
(605)  877-1806 CindyFleporting@Rap.Mdco.Net 

mailto:CindyFleporting@Rap.Mdco.Net


- 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
- 

51 

post  office  boxes. 

I wonder  who  came  up  with  this 

business  model  for  the  post  office.  The  postal 

service  reduces  service  by  canceling  Saturday 

delivery, a number  of  mailers  will  find  other 

ways  to  get  their  product  to  their  customers. 

This,  in  turn,  reduces  income  to  the  post 

office.  With  less  income,  the  post  office  may 

have  to  reduce  service  by  another  day a week, 

which,  in  turn,  reduces  income.  This  would  be a 

death  spiral. 

When  McDonalds  or  Sears  or  Wal-Mart 

show a loss of  income,  do  they  close  their 

businesses  one  day a week?  Of  course  not.  They 

find  other  ways  to  reduce  expenditures  and 

increase  service.  By  increasing  service,  they 

hope  to  entice  more  customers  to  their 

businesses. 

We  are a business  because  all  of  our 

income  is  derived  from  the  sale  of  stamps  and 

postal  products.  We  do  not  rely  on  Congress  to 

appropriate  money  to  us. I have  heard  some 

people  say  that  Congress  should  just  give  us  the 

money  we  need.  If  that  would  come  to  fruition, 

I would  hope  it  would  be a loan  similar  to  what 
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Chrysler  received a number  of  years  ago.  But 

there  are  other  ways  for  the  postal  service  to 

reduce  costs. 

The  Inspector  General  for  the  postal 

service  has  released a report  showing a 

$75 billion  overpayment  to  the  trust  fund  for 

civil  service  retirement  employee  pensions. 

Correcting  that  by  even 30 percent  would 

completely  alleviate  the  postal  service's 

deficit . 
The  ratio  of  managers  and 

supervisors to employees  is  also  among  the 

highest  of  any  business.  Currently  the  ratio  is 

approximately  one  manager  to  seven  employees. I 

realize  that a number  of  small  post  offices  have 

one  postmaster  for  one  or  two  employees,  but 

that  situation  does  need  to  be  addressed. 

The  post  office  employs 

approximately 53,000 rural  carrier  associates. 

These  people  deliver  the  mail  on  Saturday,  the 

regular  rural  carrier's  day  off,  or  when  the 

regular  carrier  is  on  annual  or  sick  leave. 

They  are  on  call  similar  to a fireman.  They  do 

not  accrue  annual  leave  or  sick  leave,  and  the 

years  they  work  are  not  accrued  towards 
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retirement  time.  Many  have  worked  for  six  or 

more  years  waiting  for a rural  route.  If  the 

postal  service  stops  Saturday  delivery,  many,  if 

not  most,  of  these  rural  carrier  associates 

would  be  terminated.  With  the  economy  as  it  is, 

many  of  them  probably  would  not  be  able  to  find 

comparable  employment. 

In  my  opinion,  reducing  service  by 

one  day  is  not  an  alternative. 

Thank  you  for  allowing  me  to  testify 

on  behalf  of  rural  carriers  on  this  very 

important  matter. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you  all  for  your  thoughtful 

and  very  articulate  testimony,  and  I'm  moved  by 

your comitment to  your  community  and  to  the 

region.  We  are  very  glad  that  we  came  here 

today. 

I guess  I'm  interested  in  your  last 

statement,  Mr.  Evensen,  about  smaller  post 

offices  getting  their  mail  from  the  rural 

carriers  themselves. 

MR. EVENSEN:  Correct. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  How  many  of  them  are  there? 

MR. EVENSEN: I don't  know  that  exact  number. 

Clem  might  even  have a better  answer  on  that. I 
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know  there's a number  in  South  Dakota  and  North 

Dakota.  But  the  rural  carrier  who  starts  in a 

bigger  office  takes a locked  pouch  with  the  mail 

to  the  smaller  post  office. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Could  you  give  us  more  information 

on  that,  Mr.  Felchle? 

MR. FELCHLE: At  this  time I can't  give  you  an 

exact  number,  but  what  Gary  is  saying  is  that  we 

have a lot of intermediate  routes  where  they 

start  in  one  office,  they  go  to  the  next  office. 

We  have a lot of our A to E offices  that  are 

either  two-,  four-,  or  six-hour-a-day  offices 

where  the  rural  carrier  will  take a locked  pouch 

over,  and  that  will  be  basically  just  for a box 

section.  There  would  be  no  delivery  out  of 

those  units. 

MS. GOLDWAY: So if  the  rural  carrier  is  not 

operating  on a Saturday,  those  units  will  not 

get  mail,  and so the  people  who  have  post  office 

boxes  in  those  units  will  not  get  Saturday  mail? 

MR. FELCHLE: If  nothing  changed  from  what  there 

was  today.  But  there's  been a commitment  that 

we  will  service  box  sections  in  every  office. 

Whether  it  be a transportation  change  or 

something,  that  is  part  of  the  plan  that  we 
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would  still  have  to  figure  out,  and  I'm  sure 

that's  some  of  the  stuff  that  will  be  shared 

next  week -- or next  month  by  the  senior 

officials or executives. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: So it's  your  intent  to  provide a 

change  in  the  current  delivery  pattern  to  those 

post  offices so that  they  would  indeed  still  get 

delivery  on  Saturday  even  if  the  rural  carriers 

were  not  operating  on  Saturday? 

MR.  FELCHLE:  The  statement  that  has  been  shared 

throughout  the  five-day  plan  is  that  post  office 

box  customers  will  get  delivery  on  Saturday, 

yes. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  We'll  have  to  see  how  that 

happens. 

MR. FELCHLE:  Correct. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  And  speaking  of  post  offices,  you 

said  you  have  234,000  post  office  boxes? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Correct. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  In  your  whole  area? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Yes. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  And  how  many  of  them  are  not 

rented  at  the  moment? 

MR. FELCHLE: I would  say -- 

MR. TIDWELL:  Madam  Chairman,  Michael  Tidwell 
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for  the  postal  service.  The  postal  service 

considers  the  occupancy  and  vacancy  rates  to  be 

proprietary  information.  We  would  be  willing  to 

provide  that  information  to  the  commission  under 

the  protective  condition  permitted  under 

Section  504-G. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  I'm  happy  if  you  would  do  that. 

That  would  be  helpful  to  us. 

MR. TIDWELL:  Okay. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

And  then  you  say  that  your  citizens 

can  take  advantage  of  the  Internet  to  get 

information  about  the  postal  service  or  to  buy 

stamps;  they  have  that  as  an  option. 

MR. FELCHLE : Yes. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  How  many  of  the  citizens  in  your 

district  live  on  Native  American  reservations? 

MR. FELCHLE: I want  to  say -- and  maybe  you 

guys  can  help  with  this  answer. I believe  it's 

around 10 percent  of  the  population. 

MS. GOLDWAY: 10 percent? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Well,  that's -- okay. 

MS. GOLDWAY: 10 percent of the  population  are 

Native  American,  but  they  don't  necessarily  all 

live on the  reservation, so a smaller  number, 
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one  would  assume,  living  on  the  reservation? 

MR. TOLMAN: Yeah,  substantially. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  And  do  you  have  any  sense  about, 

in  the  population,  what  the  availability  of  the 

Internet is? As  we  know,  that  it's  generally 

not  available  on  Native  American  reservations  to 

everyone  and  less  available to lower  income 

people  or  rural  people.  Do  you  have  any 

percentage  of  what  it  is  in  your  district? 

MR. FELCHLE: I have  pulled  up  some  statistics 

if  you  would  like  me  to  pull  those  out. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Yeah,  sure. 

MR. FELCHLE:  And  I'll  give  them  by  separate 

states.  In  North  Dakota  the  total  housing 

units,  basically  55  percent  of  the  housing  units 

have  broadband.  59  percent  have  some  type  of 

Internet  access,  which  would  include  either 

satellite  or  dial-up. 

In  South  Dakota,  housing  units 

54-1/2  percent,  total  Internet  usage 

59.75  percent.  And I got  that  data  off  of 

www.data.gov. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Great.  Thank  you.  That's  very 

useful. 

I'm  interested  in,  Mr.  Tolman,  in 

CINDY K. PE'INGSTON, CSR, RPR 
(605)  877-1806 CindyReporting@Rap.Midco.Net 

http://www.data.gov
mailto:CindyReporting@Rap.Midco.Net


1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

58 

your  comments,  which I think  follow  on  questions 

that  Mr.  Acton  was  asking  of  the  earlier  panel 

about  the  effect  of  no  delivery  on  service 

standards.  You've  basically  indicated a certain 

portion  of  the  mail  would  be  delayed? 

MR. TOLMAN:  That  is  correct.  As  far  as  from 

the  standards  today  using  six-day  delivery,  if 

there  was  no  changing  in  mailing  habits  by  the 

public,  if  we  were  not  delivering  the  street 

delivery  mail  to  the  rural  areas  or  to  the  city 

areas  or  highway  contract  areas,  that  mail  will 

be  delayed a day. 

Talking  with  the  first  panel  there, 

Mr.  Salls,  the  value  of  the  mail  would  become a 

little  bit  less,  those  remittances  coming  back, 

the  mail  not  moving  or  the  public  choosing  to 

use a different  means  of  making  those  payments 

due  to  no  Saturday  delivery  will  affect  the 

value  of  mail  itself. 

The  other  thing  that you can  look  at 

also  is  the  mail  that  is,  and  if  there  was  no 

change  to  the  mailing  habits,  Saturday  mail  that 

is  generated,  people  who  were  going  to  mail a 

letter  in a blue  box, a collection  box  on  the 

street  or  in a post  office,  that  mail  would  not 
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move  either  on  Saturday. So, in  effect,  instead 

of  having  Monday  one-day  service,  Saturday  mail 

is  going to be  two-day  service,  and  it's  going 

to  be  delivered  on  Tuesday  because  Monday  would 

be  the  first  chance  for  when  we  would  have  it 

processing  and  doing  something  with  it  to  make 

the  move  to  delivery  the  next  day. 

MS. GOLDWAY: And  one  final  question  before I 

yield  to  my  colleagues,  do  you  see  that  there's 

a difference  in  service  in  the  rural  parts of 

the  region  as  opposed  to  the  urban  parts  in 

terms of number  of  days  of  delivery,  and  do  you 

find  that  the  current  system  meets  the  service 

standards  of  no  more  than  three  days  for 

first-class  mail? 

MR. TOLMAN: I do  not  have  privy  to  know  ever: 

single  fact  and  figure  about  if  the  service 

standards  are  being  met  on  that  three-day 

service. 

As far  as  rural  area  versus  city 

area  and  the  needs  of  those  customers  and  the 

r' 

needs  of  the  city  customers,  people  who  live  in 

remoter  areas -- and  Western  South  Dakota  is 

pretty  remote. I believe  the  population  is  nine 

people  per  square  mile.  That  was  the  last 
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figure  from  the  2000  census.  There's  actually 

more  cattle  that  are  in  South  Dakota  than 

people.  Maybe  they -- 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  There  are  more  cars  in  California 

than  people. 

MR. T O W :  But,  nonetheless,  it  comes  down  to 

the  remoteness  of  the  individual  in  what  they 

have  chosen  to  run  their  lifestyle. 

In  small  town  USA  that I have  been a 

postmaster,  it  appears  that  many  people  rely  on 

delivery  of  pharmaceutical  medicine  from  local 

shops  in  the  Rapid  City  area.  And/or  even  when 

I was a temporary  supervisor  in  Belle  Fourche, 

the  pharmacy  there  would  send  it  overnight  into 

Wyoming,  but  due  to  the  trucking  and  the  way  it 

was  set  up  it  was  actually  same-day  delivery. 

Pharmacists  would  run  in  at  nine  o'clock  in  the 

morning  as  soon  as  we  opened,  mail  the  medicine, 

and  it  was  there  the  same  day.  Now  that's 

unheard  of,  and  it  was a unique  situation. 

But  those  people  who  are  in  rural 

South  Dakota  that  do  not  have  the  Internet,  they 

are  very  dependent  on  the  postal  service  for  the 

means  to  run  their  life. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Mr.  Felchle  might  want  to -- 
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MR. FELCHLE:  Maybe I can  add  just a little  bit 

on  the  service  aspect  and  service  standards. 

Whether  you  live  in  Sioux  Falls,  Rapid  City  or 

Redding,  South  Dakota,  which  is  a,  basically a 

house  in  the  middle  of  nowhere,  the  service 

standards  are  exactly  the  same  for  all  of  us  in 

South  Dakota.  We  do  very  well  on  overnight. 

We're  sitting  at 97 percent.  We  rank  in  the  top 

15  in  the  nation  as  far  as  districts.  But a lot 

of  talk  about  three  day,  we  do  very  well  on 

three  day.  Right  now  we're  ranked, I believe 

it's  in  the  top  25  in  the  country. 

And  if  you  look  at  the  Dakotas, 

we're  not  an  air  transfer  hub  for  anybody. 

We're  not a truck  terminal  transfer.  We  don't 

have  the  greatest  transportation,  but  what  makes 

us  good  on  our  service is the  4,700  people  that 

work  in  this  district  because  they  take  their 

job  seriously  and  they're  compassionate  about 

serving  their  customers.  That's  why  we  do  well 

in  service. 

MR. ACTON:  You  gentlemen  clearly  collectively 

are a great  resource  for  the  commission  for 

information  on  this  question. 

The  first  thing,  I'd  like  to 
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congratulate  you  all  on  your  distinguished 

service.  It's  your  work  that  makes  the  United 

States  Postal  Service  the  most  respected  agency 

in  the  Federal  Government, so you  should  all  be 

recognized  for  that  for  the  record. 

And it  was  Mr.  Evensen, I think, 

that  was  asking  who  he  could  thank  for  the 

commission's  appearance  today,  that  would  be 

Chairman  Goldway -- 

MR. EVENSEN:  Thank  you  very  much. 

MR. ACTON: -- one  of  the  prerogatives  of  the 

Chair. 

I think  you  referenced  in  one  of 

your  examples,  Mr.  Evensen,  perhaps  the  lack  of 

delivery  of  Express  Mail  delivery  on  Saturday, 

and I believe  it's  the  postal  service's  plan  to 

continue  that  operation. 

MR. EVENSEN: I'm  not  completely  aware  of  what 

all  the  changes  will  be  if  they  do  implement  the 

five-day  delivery, so . . . 
MR. ACTON:  Okay, I just  wanted  to  make  that 

distinction  because I think  that's  one  of  the 

accommodations  that  the  service  has  been  very 

careful  to  try  to  make.  And I understand  that 

certainly  the  costs  are a concern,  but  it  does 
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remain  as  an  option  for  service. 

You  talked a bit  about,  you  know, 

how  the  service  is  compromising  its  business 

model  through  this  plan  to  eliminate  Saturday 

delivery,  and I agree  with  that  concern. I 

think I referenced  that  at  the  outset,  you  know, 

it's  not  just  the  issue  of  the  medications  even 

or  the  chicks  not  being  delivered,  but  when I 

hear  very  progressive  organizations  like  the 

Amazon.com  and  EBay  expressing  their  concerns 

about  the  lack  of a seamless  delivery  model, 

their  intent  is  not  to  go  to  five  day;  they  want 

seven. 

I mean,  you  know,  these  combination 

of  concerns  really  bring  to  light  what  you're 

talking  about  where  there's a value  in  having 

that  option  available  for  the  service  and  that 

there  could  be  even a greater  call  and a greater 

opportunity  down  the  road. So I understand 

where  you're  coming  from  on  that  point. 

I want  to  clarify  for  Mr.  Tolman, 

you  laid  upon  us  the  monumental  responsibility 

for  this  decision.  It's  important  to  remember 

that  this  is  an  advisory  opinion,  that  Congress 

will  be  making  the  decision.  The  commission 
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will  be  offering  our  views,  and I understand 

that  Congress  is  looking  forward  to  hearing  from 

us.  But  just  for  the  sake  of  understanding, 

everyone  here  today,  that  we  won't  be  making 

this  decision.  Your  member  of  Congress  will. 

MR. TOLMAN: I understand  that  fully. 

MR. ACTON:  Thank  you. 

You  were  talking  about  service 

performance  standards,  and  our  work  in 

establishing  those  service  performance  standards 

in  cooperation  with  the  Service  Call  Reform  of 

2006,  the  biggest  concerns  of  the  mailers  wasn't 

necessarily  speed,  it  was  accuracy  of 

expectations. So when  you  reference,  you  know, 

whether  or  not  it  may  take  longer  for a mail 

piece  to  get  there,  we  appreciate  that,  but I 

think  our  focus  when  we  talk  about  this  issue, 

and  we  have  to  talk  about  this  issue,  is  going 

to  be  more  on  making  sure  we  get  it  right so 

that  the  mailers  know  that  when  they  put  that 

piece  into  the  mail  stream,  it'll  be  delivered 

within a certain  time  frame  as  opposed  to 

necessarily  tomorrow. Do you  think  that's a 

fair  assessment  of  your  experience,  or  do  you 

feel  otherwise? 
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MR. TOLMAN:  The  service  that  we  provide  is 

based  on  our  commitment  from  the  public  in  areas 

nextdoor  to  us, so overnight  service.  Because 

the  postal  service  has  said  that  that  is  the 

standard,  we're  committed  to  it.  That is our 

job. 

MR. ACTON: I don't  disagree  with  that. 

MR. TOLMAN:  And so whatever  service  standards 

they  decide,  if  they  want  to  change  them,  we'd 

be  committed  to  those. 

MR. ACTON:  Okay, I appreciate  that.  My  focus 

on  the  service  standard  issue  in  connection  with 

this  proposal  goes  to  the  reality  of  the 

probability  that  we  will  have  to  reopen  the 

matter  and  look  at  whether  or  not  there  have 

been  true  implications  because  Saturday  is  no 

longer a delivery  date. 

MR. TOLMAN:  Uh-huh,  exactly. 

MR. ACTON:  And  finally,  for  Mr.  Felchle,  you 

referenced  that  you  have a heavily,  in  fact  the 

most  heavily  rural  area  of  the  postal  service, 

and  there's  been a lot  of  concerns  expressed 

during  the  course  of  our  hearings.  And  we  spoke 

to  some  of  these,  but  about  the  unique  nature  of 

the  impact  of  this  proposal  upon  the  rural 
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portion  of  America,  do  you  have  some  thoughts 

about  that  and  how  you  feel,  if  that's a valid 

view,  and  if so, what  some  of  those  implications 

may  be? 

MR. FELCHLE:  When I look  at  it,  we  have  urban 

and  we  have  rural. Do rural  customers  have  more 

of a need  for  services  from  the  postal  service 

than  an  urban  customer, I think  they're  pretty 

much  the  same. I don't  know  that  there's a 

bigger  need. I think  probably  the  biggest 

difference  between  rural  customers  and  urban 

customers  is  the  fact  that  our  rural  carriers 

are a post  office  on  wheels.  They  average 

between  50  and a hundred  dollars  in  cash  and 

stamp  stock  to  be  able  to  make  sales  to 

customers  on  Saturday or six  days a week.  That 

part  would  be  gone. 

Now,  there  is a good  share  of  our 

rural  customers  that,  like  myself,  that  live  in 

the  city  limits. I always  go  to  the  post 

office. I probably  should  use  my  rural  carrier, 

but  I've  never  used  him  as a post  office  on 

wheels. So when  we  talk  about  all  the  rural 

carriers,  not -- or  all  the  deliveries,  not 

every  one  of  them  would  be  missing  out  on  that 
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fact  of  the  post-office-on-wheels  option.  It's 

a great  option  for  customers. 

Unfortunately  what's  happening  in a 

lot  of  times  is  if a rural  carrier  accepts a 

package,  it's  given  to  the  rural  carrier  and a 

$10  bill  and  says,  Please  take  this  back  today, 

and  it's  Saturday,  by  the  time  the  rural  carrier 

gets  back,  the  post  office  is  already  closed. 

So that  package  just  sits  there  until  Monday 

anyway.  And a lot  of  people  probably  don't 

understand  that.  We're  not  open  the  same  number 

of  hours  on  Saturday  that  we  are  Monday  through 

Friday,  so  that  would  lessen  some  of  that 

impact.  But I think  that's  probably  the  biggest 

impact  or  the  biggest  difference  between  rural 

and  city. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  But  if  the  person  gives  the 

package  on  Friday  and  you're  closed  on  Friday 

when  they  come  in,  it's  not  going  to  get 

packaged  and  processed  until  Monday. 

MR. FELCHLE:  Monday  through  Friday  we  would  be 

open.  Saturday -- we  have  reduced  hours  on 

Saturday,  but  Monday  through  Friday  rural 

carriers,  by  and  large,  unless  it  would  be 

something  like  weather  or  some  unique 
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occurrence,  they  get  back  in  time  for  the  final 

dispatch  of  the  day,  so  Monday  through  Friday 

ime? 

should  not  be  impacted. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Can I interrupt  one  more t 

MR.  ACTON:  Of  course. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Mr.  Evensen  mentioned  that some 

of  the  rural  routes,  as  much  as  150  miles,  or 

even  more, 170? 

MR. FELCHLE:  170.  We  have  four  of  the  ten 

largest  rural  routes  within  the  district. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: So there  will  be  many  people  on 

those  routes  who  would  then  have  to  drive 10, 

20, 30  miles  to a post  office  if  they  would  need 

to  use a post  office  on  Saturday;  is  that 

right? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Those  people  would,  if  they  needed 

to  use  the  post  office,  they  would  end  up 

driving  to  town,  as  well  as  they  probably  drive 

to  town  for  their  gas,  their  groceries,  what 

other  services  they  may  need  on  Saturday  also. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Do  you  have  any  sense  of  what 

percentage  of  your  rural  carriers  have long 

routes  rather  than  the  kind  of  rural  carrier 

route  that  you  have  which  is  kind  of  suburban? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Oh,  boy,  I'd  have  to  guess  on 
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that. I can  go  back  to  the  office  and  dig  out 

that. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  I'd  appreciate  it. 

MR. FELCHLE:  And I can  break  it  down  by  miles, 

if  that's  what  you'd  like. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Yeah,  that  would  be  really  helpful 

to  us  to  get a sense of what  that  is.  Thank 

you. 

MR. ACTON:  That's a very  real  example  that  had 

not  occurred  to  me,  and  it's  good  to  have  it  as 

a matter  of  record  the  instance  where  many  rural 

customers  are  looking  for  services  that  the 

postman  provides  in  their  area  that  aren't 

necessarily  part  of  the  postal  service  in  an 

urban  scenario. 

You  referenced  the  advance  notice 

and  other  sort of proactive  capabilities  that 

the  service  is  going  to  bring  to  bear  in  the 

event  that  they  do  eliminate  Saturday  delivery 

and  that's  good  to  hear.  Whenever  there's  these 

types  of  monumental  changes  in  postal  service 

arrangements,  this  commission  is  committed  to 

ensuring  that  there's  proper  notification  to  the 

mailing  public. 

And  you  outlined, I think, a pretty 
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thorough  approach  for  doing  that,  and  I'm 

wondering  if  that's  something  that  headquarters 

has  informed  you  with,  or  is  that  something  that 

the  district  has  developed  independently,  or  is 

it a cooperative  endeavor? 

MR. FELCHLE: I would  say  it's a cooperative 

thing.  In a major  thing  like  this  there  will 

be,  I'm  sure, a communications  effort  coming 

from  headquarters  like  there  always  are  on  major 

programs. 

But  we  work  well  together  within  our 

district.  I'll  use  the  post  office  on  wheels  as 

an  example.  We  sent  mailings  out.  That  was 

something  generated  locally.  We  sent  it  out  to 

all  of  our  customers  on  rural  routes  advertising 

or  sharing  with  the  customers  those  options  that 

they  have  with  the  rural  carrier.  And  we  did 

that  in  conjunction  with  the  rural  carriers,  and 

we  do  that  type  of  thing  on a regular  basis. 

MR. ACTON:  Thank  you,  gentlemen. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Commissioner Hmond, 

Vice  Chairman Hmond? 

MR. HAMMOND:  Thank  you,  Madam  Chairman. 

I don't  know  if I have  any  question 

or  not.  This  has  been  excellent  testimony  and 
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educational,  and I feel  bad  about  having  not 

thought  this  through  enough  myself,  especially 

Mr.  Evensen  with  your  testimony  about,  and  then 

followed  up  by  Mr.  Felchle,  the  rural  carrier 

sells  stamps,  et  cetera,  on  Saturday,  post 

office  on  wheels. If they're  not  there  for 

Saturday,  is  that  not a diminution  of  service? 

And  then  when  you  talked, 

Mr.  Evensen,  about  those  people  who  are  in a 

very  small  town,  small  post  office  and  the  rural 

carrier  from  one  town  gets  the  mail  from  the 

contract  carrier.  And  then  it's  put  in  the 

pouch,  and  after  he's  done,  his  sorting  it,  his 

town  then  takes  that  mail  over  to  another  town 

to  the  postmaster  there,  the  officer  in  charge, 

usually  the  postmaster. 

I know  years  ago  our  mailman,  our 

rural  carrier  did  that.  That's  what  he  did,  got 

it  every  morning  from  the  carrier,  did  his 

sorting,  then  went  to  the  next  town  over  and 

delivered  it.  And so there  would  be  no  delivery 

to  that  post  office  for  the  postmaster  to  put  in 

those P.O. boxes  for  customers  to  pick  up. 

MR. EVENSEN:  That's  correct. 

ME?. HAMMOND:  That's  what  you're  talking  about. 
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And  the  reason I feel  bad  about  that  is  because 

my  father  was  that  carrier.  He  was a 30-year 

employee  of  the  postal  service,  proud  employee 

of the  postal  service,  and  he  was  the  one  who 

did  that.  And I hadn't  really  thought  about 

that, so I especially  appreciate  you  bringing 

that  up,  and  that's  something  that  the  postal 

service  is  going  to  have  to  seriously  consider 

for  those  people  involved. So I especially 

appreciate  your coments on  that. 

I do  have  one  question,  Mr.  Felchl 

Do  you  currently,  in  your  region,  have  anyone 

who  currently  does  not  have  six-day  delivery? 

Do  you  have  any  instances -- 

MR. FELCHLE:  Yes. 

MR. HAMMOND: -- of  where  it's  limited? 

e. 

MR. FELCHLE:  We  have a little  over a thousand 

customers  that  get  delivery  three  days a week, 

and  we  actually  have  four  customers  that  get 

delivery  one  day a week.  They're  in  pretty 

remote  areas. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  How  do  you  decide  that? 

MR. FELCHLE:  How  do  we  decide? 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Yeah,  which  customers  get 

three-day  delivery. 
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MR. FELCHLE:  Well, a lot  of  it  depends  on  their 

locality. I'll use  an  example  in  North  Dakota. 

We've  got  the  Missouri  River.  Very  few  people 

live  out  there, a lot  of  distance  between  the 

customers, so one  day  the  rural  carrier  goes  up 

one  side  of  the  river;  the  next  day  they  go  up 

the  other  side  of  the  river,  and  that's  how 

those  people  get -- 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Okay, so one  of  them  gets  Monday, 

Wednesday,  Friday,  and  the  other  gets  Tuesday, 

Thursday,  Saturday? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Tuesday,  Thursday,  and  then 

there's  four  of  them  that  are  way  out  that  get 

it  one  day,  which is on  Saturday. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  One  would  assume  under  this  plan 

that  the  ones  who  get  it  Monday,  Wednesday  and 

Friday  would  continue  to  get  Monday,  Wednesday, 

and  Friday.  What  happens  to  the  ones  that  get 

Tuesday,  Thursday,  Saturday?  Do  they  only  get 

two  days  of  delivery? 

MR. FELCHLE: I don't  know  that I am even  privy 

to  be  able  to  talk  about  that. I haven't  heard 

what  the  final  way  of  handling  that  is. So 

obviously  the  one -- the  four  that  are  getting 

it  on  Saturday,  if  we  don't  change  something 
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they'll  never  get  it, so -- 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Oh,  wait a minute.  You  mean 

currently  there  are  people  who  just  get  it 

Tuesday,  Thursday,  only  get  it  two  days a week? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Yes,  on  that  specific  route. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  On  that  specific  route,  if  you 

live  on  one  side  of  the  river  you  get  it  three 

days a week.  If  you  live  on  another  side of the 

river  you  get  it  two  days a week,  and  then  there 

are  four  people  who  get  it  on  Saturday? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Yep.  And  then  there's a lot of 

other  routes  they  go  one  way  three  days  and  the 

other  way  three  days. 

MS. GOLDWAY: So those  four  people  could  be 

without  service  altogether  unless  you  figured 

out  some  new  routing  structure? 

MR. FELCHLE: So I'm  guessing  we  will  have  to  do 

that,  yeah. 

MR. ACTON:  Well,  this  is  an  interesting 

prospect  just  because  you  already  have  some 

individuals  who  are  receiving  much  less  than 

six-day  delivery.  How  are  they  coping  with 

that? I mean,  what  do  they  do  to  remunerate  the 

fact  that  they  may  not  be  getting  mail  already 

on  Saturday or other  days of the  week? 
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MR. FELCHLE: I think -- and  I've  lived  in  rural 

America. I think  we  choose  to  live  here  because 

of the  quality  of  life  that  we  have.  When I 

lived  in  rural  America  did I expect  the  same 

exact  services  that I got  by  living  in a big 

city?  Fire  protection,  volunteer  fire 

department  versus  city  people,  police 

protection,  don't  have  them.  Maybe  have a 

county  sheriff.  May  take  an  hour  to  get to 

where  I'm  at.  You  make  those  choices.  The  more 

remote  you  are,  the  fewer  services  you  have. 

And  we're  not  just  talking  postal  service. 

People,  in  my  opinion,  you  adapt  to  those  types 

of  things.  But I choose  to  live  here  because  of 

the  quality of life  that I have,  and I think 

that's  why  most  people  live  in  North  and  South 

Dakota. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  What's  the  delivery  standard  on 

the  Native  American  reservations? 

MR. FELCHLE:  It's  the  same  exact  service  that I 

shared  with  you  for  the  rest  of  the  district. 

We're  sitting  at  97  percent  for  overnight.  That 

includes  everybody  in  the  State  of  North  Dakota, 

South  Dakota  and  Northwestern  Minnesota. 

MR. ACTON:  But  these  individuals  may  have  an 
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instance  where  they're  expecting  medication  or 

they  may  have  ordered  some  chickens  or  something 

else  that  we  regularly  described  as  being 

problematic  for  not  having  Saturday  delivery, 

but  your  answer  to  how  they  deal  with  it  is 

they've  adapted. 

MR. FELCHLE:  That's  what I would  say,  yes. 

MR. ACTON:  Thank  you. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: I have a question  for  Mr.  Felchle, 

which  is a question  that  Commissioner  Blair  has 

been  asking  at  these  hearings,  and  that  is: 

Have  you,  as a district  manager,  been  involved 

in  any  of  the  discussions  in  planning  for  the 

six  to  five  day?  Were  you  called  into 

headquarters  to  give  any  advice  or  participate? 

MR. FELCHLE: I was  not  involved  in a task 

force,  but  Mr.  Donaho  has  regular  Webinars  where 

he  shares  information  on  what's  going  on  with 

five-day-a-week  delivery,  finances  of  the 

organization,  service.  And  we're  allowed,  in 

those  Webinars,  to  submit  comments,  questions, 

and  he  will  address  those  during  those  Webinars. 

MS.  GOLDWAY: So you  submit  the  questions  in 

advance  of  the  Webinars? 

MR. FELCHLE:  While  we're  hearing  the 
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information.  But I feel  that  they've  done  an 

extremely -- 

MS. GOLDWAY: So in  those  Webinars  these  issues 

were  discussed  then? 

MR. FELCHLE : Yes. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Questions  that  area  managers 

raised  about  how  to  implement  it  or  what  the 

need  for  it  was? 

MR. FELCHLE:  Any  area  manager,  district 

manager,  whoever  is  on  the  telecom  could  submit 

a question  or a comment.  And I feel  that 

they've  done a very  good  job  of  keeping  me 

informed,  and  it's  my  job  to  keep  my  people 

informed . 
MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you.  That's  very  useful, 

too. 

Other  questions? 

I think  we've  asked  as  many 

questions  as  we  have  of  the  three  of  you. I 

thank  you  for  your  patience  and  responding  to, 

in  responding  to  our  questions.  And  any 

confusion  we  might  have  had  in  expressing 

ourselves,  you've  all  been  really  articulate  and 

provided  very  useful  information,  as  we've 

indicated,  with  some  perspective  that  we  hadn't 
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heard  from  other  panels  in  other  parts  of  the 

country. 

And I second  my  colleague, 

Commissioner  Acton's  comments  about  how 

impressed  we  are  with  the  dedication  and 

professionalism  of  all  the  people  who  work  in 

the  postal  service  who  we've  met  with,  whether 

they're  representing  employee  interests  or 

management  interests. I think  you're a 

remarkable  group  of  people,  and  we're  pleased  to 

be  in  the  same  family  as  you. 

MR. FELCHLE : Thank  you. 

MS. GOLDWAY: So thank  you  for  your  testimony. 

And  now  we'll  go  to  another  part  of 

the  program. 

Can  we  take a five-minute  break  for 

our  transcriber?  And  then  we'll  return  with  the 

opportunity  for  people  to  present  their 

comments,  and I have a couple  of  comments  to 

read  into  the  record. 

(Recess  taken  from 9:40 a.m.  to  9:50  a.m.) 

MS. GOLDWAY:  What I'd like  to do is  read  into 

the  record a couple  of  comments  that I have  from 

people  who  weren't  able  to  come. 

The  commission  heard  from  the 
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executive  director  of  the  Pine  Ridge  area 

Chamber  of  Commerce,  and  while  Mr.  Sobel  was 

unable  to  attend  the  hearing  today,  he  did 

request  input  from  the  Pine  Ridge  Chamber  of 

Commerce  members  be  submitted  into  the  record. 

"Executive  Director  Sobel  noted  that 

chamber  members  understand  the  postal  service's 

need  to  make  cuts,  but  because  the  chamber 

members'  businesses  are  located  in  such a remote 

area  and  they  feel  mail  is  slow  in  many  cases, 

the  Pine  Ridge  Chamber  of  Commerce  feels a 

Saturday  cut  would  slow  the  process  even  more. 

Therefore,  the  chamber's  consensus  is  in  favor 

of  six-day  delivery." 

And  then  we  have  one  witness  that 

could  not  be  with  us  today  for  medical  reasons, 

and  she  requested  that I read  her  comments  into 

the  record.  I'd  like  to  thank  Renee  Reed, 

postmaster  of  Meadow,  South  Dakota,  for  offering 

the  prospective  of a rural  postmaster,  one  who 

oversees  numerous  three-day  delivery  routes  on 

the  postal  services,  and  thank  her  for  her 

comments  on  the  postal  service's  proposal  to 

move  from  six-day  to  five-day  delivery. 

Ms. Reed's  testimony  expresses  her  concern  on 
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the  effect  of  eliminating a day  of  delivery  on 

those  routes  served  by  three-day  delivery.  She 

explains  that  three-day  routes  are  served  by a 

contract  carrier  either  on  Monday,  Wednesday  and 

Friday  or  Tuesday,  Thursday  and  Saturday  for 

areas  that  have  under a specific  threshold  of 

mail  or  population  density.  She  states  that 

many of these  routes  are  located  in  western 

South  Dakota,  with a few  in  North  Dakota, 

Montana  and  Wyoming. 

Ms.  Reed  emphasizes  the  importance 

of  service  in  those  areas  that  are  sparsely 

populated.  She  notes  the  inconvenience  some 

customers  who  have  businesses  have  with  the 

current  three-day  delivery. 

Again,  I'd  like  to  thank  Postmaster 

Renee  Reed  for  her  testimony  and  wish  her  good 

health.  Her  written  testimony  shall  be  included 

in  the  record  for  this  hearing. 

And  now I would  like  it  if  we  could 

perhaps  form a line so that  we  know  what  the 

record  order  is  of  people  who  are  going  to  be 

speaking.  Perhaps -- the  microphone  is  open 

here,  and  we'll  ask  everybody  to  say  their  name 

and  have  their  comment. 

CINDY K. PE'INGSTON, CSR, RPR 
(605)  877-1806 CindyFteporting@Ftap.Midco . N e t  



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

81 

I'm  told  that  we  have  two 

postmasters  in  the  audience  from  rural  areas, 

the  postmaster of Hermosa  and  Caputa,  and  if 

they  would  like  to  testify,  we'd  be  happy  to 

have  them  participate  as  well. 

So with  that,  any  of  you  who'd  like 

to  make a comment?  Three  minutes  each.  We're 

on a tight  schedule  here. 

MR. SASS: Good  morning.  My  name  is  Robert 

Sass,  S-a-s-s. I don't  want  to  say  that  too  fast 

because  it  sounds  different. I work  at  Western 

Mailers.  We're a first  and  third-class  business 

mailer. 

When I came  here  today,  initially I 

thought,  because  we're  only  open  five  days a 

week,  is  sure,  let's  get  rid  of  the  Saturday 

service.  But  the  more I listen,  I'm  having  some 

second  thoughts  here,  too. 

What  we  do  is  we  promote  primarily 

third-class  mail.  And  we've  got  customers  that 

really  try  to  time a lot  of  their  mailing  to 

arriving on Saturday, so we  process  their  mail 

on  Saturday. 

And I have  to  give  credit  to  the 

local  post  office,  they  do  an  excellent  job. 
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They  treat a lot of the  third-class  mail  as  if 

it's  first-class  mail,  and  it  gets  delivered  the 

next  day  locally. So we've  kind  of  gotten 

spoiled  by  that,  and so what's  happening  is  we 

got  customers  now  that  we're  going  to  drive  more 

and  more  people  to  use  third-class  mail 

services,  but  now  suddenly  it  can't  be 

delivered;  it's  going  to  be  delayed. 

We're  going  to  have a problem  with 

that  because  we've  got  more  and  more  customers 

using  third-class  mail  because,  instead  of  First 

Class  because  they're  looking  to  save  costs, 

too.  And so that  mailing  and  advertisement 

piece  for  mailing, a church  is  mailing  their 

normal  letter,  versus  First  Class,  that's a 

generic  letter,  we're  mailing  it  third  class  for 

them  because  they're  saving  money,  and  yet  the 

turnaround  has  been  very  good  for  them,  too. So 

suddenly  if  they  delay  and  mail  gets  delayed 

further  on,  they  may  have  some  second  thoughts 

and -- not  sure.  Granted,  it's a planning 

process.  People  are  going  to  have  to  think  and 

plan,  maybe  go  back a little  further  and  do 

that. 

So we're  trying  to  really  get  more 
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and  more  people  to  use  third-class  mail  because 

I know  that's a big  portion  of  your  business, 

too.  Otherwise a lot  of  folks  maybe  wouldn't 

even  mail  at  all  because  they're  only  going  to 

mail 150 pieces  but  they  need 200 for  third 

class  and  we're  actually  getting  in  the  mail 

more  pieces so their  volume  is  actually  going 

up. So we're  working  with  you.  We're  not 

against  you.  We're  working  with  you  in  the  more 

business  we  can  do. 

The  other  thing  is,  if  you've 

noticed  locally,  is  trying  to  save  costs. 

Recently  all  the  mail  that  used  to  be  going  to 

Sioux  Falls  now  is  being  diverted,  sent to 

Des  Moines  for  processing,  but  it's  going  to 

Gillette,  which  is a hundred  miles  to  the  west. 

So it's  bad  enough  to  go  360  miles  east,  to  come 

back 400 miles.  Now  we're  sending  it  to 

Des  Moines  which  is,  what,  800  miles,  to  bring 

it  all  back. 

So I'm  not  sure  where -- some  of  the 

costs.  Because  the  local  post  office,  they've 

had  the  flexibility  to  really, I think,  make 

that  decision  and  say,  Keep  it  here.  Why  am I 

going  to  ship  it  800  miles  east  when  it's  going 
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to  go 100 miles  west? So I just  hope  people 

take  that  into  consideration. 

MR. BEERT:  My  name  is  Jason  Beert.  B-e-e-r-t 

is  my  last  name. I am  the  local  president  of 

the  American  Postal  Workers  Union,  Local 760 

here  in  Rapid  City,  and I work  at  the  Rapid  City 

Processing & Distribution  Facility. 

I'm  not  going  to  go  over  the  main 

points  such  as  the  retirement  health  benefits 

that  we're  all  aware  of,  but I feel  that  the 

five-day  delivery  is a result  of  need  to  save 

money  because  of  lower  mail  volume  and 

increasing  costs,  but I feel  there  are  other 

things  that  could  be  done  to  save  money  instead 

of going  to  five-day  delivery  and  reducing 

service. 

One  of  those  things  the  postal 

service  has  implemented  is  the  new  delivery  unit 

relocation  where  they'll  take a small  post 

office,  take  the  carriers out, move  them  to 

another  post  office.  Now  say  that  they  don't 

need  the  clerks  in  the  small  post  office,  they 

don't  have  the  carriers  there, so they  don't 

need  to  sort  the  mail  to  those  carriers,  move 

them  to  that  other  post  office.  They  will  then 
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look  at  the  post  office  that  no  longer  has 

carriers  and  clerks  and  say,  We  have  now  saved 

$500,000  because  we  don't  put  that  money  into 

this  post  office.  When,  in  fact,  that  money  has 

now  moved  to  the  post  office  the  employees  have 

been  relocated  to.  There's a fuzzy  postal  math 

going  on. 

It's  repeatedly  brought  up,  through 

my  union  contacts  and  just  in  casual 

conversation,  that  the  postal  service  will 

willingly  violate  our  union  contract  knowinl 

they  will  have  to  pay  out  the  grievance  money 

but  it's  under  the  belief  that  the  grievance 

payout  money  comes  from a separate  fund  than, 

say,  overtime  payment.  Which,  in  essence,  it's 

all  one  fund. All the  money  comes  from  one 

treasury.  There's  not a separate  fund  for 

grievances,  separate  fund  for  overtime. 

There  has  been  over a 20  percent 

loss in  craft  jobs  throughout  the  United  States, 

while  it's  been  reported  that  headquarters  has 

increased  their  staffing  by 30 percent. I don't 

see  how  that's  saving  money.  When  you  get  rid 

of people  in  the  field,  you  need  to  get  that 

work  out,  and  we're  stressed  as  it  is  to  try  and 
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get  our  work  done. 

Another  concern  is  the 

pay-for-performance  money.  Most  companies I 

know  of,  if  you're  failing,  you're  doing a bad 

job,  you  won't  get  essentially a bonus  for  doing 

a bad  job,  which  continues  to  happen  in  the 

postal  service. I think  if  we're  in  such  dire 

straits,  maybe  the  pay  for  performance  needs  to 

be  looked  at  as  well. 

In  my  office  we  have  contracting  out 

of  jobs  that  could  be  done  in  the  postal  service 

such  as  custodial  jobs. To give  you  an  example, 

painting  our  parking  lot  stripes,  the  postal 

service  locally  said  they  don't  have  the  money 

to  buy  the  equipment  to  paint  those  stripes;  it 

will  just  cost  too  much  money, so instead  they 

will  contract  someone  out  to  paint  the  stripes. 

When  asked,  "HOW  often  do  you  do  this,"  they 

said,  "Every  year or two,  depending  on  how  the 

winter  went."  Cost  effectively  you  might  pay 

one  price  to  buy  the  equipment  once,  but  every 

two  years  you're  going  to  need  to  buy  paint. 

Whereas  every  two  years  you're  contracting 

someone.  For  how  long  will  this  go  on  before  it 

exceeds  the  cost  of  equipment? 
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Also,  one  of  the  things  that's 

brought  up  is  the  postal  service,  instead  of 

looking  at  other  opportunities,  is  just  looking 

how  to  cut,  where  there's  other  things  that 

could  be  done  such  as  offering  banking  services. 

They  could  do  bill  pay  on-line  since  that's a 

big  thing,  through  the  postal  service.  Since  we 

are  in a rural  community,  the  postal  service 

could  offer  Internet  access  at  the  post  office 

for  public  use. 

I know  Italia  Post  in  Italy  has 

offered a new  service  where  they  will  scan  your 

mail  in  and  e-mail  it  to  you  and  then  send  you 

your  mail  once a week. I mean,  there's  numerous 

things  that  can  be  looked  at  instead  of  cutting. 

Adding  service  is  always a bonus. 

And  to  finish  up, I mean,  we  are  the 

United  States  Postal  Service. I don't  see  how 

cutting  service out of  the  U.S.P.S.  will  save 

anything  and  increase  customer  appreciation. 

Thank  you. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

I'd  just  like to -- I was  told  that 

we  have a representative  from  Senator  Johnson's 

office  here  today,  and  I'd  like  to  acknowledge 

CINDY K. PE'INGSTON, CSR, RPR 
(605)  877-1806 CindyReporting@Rap.Midco.Net 

mailto:CindyReporting@Rap.Midco.Net


1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

your  participation.  Thank  you  very  much. 

And  as  we  mentioned  earlier, 

Congress  is  going  to  have  to  make a decision  on 

this, so you  know  who  to  talk  to  when  you  want 

to -- 

MS.  THOMAS:  You  can  talk  to  Rick  here.  He's 

from  Stephanie  Herseth  Sandlin's  office,  and 

that's  Rick  Hanson. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Terrific. 

being  here. 

MS. THOMAS:  Thank  you 

Thank  you  both  for 

very  much. 

MR. ENGEL:  Scott  Engel,  E-n-g-e-1.  I'm  the 

publisher  for  Tri-State  Livestock  News. 

Tri-State  Livestock  News  has  been  serving  the 

ranch  and  farm  community  in  our  region  covering 

nine  states  for 50 years.  We  solely  rely  on 

mailed  copies  and  do  not  have  any  other 

distribution  methods. 

The  Saturday  publish  and  mail  date 

has  been a long  tradition,  and  our  readers  rely 

on  receiving  timely  information  on  livestock 

sale  reports  and  articles  highlighting a variety 

of  technical  topics  to  ranchers  making  critical 

business  decisions.  Pushing  our  mail  date  to 

Monday  would  not  only  adversely  impact  our 
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business  but  the  thousands  of  ranching 

operations  we  represent. 

We  offer  the  most  timely  sale  result 

data  in  the  marketplace,  and  many  of  our  readers 

rely  on  our  paper  to  make  their  buying  and 

selling  decisions,  oftentimes  right  on  the  heels 

of  receiving  the  newspaper.  Most  of  our  readers 

do  not  seek  this  information  on-line. 

Oftentimes  the  livestock  health  bulletins  are 

critical  to  reach  our  readers  as  quickly  as 

possible. For all  these  reasons  we  and  our 

readers  would  be  adversely  affected  by  losing 

Saturday  mail  service. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

MS.  MORRIS:  My  name  is  Linda  Morris, 

M-o-r-r-i-s. I am a mail  processor  at  the  Rapid 

City  Post  Office,  and  I'd  like  to  make a 

correction  on  this  man's  statement.  He  said 

mail  processing  will  not  change.  That  is  bull 

jar.  It  will  change  because  you  have  Saturday 

mail;  you  have  Sunday  mail,  and  then  you  have 

Monday  mail.  And  if  you  have a holiday  on 

Monday,  duh,  it's  four  days.  Just  wanted  to 

make  the  correction. 

Thank  you. 
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MR. WOBIG:  Hello.  My  name  is  James  Wobig, 

W-o-b-i-g.  I'm a retired  letter  carrier,  but  I'm 

here  to  speak  as a citizen. 

I think  the  American  people  look  at 

the  post  office  and  they  want  certain  things. 

They  want  accessibility,  reliability, 

dependability.  And I think  reduction  of 

Saturday  delivery  would  be  just  devastating  to 

some  people,  especially  rural  America.  They 

depend  on  the  postal  service  for a lot  of 

things,  medications.  And I do a lot  of  stuff  on 

EBay. I intentionally  seek  out  the  postal 

service  for  delivery  because  it  does  deliver  on 

Saturday,  and I get a more  timely  delivery  that 

way. 

I think  the  postal  service  is  very 

shortsighted  in  trying  to  eliminate a day  of 

delivery  as a way  of  saving  money. I think  the 

American  people  would  gladly -- their  biggest 

complaint  about  the  postal  service  is  not  that 

it  doesn't  deliver  or  doesn't  deliver  timely, 

it's  the  availability.  The  most  complaints I 

hear  from  people,  both  my  former  customers  when 

I did  deliver  mail,  was  that  the  postal  service 

isn't  available  to  them,  "It's  only  open  when I 

CINDY K. PE'INGSTON, CSR, RPR 
(605)  877-1806 CindyReporting@Ftap.Midco.Net 

mailto:CindyReporting@Ftap.Midco.Net


- 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 - 

91 

have  to  work. I can't  go  to  the  postal  service 

to  get  stuff  because,  or  to  mail  because  the 

lines  are  excessive."  Those  are  things  that  are 

easily  addressed  by  the  postal  service  to 

increase  service,  not  decrease  service,  and I 

think  that's  what  they  need  to  do. 

Thank  you. 

MS. PUMMEL: My  name  is  Patricia  Pummel, 

P-u-m-m-e-1.  I'm  from  Rapid  City. 

The  post  office  is  its  product,  its 

people,  and  personally I feel  that  you  do  an 

excellent  job  for  service  in  Rapid  City. I 

moved  here  in  '93  from  Minneapolis,  Minnesota. 

I consistently  utilize  the  mail  service  for 

sending  out  materials,  obviously  to  meeting 

planners  throughout  the  nation.  Thus, I utilize 

the  post  office a lot  as a big  part  of  my 

budget. 

When I moved  to  Rapid  City,  which I 

brought  that  business  with  me,  night  and  day. 

The  service  here,  five  star,  compared  to -- and 

I'm  not  belittling  Minneapolis. I loved my home 

in  Minneapolis.  Nonetheless,  the  service  here 

for  my  little  business  was  superior,  relatively 

speaking,  regarding  the  mail  service. 
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Personally  again,  I'm  going  to  agree 

with a couple of gentlemen,  the  gentlemen  that 

were  sitting  here  earlier, I don't -- I can't 

really  speak  to  that,  that  sixth  day,  the 

Saturday. I don't  think  that  we  should 

eliminate  it,  but,  at  the  same  time,  again,  I'm 

not  on  the  committee  budget,  as  you  folks  in 

front  of  me  are.  Nonetheless, I do  believe  that 

we  surely  could  increase  our  revenues. 

You've  got  an  abundance of 

individuals  in  the comunity. I'll  have  to  just 

refer  to  Rapid  City  right  now.  We're a very 

small  rural  town.  By  the  way,  some  of  these 

pictures  you  see  were  taken  in  the 1800s. Some 

of  the  areas,  the  rural  areas  still  look  like 

that, so yes,  you're  in a rural  setting.  But 

with  that  said,  we  love  to  be  involved  in  our 

communities.  And  I'm  not  referring  to  Rapid 

City.  I'm  referring  to  this  area  that  the 

district  manager  referred  to,  North  Dakota, 

South  Dakota,  and  other  areas  as  well.  We  want 

to  be  involved  in  our  communities. 

There's  many  events  that  could  take 

place  at  the  post  office,  utilize  our  building 

much,  much  better  than  we  do  today, comunity 
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activities.  We  could  showcase  your  product  and 

your  people.  How  often  have  we  heard  about 

these  five-star  awards  that  you're  giving  away? 

Maybe I read  it  in  the  paper  once. I need  to 

hear  it  more,  and I need  to  know  those  people 

better  than I do  from  just  reading  it  in  the 

paper  one  time. 

We  can,  again,  definitely  offer  more 

services.  You  could  have a Farmer's  Market  in 

your  new  parking  lot  on  Saturdays  if  you  should 

choose  to.  But,  nonetheless,  there's  just  many, 

many  revenue-generating  events,  and  we  could 

elevate  this  department  to a very  high  level. 

Thank  you  very  much  for  listening. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

MR. KASTEN:  My  name  is  Doug  Kasten.  That's 

K-a-s-t-e-n. I live  in  Spearfish. 

My  mother  lives  in  Sioux  Falls  city 

limits  and  receives  most  of  her  prescription 

medication  through  the  post  office.  She  lives 

approximately  five  miles  from  the  pharmacy  that 

she  uses,  but  she  doesn't  drive, so she  relies 

on  the  postal  service.  When  she  needs  drugs, 

she  says,  Okay,  today  is  Friday.  She  doesn't 

wait  till  Friday  to  order  for  Saturday.  She 
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orders  the  week  before so they  arrive 

accordingly.  And  she  has  other  people  that  she 

can  count  on  for  transportation to get  to  the 

pharmacy,  should  she  need. 

In  Spearfish I just  found  out  now 

this  afternoon  that  our  post  office  received  an 

accommodation  (sic)  for  great  customer  service. 

As Ms. Pummel  just  stated, I didn't  see  anything 

in  the  local  paper  about  it  at  all. I subscribe 

to  the  local  Spearfish  paper. I never  saw 

mention  of  it  at  all  that  our  Spearfish  Post 

Office  had  provided  exemplary  customer  service. 

I've  used  their  services  for  many  years  and 

always  been  very  happy  and  satisfied  with 

everything. 

I think  if  the  post  office  should 

decide  to  go  to a five-day  delivery,  I'm  not  for 

or  against  it. I don't  know  enough  about  it  yet 

to  form  an  opinion;  that  people  in  rural  areas 

would  learn  to  adjust  their  schedules  based  on 

the  five-day  delivery  versus  six-day. 

Businesses  such  as  the  Tri-State  Livestock  News 

would  learn  to  adjust  their  schedule  to 

accommodate  that  particular  change  in  service. 

In  rural  areas,  like  was  mentioned 
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previously  by  both  panels,  you  have  to  learn  to 

adjust  to  doing  different  things  accordingly. 

You  don't  get  all  the  services  you've  got  in 

Minneapolis  or  Denver. 

I also  agree  that  it  is  kind  of 

silly  to  send  Spearfish  mail  from  Spearfish  to 

Rapid  City  to  be  processed,  turn  around  and  send 

it  back  to  Spearfish  again.  That  doesn't  make 

sense to drive -- to  send  the  mail 50 miles  down 

to  Rapid  to  be  processed  and  then  turn  around 

and 50 miles  back  to  Spearfish  because  it's 

going  across  town. I mail,  you  know,  business 

mail  in  Spearfish  and  it  has  to  go  down  to 

Rapid,  or  in  the  case of, say,  Des  Moines,  to  go 

to  Gillette.  Perhaps  there's  cuts  that  could  be 

looked  at  there,  rearranging  things. 

I heard  cormnents  on  the  street 

coming  in  here  this  morning  where  top  management 

of  the  postal  service  have  received  very 

generous  benefit  raises,  pay  raises, 

compensation  raises,  whatever  you  want  to  call 

it,  recently;  whereas,  local  carriers  and  post 

office  workers  are  getting  small  raises.  Why  is 

that?  Why  do  they,  at  the  headquarters  level, 

need  to  receive a 50 percent  pay  raise  when a 
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local  carrier  is  doing  all  the  work,  he's 

providing  excellent  service  to  his  customers  and 

he  gets a 2 percent  raise?  There's  another  way 

of  looking  at  cuts.  Perhaps  those  individuals 

at  the  top  don't  need  their  50  percent  pay 

raises,  or  whatever  it  may  have  been,  to  do 

their  jobs  very  adequately. 

Thank  you. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

Anyone  else? 

MR. DUFFY:  My  name  is  Brad  Duff) ?, D-u-f-f-l 

I'd  like  to  talk  about  my  customers. 

I'm  on  one  of  them  almost  150-mile  routes.  And 

when I get  in  the  rural  part  of  my  route,  these 

are  family  farm  businesses,  you  know,  ranches, 

and  these  are  probably  the  people  that,  if  they 

do  have  Internet,  they  don't  use  Internet  to 

order  products;  they'll  make  the  phone  call. So 

even  if  they  have  Internet,  it's  not a business 

tool.  And  these  people  are  generally  older. 

I'd  say  the  majority  of  my  people  in  the  rural 

part  are  age  60  or  above, so they  do  not  use -- 

they're  the  people  that  probably  don't  use  the 

Internet  like  your  younger  generation. 

So on a rural  route  that  type  of 
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miles,  we're  looking  45  miles  to  drive  to  town 

for  my  outlying  customers,  and I imagine  they 

try  to  limit  their  trips  to  town. 

Thank  you. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you.  That  was  great. 

One  more, I think,  and  then  we're 

going  to  have  to  end  the  session. 

MR. FJERESTAD:  Brent  Fjerestad. I have  to 

spell  my  last  name  anyway,  F-j-e-r-e-s-t-a-d. 

Good  morning.  Thank  you  all  for 

coming. I am  the  State  Association  of  Letter 

Carriers  for  the  State  of  South  Dakota,  and I am 

also a city  carrier  in  Sioux  Falls.  And  our 

biggest  concern  is  our  harsh  winters  in  South 

Dakota,  especially  for  the  rural  parts  of  the 

state,  to  expect  our  patrons  to  drive  to a 

P.O. Box  to  get  their  mail  when  we,  as  city  and 

rural  carriers,  deliver  that  peace  of  mind  to 

them  six  days a week,  whether  it  be  medication 

like  you've  heard  before. 

Another  issue  is  the  prefunding 

issue  that  you  are  all  aware  of.  Excuse  me  for 

a second,  I've  got  to  get  my  thoughts.  We  would 

have  made a profit  without  having,  making  those 

payments  for  the  last  five  years. So even  in 
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these  harsh  economic  times,  we're  still a viable 

business. 

So thank  you  for  your  time. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Okay. 

We've  got  two  more.  These  are  the 

last  two  comments.  That's  it. No more. 

MR. BAMGARTNER: My  name  is  Chris 

Baumgartner,  B-a-u-m-g-a-r-t-n-e-r. 

I'm a son of a 36-year  mail  carrier, 

and  he's  still  working, so dedication I guess. 

But  my  job, I handle  sensitive  immigration 

paperwork,  and I send a lot  of  information  and 

papers  overseas.  But  unfortunately I can't  use 

the  post  office  because  of  tracking  and  whatnot. 

It  ends  here  state  side.  It  doesn't  go  over  to 

Korea or China. I can't  follow,  you  know,  the 

process  of  mail. 

I mean,  the  mail  service  should  be 

adding  more  services  like  tracking,  you  know, 

abilities,  or  with  the  bar  code  that's,  you 

know,  sprayed  onto  your  mail,  each  individual 

mail,  you  could  track  each  letter  going  to  your 

household  and  you'd  know,  you  know,  what  pieces 

of  mail  you're  getting  in a day.  Like I may  be 

getting  three  magazines  or  three  first-class 
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pieces  of  mail  and  whatnot.  They  should  be 

adding  more  services  rather  than  reduction  of 

service. 

Thank  you. 

MS.  GOLDWAY:  Just a little  advertisement,  the 

postal  service  does  now  have  Global  Express  Mail 

service  which  does  do  tracking, I believe, 

through  the  receiving  country. So you  should -- 

you  could  find  out a bit  more  about  that.  It 

does  seem  to  be a growing  business  that  the 

postal  service  is  working  on. 

MR. ANDERSON: My  name  is  Mark  Anderson, 

Anderson,  s-o-n.  My  contention  would  be  that 

this  is  not  only  about  Saturday  service  but  it's 

also  about  jobs.  We  live  in a country  where a 

majority  of  working  families  were  once  able  to 

enjoy  prosperity  of  the  middle  class.  Today 

that  status  is  in  jeopardy  as  real  wages 

stagnate,  healthcare  and  tuition  costs  continue 

to  rise  and  jobs  leave  this  country  at  an 

alarming  rate. 

As  the  gap  between  the  rich  and  poor 

continues  to  widen,  fewer  families  can  reach  or 

maintain a middle-class  status.  In  South  Dakota 

specifically,  the  lowest  average  wages  in  the 
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nation  of  $16.53  an  hour  and a median  family 

income  of  $51,000 a year,  show  that  the  majority 

of South  Dakota  working  families'  wages  are 

closer  to  the  federal  poverty  wage  than a 

middle-class  income. 

And so my  contention  would  be  that, 

based  on  the  statements  of  people  about  the 

number  of  jobs,  we  could  potentially  lose  1,400 

jobs  in  this  region.  That  could  potentially  be 

700  middle-class  jobs  in  South  Dakota.  During a 

recession I don't  think  we  can  afford  to  lose 

those  middle-class jobs, and so I would  hope  you 

could  express  that  opinion  to  Congress  when  you 

make  your  report. 

Thank  you. 

MS. GOLDWAY:  Thank  you. 

Well, I want  to  thank  all  of  you 

because  you  really  covered a wide  range  of 

topics  that  we  didn't  cover  in  the  hearing 

ourselves,  certainly  many  we  haven't  heard  in 

other  parts  of  the  country.  And I thank  you  for 

your  patience  and  your  interest. 

We  do  have  our  own  website, 

www.PRC.Gov,  and  we  have  our  Director  of 

Government  Affairs  and  Public  Relations, 
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Ann  Fisher,  who's  organized  these  hearings. 

She's  from  South  Dakota  herself  and  will  be 

happy  to  take  inquiries  from  you  at  our 

Washington,  D.C.  telephone  number  or  mail 

address  as  well. 

As we  mentioned  before,  this  is a 

process  that's  going  to  go  on  probably  until 

October  when  we  make  our  final  decision,  and 

we'll  be  happy  to  have  input  and  comments  from 

you  during  that  whole  time;  although,  most  of 

the  decision  making  and  review  will  take  place 

during  the  summer  months  of  July  and  August. 

It's  been  our  pleasure  to  be  here 

and  thank  you  very  much. I hope  that  this  is  an 

opportunity  for  you  to  continue  to  think  of  the 

Postal  Regulatory  Commission  as  your 

representatives  in  Washington  and  that  you  will 

call  on  us  when  you  have  concerns  and  issues 

with  regard  to  postal  matters. 

Once  again,  thank  you,  and I call 

this  meeting  adjourned. 

(Proceedings  concluded  at  11:18  a.m., 

June  23,  2010. ) 
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA) 

COUNTY OF PENNINGTON ) 
) ss. 

I, CINDY K. PFINGSTON, h e r e b y   c e r t i f y  that 

the  foregoing  pages  numbered  from 1 to  101,  inclusive, 

constitute a full,  true  and  accurate  record  of  the 

proceedings  had  in  the  above  matter,  all  done  to  the  best 

of  my  skill  and  ability. 

DATED t h i s   1 4 t h   d a y  of J u l y ,  2 0 1 0 .  

ORIGINAL 
CINdY K. PFINGSTON 

My commission e x p i r e s :  

F e b r u a r y  4 ,  2 0 1 6  
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10116  10117  10120  1118  13/21  19/18 buy [4] 56/13  86/15  86/21  86/22 

change [26] 312  415  5/18  1016 51/14  51/18  7919  80114  94/22  96/15 
chance [2] 40117  5915 1314  1412  14/15  1816  2013  29/10 
chamber's [l]  79/13 businesses [l5]  11/10  12/11  12/18 
7911 1 99/10 

chamber [5] 7912  7914  7917  7918 8911  91/20  91/24  95/12  96/19  9812 
challenges [2] 3514  44/19 52/13  6313  81/12  8312  83/10  88/24 
6219  70122  70123 32/11  40122  4119  41/21  5113  51/19 
3415  3415  42/22  4912  4913  55/25 1913  20115  2216  2613  2716  3213 
6/10  6/12  6/23  716  2319  23/10  26/21 1318 13/22  1416  15/13  15/17  16/14 

chairman [21] 117  118  213  215  619 business [35] 4/24  5/21  1117  12/13 
chair [4] 31/20  33/13  4313  62/12 burdensome [l]  1414 
cetera [2] 13/16  7115 burden [l]  48/25 
certify [ 11  10215 bunch [l]  19/24 
100/20 bulletins [I]  8919 

certainly [4] 6/25  21/10  62/25 bull [l]  89/19 
certain [4] 40111  5814  64/22  9015 bulk [l]  34/22 
cents [2] 2411  2417 built-in [l]  10119 
centers [2] 13/19  3611 built [l]  10119 
center [l]  34/22 building [l]  92/24 
cent [l]  2412 build [2] 1719  17/10 
census [l]  6011 budget [ 21 91/18  9217 
causing [l]  20124 91/20 
cause 131 12/16  27/10  50115 brought [5] 19/22  50123  8518  8712 
cattle [l]  6012 broadcast [l]  4214 
casual [l]  8519 broadband [l]  57/16 
cash [l]  66/14 bringing [2] 6/13  7216 
cases [2] 50121  79/10 bring [4] 25/23  63/15  69/18  83/19 
case [5] 8/23  912  3015  50114  95/14 brief [l]  7/13 
cars [l]  6014 brevity [l]  35/21 
Carriers' [ 11  4911 1 Brent [l]  9718 
97/18 break [4] 5017  5019  6914  78/16 
84/20  84/23  84/24  8512  95/22  97/12 Brad [l]  96/11 
5518  66/12  66/24  67/24  68/22  70118 boy [l]  68/25 

carriers [16]  36/10  53/11  53/21  54/20  55/18  71/23 
carrier's [l]  52/21 boxes 171 3616  37/21  4212  5111 
7212  7315  8014  9012  9611  97/13  9815  55/12  58/24  58/24  97/17 
70117  7114  71/11  71/12  71/18  71/19 box [SI 4/13  50119  54/14  54/23 
54/17  66/21  6714  6715  6717  68/23 951 1 
50124  52/19  52/22  5314  5412  54/13  17/22  17/25  32/19  43/10  8819  90123 

carrier [29] 33/16  3618  4919  49/10 both [ll]  4/19  9/18 1111 16/12 
carefully [l]  48/10 

C 4111  4216  54/24  5516  58/22  6519 
73/25  89/19  89/20  94/24 

:alendar [l]  37/24 
changes [16] 1/14 417  12/12  13/25 Ealifornia [l]  6014 
changed [2] 10112  54/21 

church 111  82/14 :areer [3] 34/17  34/24  4318 
Chrysler [l]  5211 :ard [l]  1917 
Chris [l]  9817 Eaputa [ 11  8113 
chosen [l]  6018 :spital [l]  1419 
chose 113  4916 Eapacity [ 11  43/17 
choosing [l]  58/16 capabilities [l]  69/17 
75/14  93/11 :annot [l]  50120 

choose [6] 911  1313  39/19  7512 :ancellations [ 11  3915 
choices [3] 27/19  40124  75/10 :anceling [l]  5114 
choice [5] 1514  1518  2512  2811  2811 9213  98/13  98/16 
China [l]  98/16 :ant [SI 2611  31/14  5417  8217  9111 
chicks [2] 49/25  6318 87/15  8816  9318  9413  99/23  100/11 
chickens [l]  7612 6111  6814  6911  6914  78/16  83/10 
Chicago [l]  22/14 4119  41/11  42/13  56/12  56/19  58/20 
charge [2] 71/15  103111 22/25  27/18  28/22  28/25  3517  40115 
character [l]  36/18 11/25  12/19  17/23  18/13  18/14 
channels [2] 11/23  11/25 :an [33] 9/22  9/25  1015  10121 
channel [l]  11/18 :ame [4] 22/14  5112  53/16  81/14 
5818 :alls [l]  45/16 

changing [4] 15/16  39/18  42/25 :alled 141 2612  29/24  3115  76/14 
4019  41/22  43/23  4411  62/19  69/21 96/18  101118  101120 
22/21  22/23  37/24  38/14  4016  4016 :all [7] 52/23  63/18  64/11  95/21 



commission's [6] 5/15  7/22  8/12 
d 28/13  35/17 6218 
:INDY [4] 10215  102113  10311 

iitizen [SI 4/24  5/20 7/23  43/16 
commissioners [SI 117 3/19 617 iircumstances [ 11 613 
26/20 3416  4913  70121 76/10 7814 103123 

Commissioner [9] 119  216  715 

competition [3] 11/21  31/17  31/18 98/25  99/17  99/24 10015 100/10 
compensation [l] 95/21 82/11  82/12  82/15  82/16 8311  8316 
compassionate [l] 61/19 59/15  81/12  81/20 8211  8212  8216 
compared [2] 45/21  91/21  25/22 2613  2619 28/18 3119  4515 
comparable [l] 5317 24/25  25/11  25/11  25/12  25/20 
company [2] 16/17 2313 19/24 2017 23/15  23/17  23/22 2411 
4714  8613 :lass 1391 6/19 1115 18/21 1912 

companies [5] 12/13 18/20 1917 :larify [ 11 63/21 
9211 1 92/25 :ivil [l] 5217 

community [5] 53/15 8718 88/15 10312 
92/22 92/12  92/19  93/18 9517 97/13  97/17 

communities [4] 315 48/15  92/18 8416  8416 89/17 9119 91/12  91/19 
4117 42/10 7018  60112  6113 66/20  67/16 7516  7517 

communications [SI 11/15 1913 4916  4919 49/13 58/10  59/20  59/22 
communicate [l] 4013 12/23 4318 43/10 4813 48/18 4914 
committee [3] 5/15  47/15 9217 34/10  34/13  34/21 3618 38/25 40118 
65/10  69/22 2/21  2/25 6/13  6/15 916  1014 33/16 

committed [SI 4117 45/11 6515 :ity [49] 1/22  1/24 219 2/16  2/18 
commitments [l] 2915 :ithens [4] 2/25  46/12 56/11 56/16 
4519 53/15  54/22 6512 litizenry [ 11 7/19 

commitment [7] 12/21 40114  4517 3013 
7/12 8/19 

:learly [2] 4015 61/22 complaint [l] 90120 
:lem [3] 33/10 3417 53/25 complaints [ 11 90122 
:lerks [2] 84/22 8512 completely [2] 5219 62/18 
:lients [ 11 18/25 Compliment [ 11 47/14 
:lose [2] 2219 51/13 comprised [ 11 1119 
:losed [2] 6718 67/18 compromised [2] 2711  3114 
:loser [2] 1012  10014 compromising [ 11 6313 
:losing [2] 4819 48/21 computer [2] 27/22 43/11 
:ode [l] 98/20 concept [3] 516 23/13 2814 
:odes [l] 35/15 concern [7] 1018  10113 62/25 6315 
:olleague [l] 7813 79/25 8612 97/14 
:olleagues [l] 5919 concerned [I] 2818 
:olledion [5] 4/12  12/23  37/15 concerning [I] 35/19 
4212 58/24 concerns [9] 1116  1219 26/23 
:ollections 131 13/15 20113  4213 26/24  63/10  63/15  64/12  65/22 
:ollectively [ 11 61/22 101118 
:ombination [l] 63/14 concluded [ 13 101122 
Zombined [l] 15/15 concludes [ 13 3312 
:ombines [l] 47/15 condition [2] 44/12 5615 
:ome [12] 2/24  5/13  6/14 719 1212 conduct [l] 39/19 
19/18 3119  3315 51/24  67/19  78/24 conducting [l] 4/25 
83/17 confer [l] 3713 
:omes [6] 31/18  34/11  41/19 6016 confirmed [l] 3/20 
85/14  85/16 confusion [l] 77/22 
:oming [ 131 2018 28/17 3219 32/21 congratulate [ 13 6211 
34/25 4016 42/23 4914 58/15  63/20 
7018 95/18  97/11 

Congress [22] 519 5/12 5/13 5/17 

consistent [l] 48/12 101116  102114  10315  10319  103112 
consignment [ 11 36/21 5614 61/23  63/25  69/22  78/25 
considers [l] 5612 38/15  42/16  42/22 4416  4819 48/17 
considering [2] 4/11  21/17 1615  2113 29/14 3017 34/10  38/10 
considered [4] 5/17 4511  4512 4816 4/14  4/25  5/14  7/25 817 8/22 1214 
consideration [2] 711  8412 2/15  2/24 319  319 3/24 414  418 4/10 
7218 :ommission [41] 112  214  217 2/14 

consider [5] 27/21 4418 44/20 4716 :ommercial [2] 39/19  41/18 
consequences [2] 12/14  42/24 :ommerce [3] 7912  7915 79/11 
consensus [ 11 79/13  79/23  95/17 9816  10119 
connection [l] 65/12 76/21 7814 78/19  78/19  78/23  79/17 
conjunction [l] 70118 :omments [13] 911  5811 72/10 
Congressional [2] 518 44/16 80125  8117 
51/23  63/24 6412  6415  8813 100/13 :omment [SI 26/16  32/16  77/11 
3019  30114  3812 44/20 4513 51/21 :ommensurate [ 11 2418 
1214 15/25 1617 19/19 2112 29/20 

100/12 competitors [ 11 4718 

:onsistently [l] 91/14 
lonsolidated [ 11 4713 
:onsolidations [3] 45/24  46/15 
471 1 
:onstitUte [ 11 10217 
:onsultant [ 11 15/23 
:onsumer [7] 11/22 1312  1317 
13/18  15/13 2012  4411 
:onsumers [6] 1118 11/15  12/11 
12/19  27/25 2919 
:ontact [2] 32/23  39/15 
:ontacts [l] 8519 
:ontention [2] 99/13 10016 
:ontinental [ 11 2212 
:ontingent [l] 3811 
:ontinue [lo] 818 1211 37/18 37/23 
41/11  48/10  62/17  73/17  99/19 
101115 
:ontinues [3] 39/21 8616 99/23 
:ontinuous [ 1) 40114 
:ontract [7] 36/11 3711 58/11 
71/12 8014 85/11  86/17 
:ontracting [2] 86/10  86/23 
:ontrol [l] 615 
:ontroversial [ 11 4413 
:onvenience [2] 2812 36/19 
:onversation [ 13 85/10 
:ooperation [ 11 6411 1 
:ooperative [2] 7015  7016 
:oordinate 113 4218 
:opies 121 88/17 103115 
:oping [l] 74/22 
:orner [I] 35/13 
:ornerstone [ 11 7/23 
:orrect [7] 17/18 1919 53/22  55/16 
55/19 5816 71/24 
:orrected [l] 2117 
Zorrecting [l] 5218 
:orrection [2] 89/18 89/24 
:orrespondence [2] 2615 26/13 
:ost [17] 614 14/13  14/19 20125 
22/23  22/24  24/22  29/13  29/15 
29/17 3218 38/12  38/18  45/22 86/ l t  
86/20  86/25 
:ost-saving [ 11 45/22 
:osts [22] 11/22  13/13  13/18 2011 
22/15  22/20  24/17 2516 25/14 2619 
31/14 3717 43/21 4411 47/19 5213 
62/25  82/12  83/12  83/22  84/13 
99/19 
:odd [43] 314 14/22 1512 17/16 
19/13  19/17  19/25 2015  20125  22/11 
2315 23/11 2712  2819  3111 39/23 
44/18 5017  50110  50115  5415  6217 
63/18  74/14  77/10  79/16 80120 
84/14  86/11 8715  8716  8719  9219 
92/23 9311  9319 93/12  95/15  98/22 
9919  10018 100/9  100/13 
:ouldn't [l] 13/21 
:ounsel [l] 42/16 
:ount [l] 9413 
:ountry [12] 2/21  6/17  16/22 18/21 
21/20  34/15  61/12 7812  9918 99/15 
99/20  100/21 
:ounts [2] 2016  2018 
:ounty [2] 7519  10212 
:ouple [3] 78/19 78/23 9212 
:ourse [SI 6/14  26/23  51/14  65/23 
6815 
:over [l] 100/19 



C 
:overed [l]  100/18 
:overing [l]  88/15 
:raft [2] 34/19  85/20 
xeating [l]  4617 
:redit [2] 1916  81/24 
xitical [SI 5/25  11/14  1913  1914 
4014  47/21  88/23  89/10 
:rop [l]  50117 
:ross [l]  4/16 
:ross-examine [ 11  4/16 
:urrent [4] 46/24  5516  59/13  80115 
zurrently [5] 16/25  52/13  72/12 
72/13  7413 
Euster [l]  47/25 
:ustodial 111  86/12 
:ustomer [17]  1018  10115  10121 
2716  2717  3519  36/19  41/22  42/10 
43/12  47/21  47/24  4812  6618  87/20 
9417  94/12 
zustomers [53] 513  1213  13/10 
27/11  32/10  32/12  36/22  39/15 4014 
4015  40110  40111  40116  40120  40122 
40125  4119  41/18  41/21  41/24  4211 
48/14  49/21  5013  50125  5116  51/17 
55/12  59/21  59/22  61/20  6616  66/11 
66/12  66/16  66/19  6712  69/12  70115 
70116  71/23  72/18  72/19  72/24  7315 
80114  81/20  8215  82/10  90123  9612 
96/12  9712 
cut [5] 31/14  43/21  47/19  79/12 
8714 
cuts [3] 7918  95/15  9614 
cutting [6] 19/14  3214  3215  3218 
87/15  87/19 

D 
D-u-f-f-y [ 11  9611 1 
D.C [3]  512  38/11  10114 
daily [l]  50123 
Dakota [49] 1/24  6/13  16/15  18/25 
1918  19/11  32/23  33/13  33/17  34/10 
34/11  34/14  34/18  35/11  35/12 
35/13  3612  3613  36/13  4313  47/12 
49/11  5011  50122  5411  5412  57/14 
57/19  59/23  6012  60122  6114  6117 
7312  75/17  75/23  75/24  79/19  8019 
8019  92/20  92/21  97/12  97/15  99/24 
10013  100/10  10112  10211 
Dakotas [3] 33/10  3418  61/13 
Dakotas' [12]  34/25  3513  3515  351.5 
35/21  35/25  3616  36/20  38/21  3917 
4118  47/14 
data [3] 38/17  57/21  8914 
date [SI 7/25  37/25  4115  4116  4814 
65/17  88/19  88/24 
DATED [l]  102/10 
dates [2] 13/15  14/16 
day [94] 1/13  1/13  3/15  3/15  516 
5/10  10114  10119  12/19  1311  1512 
1514  1517  1619  1812  19/15  20122 
21/17  22/17  23/20  2413  24/20  2512 
2513  2719  2719  2911  3116  3719  37/12 
3816  4011  4018 4115 41/14  4217  4417 
44/18  44/23  44/25  4514  4517  4518 
45/19  45/25  46/20  48/11  5119  51/14 
52/21  5319  54/12  55/11  5817  58/12 
5912  5913  5917  59/18  60116  60119 
61/10  61/11  62/20  63/12  6812  72/13 
72/20  72/25  7315  7316  73/14  74/22 

76/14  76/19  79/14  79/21  79/24 
79/24  8011  8012  8013  80115  8213 
84/11  84/15  90117  91/20  9214  94/17 
94/21  94/21  98/24  102110 
Day-to-day [l]  3/15 
days [26] 21/12  21/13  21/13  23/16 
2416  24/19  2513  28/17  42/25  4414 
45/13  45/15  59/12  59/14  66/16 
72/18  73/20  7414  7418  7419  74/12 
74/13  74/25  81/15  89/23  97/19 

DC [2] 113  10317 
deal [l]  7615 
dealing [2] 4418  4612 
death [l]  51/11 
debate [l]  30116 
decide [4] 6519  72/22  72/23  94/17 
decision [lo]  1818  3011  48/21 
63/23  63/25  6415  83/24  8813  10118 
101/11 

decision-making [ 11  3011 
decisions [2] 88/24  8916 
decline [Z] 3914  3915 
declined [l]  3913 
declines [ 11  43/25 
decrease [3]  38/24  39/12  9115 
decreasing [l]  1615 
dedicated [l]  3516 
dedication [2] 7815  98/10 
defer [ 11  3811 1 
deficit [l]  52/10 
definitely [3] 27/24  35/23  9318 
definitively [ 11  21/24 
delay [3]  17/10  17/12  82/19 
delayed 161 4519  45/11  5815  58/12 
8218  82/19 
delays [3]  1711  1715  31/13 
deliberations [ 11  22/22 
deliver [6] 52/20  90113  90121 
90121  90124  97/18 
delivered [9] 14/17  5018  50111 
5914  6318  64/21  71/21  8212  8218 

deliveries [3]  3618  3619  66/24 
delivering [2] 49/18  5819 
delivery [ 1191 
DELIVERY/MAILING [ 11  103117 
demand [ 11  11/23 
density [ 11  8017 
Denver 111  9514 
department [2] 7517  93/13 
depend [2] 49/17  90/10 
dependability [ 11  9017 
dependent [ 11  60123 
depending [l]  86/19 
depends [l]  7311 
derived [ 11  51/20 
Des [3]  83/15  83/19  95/14 
describe [l]  8/14 
described [l]  7613 
Description [l]  103111 
designed [l]  41/25 
despite [3] 12/21  3514  39/11 
detailed [2] 21/21  3817 
details [2] 35/19  38/12 
determined [l]  3718 
devastating [ 11  9018 
develop [l]  13/17 
developed [l]  7014 
dial [1]  57/18 
dial-up 113  57/18 
Diary [l]  27/15 

lid [13] 2014  21/17  21/18  2219 
23/14  70117  71/18  71/18  71/19  7215 
7514  7913  90124 
lidn't [4] 20116  2218  9418  100/19 
lifference [6] 16/20  16/24  16/24 
59/10  66/11  67/15 
lifferent [6] 1516  4317  45/15  58/17 
81/11  9512 
lifficult [5] 613  2715  40124  44/12 
4818 
lifficulties [l]  44/10 
lig [l]  6911 
ligit [l]  35/15 
liminish [l]  39/24 
liminution [l]  7117 
lire [l]  8617 
lirect [4] 17/20  1816  18/10  42/10 
lirection [2] 15/11  46/10 
lirectly [5] 512  514  8/10  45/20 
4614 
lirector [5] 34/21  34/21  7911  7916 
100124 
lisagree [l]  6517 
liscuss [ 11  19/13 
liscussed [2] 19/20  7714 
liscussion [l]  2519 
liscussions [l]  76/13 
lispatch [l]  6812 
lissatisfaction [ 13  4617 
listance [l]  7314 
listinction [ 11 62/22 
listinguished [ 11  6211 
listribution [4] 11/19  3611  8417 
88/18 
listrict [26] 33/10  3418  34/25  3515 
35/10  35/21  35/25  3616  36/20  3713 
38/21  3911  3917  4118  41/24  47/14 
56/17  5719  61/18  68/10  7014  70112 
75/21  76/12  7719  92/20 
listrict's [I]  39/10 
listricts [2] 36/15  6119 
liversion [2] 1216  14/25 
liverted [l]  83/14 
lo [83]  712  814  9/11  9/23  1014 
16/15  16/16  16/18  16/20  1713  1811 
18/19  18/22  19/17  22/24  2317  2417 
24/15  26/15  26/17  27/19  28/11  29/E 
30124  3112  31/25  32/16  33/19  40/2C 
44/12  48/11  51/13  51/21  52/23  5617 
5713  5718  5919  59/12  59/16  60122 
6117  61/10  61/20  62/19  64/23  64/24 
6611  6616  68/21  69/19  70119  72/11 
72/12  72/14  72/22  72/23  73/19 
74/17  74/23  74/23  78/22  81/19 
81/25  82/23  83/10  86/18  86/18  8716 
88/17  8918  90111  9116  91/11  9218 
92/25  9316  95/24  9616  96/17  96/22 
9917  100123 
locket [l]  1/16 
loes [15] 1518  15/12  15/17  2115 
2116  23/19  28/18  45/23  52/17  62/25 
72/13  90113  9916  9917  99/10 
foesn't [lo]  15/16  15/24  2112  211: 
90121  90121  93/22  93/24  9518  98/15 
loing [SI 1718  2311  5916  7011  8614 
8615  9512  9611 
lollar [2] 2312  30117 
lollars [ 11  66/14 
lon't [33]  14/16  16/10  1712  21/12 
23/23  2416  4814  53/24  56/24  61/15 



D 
don't... [23]  6517  6619  67/10  70124 
73/21  73/25  7518  81/10  84/21  84/23 
84/23  8513  85/22  86/14  87/18  9213 
9215  94/18  9513  9615  96/17  96/23 
100/11 

Donaho [ 11 76/17 
done [11] 20117  44/13  44/14  71/13 
7711  77/12  84/14  8611  86/11  8715 
10218 

Donley [l] 2314 
door [l] 4718 
Doug [l] 93/16 
down [9] 3216  3217  5017  5019  6016 
63/19  6914  9519  95/13 

drastic [l] 3716 
drastically [l] 10113 
dreaded 111  49/20 
drive [9] 5013  68/12  68/18  8215 
93/22 9519  9711  97/16  10312 

drivers [ 11 3611 1 
driving [l] 68/18 
drop [l] 27/19 
drugs [l] 93/23 
DST [4] 917  18/14  18/18  28/15 
due [SI 4/10  14/16  58/18  60115 I 103/21 
Duffy [ 11  9611 1 
duh [l] 89/23 
during [SI  4/17  911  37/24  65/23 
76/22  100/10  101/10  101112 

e-mail [2]  31/16  87/13 
e-mails [l] 811 
E-n-g-e-I [l] 88/12 
each [6] 8/16  8/19  11/13  8117 
98/21  98/22 

earlier [4] 4814  5812  8812  92/3 
early [l] 30115 
ease [l] 2812 
easier [ 11 27/21 
easily [2]  36/17  9114 
east [2]  83/17  83/25 
easy [I] 40125 
EBay [2]  63/10  90112 
economic [2]  2717  9811 
economy [SI  1814  19/11  31/24 

educate [l] 817 
education [2]  1315  1317 
educational [l] 7111 
effect [3]  5813  5911  8011 
effectively [ 21  4014  86/20 
efficiencies [ 11  20120 
efficient [l] 48/14 
effort [3]  14/11  1512  7018 
either [7] 16/23  25/21  26/12  54/12 
57/17  5911  8014 

electronic [lo] 11/20  11/24  1216 
12/17  1313  1418  14/24  15/21  24/16 
27/12 

electronically [2] 13/11 27/23 
elevate 111 93/13 
eliminate [SI 412  3013  37/13  37/15 
6314  69/19  90117  9216 

eliminated [2]  2819  3111 
eliminating [6] 4/11  13/12  24/14 
24/19  49/14  8011 

3213  5315 

elimination [4] 515  1316  40121 

4013  44/22  47/13  47/17  4817  52/12 
exception [l] 37/14 employees 1131 513 6/21  3513  3515 
except [l] 4/12  7818 
9612 employee [5]  34/19  5217  7213  7213 

excellent [4] 70125  81/25  91/12 emphasizes [l] 80111 
exceeds [ 11 86/25 emphasize [l] 40125 
examples [l] 62/14 emphasis [ 11  7/20 
70113  7312  86/12 else [2] 7613  96/10 

example [6] 14/14  28/22  6919 4213 
examine [SI  312  4/16  29/17 

52/14  52/16  8515 
employment [l] 5317 
employs [ 11 52/18 
enabling [l] 2/14 
enacted [l] 13/23 
enacting [l] 3812 
encourage [2]  13/10  1616 
end [SI  2/10  68/17  9717 
endeavor [l] 7015 
ends [l] 98/15 
Engel [l] 88/12 
enhance [l] 36/19 
enjoy [l] 99/17 
enormous [ 11 46/22 
enough [3]  7112  83/17  94/18 
ensure [l] 42/16 
ensuring [3]  4012  4118  69/23 
entertain [l] 35/23 
entice [l] 51/17 
entire [5] 2015  28/10  45/10  45/12 
46/25 

envelope [l] 11/17 
environment [ 11  2716 
equipment [5]  20120  5017  86/15 
86/21  86/25 

erode [l] 4618 
especially [ill 6/12  6/22  1912 
28/14  41/23  4915  7112  7216  7219 
9019  97/15 

essence 111 85/15 
essential [Z] 611  1812 
essentially [SI  23/15  25/17  8615 
establish [l] 14/16 
established [2]  2815  4116 
establishing [ 11 64/10 
estimate [2]  45/25  4611 
estimated [I] 44/20 
et [a] 915  13/15  7115 
ethic [l] 3512 
even [16]  11/24  2017  20113  34/12 
5218  53/25  5518  60112  6317  63/18 
6818  73/21  79/12  8314  96/19  97/25 

evening [3] 7/14  50110  50110 

excess [ 11  47/13 
excessive [l] 9113 
Excuse [ 11 97/22 
executive [2]  7911  7916 
executives [2]  3818  5514 
exemplary [ 1) 94/12 
exigent [2]  15/10  3015 
expand [l] 39/21 
expect [7] 1117  12/15  1314  31/15 
39/22  7514  97/16 

expectation [3]  2816  3014  3112 
expectations [2]  2918  64/14 
expected [2]  5/23  47/17 
expecting [2]  27/17  7611 
expects [ 11  24/13 
expenditures [l] 51/15 
expense [2]  30110  47/17 
expenses 131  13/14  29/17  29/24 
experience [3]  30123  47/11  64/24 
experienced [4] 38/23  3914  39/12 
45/20 

experiencing [ 11  38/20 
expert [ 11  3819 
expires [l] 102114 
explain [2]  38/12  41/21 
explains [l] 8013 
explore [l] 14/12 
express [7] 4/13  37/14  43/15  5011; 
62/15  9916  100113 

expressed [l] 65/22 
expresses [1] 79/25 
expressing [ Z ]  63/10  77/22 
extensive [2]  517  38/16 
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F 
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event [l] 69/19 
events [2]  92/23  93/12 
ever [l] 417 
every [9] 4/24  5/20  54/23  59/16 
66/25  71/19  86/19  86/21  86/23 

everybody [2]  75/23  80124 
everyday [l] 46/14 
everyone [5]  212  6/18  9/25  5717 
6414 

everything [l] 94/15 
evidence [l] 4/17 
evidentiary [ 11  8/23 
exact [5]  37/25  53/24  5418  7515 
75/20 

exactly [SI  4815  6116  65/18 

failing [l] 8614 
fair [l] 64/24 
falling [l] 4/10 
Falls [6] 35/11  3612  6113  83/14 
93/18  97/13 

familiar [3] 318  18/14  38/18 
families [2]  99/16  99/23 
families' [l] 10013 
family [4] 49/23  78/11  96/15  100/1 
far 17) 5/22  10114  2111  46/21  5816 
59/20  6119 

Fargo 111 3612 
farm [2]  88/15  96/15 
farmer [l] 5016 
Farmer's [l] 9319 



L. 

I - 
f 
I 
I 
f 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

1 
1 
I 
1 
1 

1 
1 
I 

1 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 

f 
f 
I 
f 
f 

f 

I 
I 

- 

F 
'ast [l] 81/10 
'aster [l] 2617 
'ather [l] 7212 
'avor [l] 79/13 
'ebruary [ 11 102/15 
'ederal [3] 46/17  6214 10014 
'ee [l] 103114 
'eel [14] 1016  10116  10120  1717 
64/25  6612  7111  7211  7711  77/11 
79/10  84/10  84/13  91/11 
'eels [ 11 79/11 
-elchle [lo] 33/10  3413  3417  42/19 
5416  60125  65/19  7114  72/11  7619 
'ellow [2] 616  7/12 
'elt [3] 45/20  4616  46/24 
'ew [3] 46/15  7313  8019 
'ewer [2] 75/11  99/23 
Veld [6] 1/22  2/16 511 5/16  36/16 
85/24 
'igure [3] 55/1 59/17  6011 
'igured [l] 74/15 
'inal [SI 33/15 5918  6811  73/23 
10118 
'inally [ 11 65/19 
'inances [ 11 76/19 
'inancial [11] 11/11 1413  28/24 
371.5  37/10  38/17  4419  44/12  44/19 
4818  50116 
'inancials [ 11 15/25 
'ind [SI 613  40111  40118 5115 51/15 
5316  59/13  9919 
'indings [l] 29/20 
'inish [l] 87/17 
'ire [2] 7516  7516 
'ireman [l] 52/23 
'irmly [l] 40113 
'irst [37] 6/19  914  914 1115 14/14 
1518 18/21  1912  19/24  2017  23/15 
23/17 23/21 2411  24/25  25/11 25/11 
25/12  25/20  2619  28/18  3119  31/10 
3312 3918  3919  44/10  4515  58/13 
59/5  59/15  61/25  81/12  8212  82/11 
82/15  98/25 
'irst-class [14] 6/19 1115 18/21 
1912  19/24 23/15 23/17  2411  24/25 
25/12 4515 59/15  8212  98/25 
'irst-night [ 11 14/14 
'iscal [2] 3812  38/22 
'isher [l] 10111 
'it [l] 2617 
'ive [52] 1/13 12/19 1512 1514  1517 
1619  1715  21/15  21/17  2214  22/17 
23/20  2513 2513 3719  37/12  3816 
39/13 4011 4018 4115 41/14  4217 
4311  4415  4417  44/18  44/23  44/24 
44/25 4514 45/19  45/25  46/20  4811 
48/11 55/11 62/20  63/12  76/14 
76/19  78/16  79/24  81/15  84/11 
84/15  91/21  9313  93/21  94/17  94/21 
97/25 
'ive-day [31] 1/13 12/19 1512 1514 
1517  1619  23/20  3719  37/12  3816 
4011 4018 4115  41/14  4217  4417 
44/18  44/23  44/25  4514  45/19  45/25 
46/20  48/11 55/11 62/20  79/24 
84/11  84/15  94/17  94/21 
'ive-day-a-week [ 11 76/19 
'ive-minute [ 11 78/16 

five-star 121 4811  9313 
five-year [l] 39/13 
Fjerestad [l] 9718 
flats [l] 20123 
flattened 111 3212 
flexibility [ 11 83/23 
flows [l] 3611 
fluff [l] 47/13 
focus [3] 1114  64/17  65/11 
folks [2] 8313  9217 
follow [3] 23/11  5811  98/16 
followed [l] 7114 
following [l] 812 
force [l] 76/17 
forcing [l] 29/25 
foregoing [l] 10216 
forget [l] 27/23 
Forks [l] 34/18 
form [2] 80121  94/19 
formal [2] 4/20  812 
former [l] 90123 
Fortune [l] 4714 
forum [l] 611 
forward [4] 713  7/11 3315 6412 
Forwarding [I] 43/11 
found [l] 9415 
four [12] 21/14  23/20  2416  4317 
54/12  6819  72/19  73/13  73/24  74/10 
74/14  89/23 

Fourche [l] 60113 
frame [l] 64/22 
free [l] 14/22 
frequency [ 13 4414 
frequently [ 13 41/16 
Friday [l5] 49/21 5018 Sol11 67/13 
67/18  67/18  67/21  67/23  6812  73/10 
73/17  73/18 80/5 93/24  93/25 

Friday's [ 11 45/10 
friend [l] 34/12 
friendly [ 11 41/14 
front [3] 34/20  40119  9218 
front-line [ 11 34/20 
front-page [ 11 40119 
fruition [l] 51/24 
full [l] 10217 
fully 111 6416 
fund [6] 1612  5216 85/14 85/16 
85/17 85/18 

funds [l] 30118 
further [4] 14/23  30112  82/20 
82/23 

future [l] 15/11 
fuszv r 11 8516 
G 
gain [l] 4718 
Gallup 111 47/24 
gap 111 99/22 
Gary [4] 33/15 4911  4918 5418 
gas [ 11 68/19 
General [SI 3/17  1614  43/20  44/17 
5 214 

generally [SI 14/15  38/17  40120 
5715  96/20 

generate [l] 46/21 
generated [2] 58/23  70114 
generating [ 11 93/12 
generation [2] 14/13  96/24 
generic [l] 82/16 
generous [l] 95/20 

gentlemen 171 9/10  31/19  3316 
61/22  70120  9212  9212 
geographically [Z] 36/14  36/17 
get [56] 7/14  16/25  1712  1817 2315 
2413  24/13 25/11 25/13 25/18  28/19 
31/10  40117 50/5 50/19  50122  5116 
54/19  54/20  55/7 55/12 56/12  64/16 
64/19  67/19  6811  6917  72/18  72/19 

73/19  7411  7413  7414  7417  7419 

8611  8615  90114  9112  9413  9513 
96/14  97/17  97/23 
gets [SI 42/17  6718  71/11  7319 
73/10  8212  82/19  9613 
getting [9] 6/17  4215  53/20  73/24 
74/24  8316  95/23  98/24  98/25 
gifts [l] 49/19 
Sillette [2] 83/16  95/15 
give [13] 2/22  9/12  17/24  28/22 
33/21  4113  51/23  5415  5417  57/13 
76/15  81/24  86/12 
given [4] 12/18 15/11 47/10  6715 
gives [2] 47/23  67/17 
giving [2] 4818 9313 
glad [2] 32/22  53/16 
gladly [l] 90119 
Slobal [l] 9916 
3 0  [31] 1012.5  1319  1619  19/19 
20125  2213  25/25  2617  27/17  27/22 
27/25  31/16  5014  54/10  63/12  66/20 
6911  7316  74/12  78/14  82/23  83/17 
8411 8418 86/24  9111  94/17  95/13 
95/14  98/15  10117 
goal [l] 23/17 
goes [2] 65/13  7315 
going [40] 17/25  1819  22/16  2413 
24/16 2515 2811  2914  3119  31/10 
34/13  58/23  5913  5913  64/18  67/19 
69/18  7218  76/18  80122  8215  8218 
8219  82/22  8314  8317  83/13  83/15 
83/25  83/25  8418  84/15  8517  86/22 
8813  9211  95/12  9717  98/22  10117 
Soldway [6] 117 213 3415  42/22 
4912  6219 
gone [l] 66/17 
good [20] 212 7/18  7/24 1112 15/17 
18/10  31/24  3316  3416  42/21  4912 
61/17  66/18  69/10  69/20  77/12 
80117  8119  82/18  97/10 
got [14] 18/11  27/20  30122  57/21 
71/18  7313  7515  81/20  8215  82/10 
92/10  9513  97/23  9815 
gotten [l] 8213 
government [3] 7/24  6214  100/25 
gradually [ 13 11/20 
Srand [l] 34/18 
grandma [l] 49/19 
grandpa [l] 49/19 
granted [2] 2613  82/21 
great [9] 28/21 3512 40121  47/23 
57/23  61/23  6712  9417  9715 
greater [3] 15/21 63/18  63/18 
greatest [ 11 61/16 
greatly [l] 49/15 
green [l] 13/10 
grievance [2] 85/12  85/13 
grievances [ 11 85/18 
grim [l] 38/18 
groceries [l] 68/19 

72/24  7318  73/13  73/16  73/17  73/18 

74/10  7519  81/16  82/25  85/23  85/24 
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grocery [ 11 36/23 
group [4] 3/22 2015 2611 78/10 
grow [2] 13/21  32/11 
growing [2] 3211 99/10 
grown [l] 3212 
guess [6] 10125 16/13 23/12  53/18 
68/25 98/10 

guessing [ 11 74/17 
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guides [l] 41/16 
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habits [2] 5818 58/22 
had [6] 3216  6919 77/22 83/23 
94/12 10218 

hadn't [2] 7215 77/25 
halted [l] 12/23 
Hammond [SI 118  216  619  2319 
3416  4913 70121 70122 

hand [l] 16/10 
handle [2] 13/20 98/11 
handling [2] 20111 73/23 
Hanson [l] 8818 
happen [l] 8616 
happening [3] 2715  6713  8214 
happens 131 28/23 55/15 73/18 
happy [SI 5617  8114 94/14 10113 
10 119 

hardship [l] 50116 
harsh [2] 97/14 9811 
has [56] 2/19 2/24 417  419  516 5/11 
5/13 5/13 5/19 7/25 12/10  12/14 
13/23 15/10 18/11 1917 21/23 2216 
2518  2519  2913 29/14 3017 34/25 
3718 37/25 38/19 3911 3913  3917 
39/10 4413  4512 47/12 4813  50118 
5215 55/10 62/23 6514  7013  7014 
70125 76/10 76/17  82/18  84/18 8511 
8514 85/19 85/21  87/11 88/14  88/20 
9412 95/13 

have [172] 
haven't [2] 73/22 100/20 
having [7] 6/17 5912 63/16 7111 
7614 81/17  97/24 

Hawk [l] 47/25 
he [9] 6217 71/18 7212  7214 76/18 
76/22 7913 89/18 9613 

he'll [ 11 33/11 
he's [SI 3118 71/13 8816 9611 98/1C 
headquarters 171 3819  4219  7012 
7019 76/15 85/21 95/24 

health [3] 80118  8419  8919 
healthcare [5] 11/12 29/12 29/15 
29/19 99/19 

hear [SI 2/25 512 8/15 9/25 6319 
69/20 90123  9315 

heard [9] 2518 51/22 73/22 7811 
78/25 9312 95/17  97/20  100/20 

hearing [17] 1/22 219 2/15 2/16 
3/23 5/25 714 7/11 8/25 1114  6412 
76/25 7913  80119 100/19 10319 
103112 

hearings [SI 4/15 511 8/20  22/14 
36/16 65/23 76/11 10111 

heavily [3] 36/18 65/20 65/21 
heels [l] 8916 
held [3] 20115  2912 39/10 
Hello [l] 9011 

lelp 131 817  819 56/19 

712 7/17 8/11 915 9/10 1014  1113 
imagine [l] 9712 rere [44] 215  218  311  317 5/16 6/11 
ideas [l] 25/23 80117  80117  80118 93/19 
icon [l] 7/16 ler [SI 79/17  79/22  79/22  79/25 
34/20 35/18 66/22 7511 94/13  97/23 lelpful [3] 32/20 5618  6916 

I've [lo] 20114 27/20 32/12 34/18 

46/18  48/10  49/15 65/25 67/14  91/13 91/21 91/23 9213 95/18 98/15 
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impact [23] 314 4/22 1116 12/11 32/22 33/18 35/22 38/20 53/16 6414 
immigration [l] 98/11 16/15 16/21 17/23 18/25 1918  30123 
immediately [l] 4616 

101113 
rereby [ 11 10215 
iermosa [l] 8113 
rerself [l] 10112 
ierseth [l] 8817 
righ [l] 93/13 
righest 121 4811 52/13 
righlight [l] 34/24 
righlighting [l] 88/22 
righway [l] 58/11 
rim [l] 66/22 
rimself [l] 44/17 
rired [l] 44/21 
lis [SI 44/23 71/13 71/13 71/19 
9612 
roc [l] 43/12 
rold [2] 2/16 42/23 
rolders [l] 50119 
roliday [3] 28/17 50114 89/22 
iome 131 46/17 49/23 91/22 
rome-state [ 11 46/17 
ronored [l] 7/17 
rope [5] 51/17 51/25 8411 100/12 
101114 
lour [3] 54/12 7519 100/1 
lours [2] 67/12  67/22 
rouse [l] 6115 
rousehold [SI 5/20 27/15 40122 
41/17 98/23 
rouseholds [ 11 27/16 
rousing [3] 57/14 57/15 57/19 
row [28] 7/20 15/12 17/24 2814 

67/15 88/25 . 
impacted [2] 4713  6813 
implement [3] 37/24  62/19 7717 
implementation [3] 22/16 37/25 
4 114 
implemented [Z] 4511 84/18 
implements [ 11 4011 
implications [3] 38/13  65/16 6613 
importance 121 7/22 80111 
important [13] 219 311 6/20 6/24 
7/10  7/20 8/13 19/10 41/23  42/24 
49/25 53/12 63/23 
importantly [ 11 46/23 
impose [l] 13/13 
impressed [l] 7815 
impressive [ 11 18/16 
improve [l] 3719 
improvement [2] 1413  40115 
include [3] 11/17 14/21 57/17 
included [l] 80118 
includes [4] 35/15 35/19 4318 
75/23 

including [2] 5/15 36/14 
inclusive [l] 10216 
income [SI 5117  5118 51/10 51/13 
51/20 5717  10012  10015 

incoming [l] 37/20 
inconvenience [l] 80113 
increase [14] 1515 15/10 15/14 
15/21 1716 17/16 1811 2514  2515 
43/22 51/16 87/20 9115  9219 
increased [41 20125  3911  3918 

28/18 39/18 41/11 4714 53/23 55/14 

44/14 
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84/13 86/18  86/19  86/24 8714 87/18 9312 
increasing [4] 1415  1416 51/16 7317 74/22 7615  7717  7814 85/23 
increases [3] 10111 1818 43/25 55/22 56/16 6313  6612 72/22 72/23 
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indirect [l] 45/21 rundred [3] 36/25 66/14 83/16 
indicating [ 11 40119 ruh [3] 10123 17/13 65/18 
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industries [l] 11/12 
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inevitable [l] 4111 87/23 87/25 89/17  96/12 96/21 
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5415  5613  5614 56/13 61/24  76/18 7312 92/11 

information [14] 611 22/18 2316 29/13 33/19 3413 38/11 57/13 70112 
informally [l] 4/20 



I1 
insights [ljp-33/3 
Inspector [2] 1614 5214 
inspirational [l] 7/15 
instance [2]  69/11 7611 
instances [ 11 72/14 
instead [lo] 1313  1413  1418  2211 
5911 82/11  84/14  86/16 8712 87/15 

insurance [l] 11/12 
intends [l] 37/23 
intense [ 11 11/21 
intent [Z] 5515 63/12 
intentionally [ 11 90112 
interest [3] 19/14  35/21 100122 
interested [4] 4/18 813 53/18 
57/25 

interesting [2] 22/12  74/19 
interests [2] 7818  7819 
intermediate [ 11 5419 
Internet [ 141 11/23  39/18  39/21 
41/25  56/12 5715 57/17  57/20 60122 
8719 96/17  96/17  96/19  96/24 

interrupt [l] 6814 
introduce [Z] 8/16 913 
investing [l] 1417 
invitation [ 11 35/18 
invite [I] 3314 
invoices [ 1 3  11/14 
involved [SI 29/22 30116  4413  7219 
76/12  76/16  92/17  92/22 

is [ Z O l ]  
isn't [2] 17/23 90125 
issue [14] 311 7/10 812 8/13 2811 
28/10 30113  4512  6317 64/17  64/18 
65/12 97/21 97/22 

issues [6] 6/24 2119 27/10  38/14 
7713 101118 
it [150] 
it'll [2] 10114 64/21 
it's [60] 218 2/20 10116  10117 
14/11 1811 18/22 1913  1914  1916 
2017 20118 2119 23/19  24/20  24/21 
2511 27/14  27/14 2913 29/25  29/25 
32/20 3318  5515 56/19 5715  5913 
61/12 6212 62/16 6317 63/23 6711 
6715  6717 67/19  69/10 7016 71/12 
72/16  75/20 77/13 8212  8218 82/21 
83/15  83/17  83/25 8518 85/13  85/15 
85/21  89/23 90122  90125 95/11 
96/19  99/14 101113 

Italia [ 11 8711 1 
Italy [l] 87/11 
item [l] 45/16 
its [14] 2/20  3/18  4/17  11/16 1213 
14/18  15/22 1917  3511 39/23 4417 
6313 91/10  91/10 
itself r4i 316 46/13  48/22 58/19 

J 
James [l] 9011 
jar [l] 89/20 
Jason [l] 8413 
jeopardy [l] 99/18 
job [11] 6/25 3511 61/19 6516 
77/12  77/13  81/25 8615  8616 91/12 
9811 1 

86/11  86/12 9617 99/15  99/20 10018 
100/9  100/10  100/12 

jobs [ 131 46/19 4712  4714 85/20 

Johnson's [ 11 87/24 

joined [SI 215 7/12  33/12 

22/18  22/19  23/18  25/10  25/21 justification r l l  38/6 
like [41] 2/12 616 6/23 913 16/13 9418  9915 
light [2] 3116 63/15 89/23 9018 92/11 9316 93/11 9415 
lifestyle [l] 6018 75/12 8411 8519 86/16 8713 87/23 
75/15 62/21 6317  6413  6719  7413 74/20 

life [SI 34/15  46/14 60124  7513 3617 46/25  49/20  51/23  54/14 6111 
levels [l] 46/24 24/18  27/21 3016 31/14  31/22 3212 
level [4] 2917 46/20  93/13  95/24 20111 21/13 2211  2219 23/25  24/18 
letters [l] 811 just [43] 6/20 717 7/14  19/18  19/22 
82/16 9012 97/11 98/22 lune [SI  1/25 3511 101123 

letter [SI 20123 33/16  58/24 82/15 July 4th [l] 28/23 
let's [Z] 25/16  81/16 102110 10315 
let [Z] 3411 39/17 July [6] 28/16  28/23 30115 101112 
lesser [2] 25/13  31/11 Journey [2] 1/23  2/12 
lessens [ 11 27/13 Journal [l] 40118 
lessened [l] 12/15 joining [l] 3317 
lessen [2] 12/16  67/13 

26/11  28/15 3012  3118  3314 33/19 
4915 57/11  61/25 6319 66/19  67/25 

K-a-s-t-e-n [ 11 93/17 6915  7017  7019 78/22  79/18 80116 
Kasten [l] 93/16 80/20 8114  8116 87/23  87/25  89/17 
keep [SI 1812  1815  1815 31/15 92/15  94/25  96/12  96/24  97/20 
31/15 3311 77/13  83/24 98/19  98/24 
keeping [l] 77/12 likely [2] 41/24 4717 
kind [4] 68/23  68/24 8213  9515 likewise [l] 13/20 
know [44] 16/13 1712 21/19 2211 limit [l] 9713 
2614 27/18  29/13 3016 31/17 3219 limited [l] 72/16 
34/11  37/12  38/15  39/18  47/11 4814 limits [2] 66/20  93/19 
49/22  53/24 5411  5715 59/16 6312 Linda [l] 89/15 
6316 63/14  64/14  64/20 6619  70124 line [6] 24/12  26/12  34/20 80121 
71/17  73/21 80121 8312  8614 87/11 8716  8918 
8814  9315 94/18  95/12  96/15  98/16 lines [ 11 9113 
98/19  98/21  98/23  98/23 listen [l] 81/17 
knowing [2] 44/24  85/11 listening [l] 93/14 
Korea r l l  98/16 lists [ 11 3216 

K 

L literally [3] 4/24  28/16 4719 
little [15] 6/16 1011 1412 16/13 

labels [l] 4212 

6113 66/19 7314  7417  7418  7512 language [2] 519 5/12 
live [14] 17/17  56/17  56/25  59/22 laid [l] 63/22 
6111 72/17  82/23  91/24 9915 lack [2] 62/14  63/11 
2314 25/18  25/19  25/20 2712 58/15 

58/15  74/21 
6615 8511 9014 92/15 less [71 23/21 3116  4619  5118  5717 
2516 28/15  29/20  58/20  61/13  65/15 Leona [l] 10315 

look [l5] 713 7/10 2019  2219 24/17 4313 43/22 
8511 legislative [SI  19/18  33/13 3814 

longer [SI 815  4615 64/15  65/17 left [Z] 217 13/24 
long-term [l] 37/10 leaving [l] 2911 
86/24  88/20 leaves [l] 1711 

long [6] 2217 37/10 5012 68/22 52/24  99/20 
logistically [l] 28/18 leave 161 34/14 3813 52/22  52/24 
locked [2] 5413 54/13 least 141 20119  2218  2511 29/19 
lockbox [l] 12/22 learn 141 5/16  94/20  94/23 9511 
locations [2] 36/22  36/24 Leading [l] 3319 
located [3] 3612  7919  8018 leadership 111 2/19 
locally-impacted [ 11 4713 leaders [l] 2/23 
83/12  86/14 lead [2]  9/21 4619 

locally [6] 16/15 4713  70114 8213 lawmakers [ 11 46/17 
locality [l] 7312 law [l] 5/18 
94/10  95/22 9611 launched [l] 4117 
60111 81/25  83/22 8414  8415  9419 later [2] 912  3012 
20116  20117  40119 43/13  46/20 late [l] 27/21 

local [18] 314 1013 14/14 1713 lasting [l] 2/19 
lobbies [l] 4211 9816 
loan [I] 51/25 47/18  53/18  59/25 8414  9719 97/25 
living [Z] 5711  7515 last E111 30120 32/13 4418 44/15 
8919 94/22 68/10 

livestock [SI  88/13  88/14  88/21 largest [SI 5/22 1213 36/14  36/17 
lives [2] 93/18  93/20 larger [l] 6/18 
lived [2] 7511  7514 67/24 
75/14  75/16  93/17  99/15 large 151 11/10  12/24 18/18 28/15 



L many [26] 5/7  12/8  14/1  18/19 
. 28/25  40/9  47/4  49/17  5311  53/3 

ooked 171  21/24  21/25  22/4  29/15 53/6  53/23  55/22  56/16  60/10  68/11 
86/9  87/15  95/16 69/11  77/18  79/10  80/8  89/4  92/23 
ooking [14] 14/20  19/25  2213 93/11  93/12  94/13  100/20 
22/22  24/12  24/24  25/2  64/2  69/12 March 121  3/25  43/20 
82/12  8713  87/3  96/4  97/1 March 30th [l] 3/25 
ose [3]  28/2  100/8  100/11 Mark [6] 1/9  2/6  9/4  915  915  99/12 
losing [l] 89/12 Mark-et [l] 9/5 
loss [9] 12/25  27/10  40/22  46/23 market [2]  47/8  93/9 
47/1  47/3  50/16  51/13  85/20 marketplace [ 11 89/4 
lot [22]  21/19  29/25  30122  31/17 Mart [l] 51/12 
54/9  54/11  61/9  65/22  67/4  67/10 materials [l] 91/15 
73/1  73/4  74/11  81/21  82/1  83/3 math [l] 85/6 
86/13  90/10  90/11  91/17  93/10 matter [SI  29/15  53/12  65/15 
98/12 691 11 102/8 
love [3]  35/1  35/2  92/17 matters [l] 101/19 
loved [ 11 91/22 may [24] 3/7  4/19  8/4  13/2  13/8 
lower [4] 11/22  25/14  57/7  84/12 16/8  30/1  34/11  35/23  36/24  40/11 
lowered [l] 23/23 42/18  50/13  51/8  64/15  66/4  68/20 
lowest [l] 99/25 74/24  75/9  75/25  76/2  82/20  9616 
luckv rll 7/14 98/24 

M maybe [12] 18/13  18/14  21/8  25/8 
56/18  60/3  6111  7518  82/23  83/3 

M-o-r-r-i-s [ 13 89/16  86/8  93/4 
machine [l] 50/9 McDonalds [ 11 51/12 
machines [ 11 37/1 me [14] 6/16  19/13  21/23  30/11 
Madam [7]  6/10  7/6  23/10  26/21  31/23  41/1  47/23  53/10  57/11  69/10 
31/20  55/25  70/23  77/12  91/20  92/8  97/22 
made [2]  14/12  97/24 Meadow [l] 79/19 
magazines [ 11 98/25 mean [9] 10/17  23/24  24/7  63/14 
mail [145] 7412  74/23  87/14  87/17  98/18 
mailboxes [l] 18/23 means [2]  58/17  60124 
mailed [2]  45/16  88/17 measure [l] 3/3 
mailer [3]  10/3  3216  81/13 media [l] 42/9 
mailers [is] 6/19  9/9  13/14  14/6 median [l] 100/1 
14/21  19/24  21/19  22/6  22/15  28/15 medical [l] 79/16 
39/22  43/13  5115  64/12  64/20  81/12 medication [3]  76/1  93/20  97/19 
mailing [25] 6/21  9/8  10/9  13/24 medications [2]  63/7  90/11 
15/16  16/19  18/5  28/24  31/16  32/8 medicine [2]  60/11  60/18 
35/25  4017  40/12  41/12  43/14  44/2 medicines [2]  49/19  49/24 
58/8  58/22  69/24  81/21  82/13  82/14 meet [3]  11/22  29/4  41/12 
82/14  82/16  103/17 meeting [3]  42/24  91/15  101/21 
mailings [6] 16/16  16/18  31/24 meets [l] 59/13 
32/5  41/20  70/13 member [2]  43/16  64/5 
mailman [l] 71/17 members [SI  4/18  11/21  15/7 
mails [1] 8/1  22/19  42/22  48/17  79/5  79/7 
main [l] 84/8 members' [ 11 79/9 
maintain [4] 5/10  39/14  43/23 membership [3]  11/9 11/13 23/2 
99/24 membership's [ 13 26/24 
major [4] 9/8  10/8  70/7  70/9 memorial [l] 48/22 
majority [4] 32/12  96/21  99/16 mention [l] 94/11 

make [223  6/7  15/16  21/13  21/17 88/2  94/25  101/6 
45/7  59/6  62/21  62/24  66/15  75/10 met [4] 19/24  21/19  59/18  78/7 
79/8  81/7  83/23  88/3  89/5  89/17 methods [l] 88/18 
89/24  95/8  96/18  100/14  101/8 mic [l] 10/1 
103123 Michael [l] 55/25 
makes [3]  34/15  61/16  62/2 microphone [ 11 80/23 
making [lo] 8/4  22/20  30/1  58/17 middle [6] 61/5  99/17  99/24  100/5 
63/25  64/4  64/19  88/23  97/24 100/10  100/12 

man's [l] 89/18  100/10  100/12 
manage [ 11 35/11 might [6] 14/17  19/16  53/25  60/25 
management [6] 3/16  3/18  37/8  77/22  86/20 
47/11  78/9  95/18 mile [2]  59/25  96/13 
manager [12] 33/10  3417  34/20 miles [16] 50/2  50/4  68/7  68/13 
34/22  34/22  35/1  37/3  52/14  76/12  69/4  83/16  83/17  83/18  83/19  83/25 
77/9  77/10  92/20  84/1  93/21  95/9  95/11  97/1  97/1 
managers [4] 39/14  40/2  52/11 million [l] 23/2 
77/6 

100/2 mentioned 161 26/22  29/12  68/6 

101/11 middle-class 141 99/24  100/5 

million-dollar [ 11 23/2 
Min [l] 103/16 
Min-U-Script [ 11 103/16 
mind [2]  9/21  97/18 
minimize [l] 12/11 
minimum [l] 48/7 
Minneapolis [4] 91/13  91/22  91/23 
95/4 
Minnesota [3]  35/14  75/24  91/13 
minor [l] 40/10 
minute [2]  74/2  78/16 
minutes [2]  8/5  81/7 
missing [l] 66/25 
Missouri [2]  6/15  73/3 
mitigate [l] 13/8 
MMA [7]  11/21  11/25  12/8  13/12 
14/19  15/18  16/4 
"A's [3]  1119  14/11  15/6 
mobile [ 11 11/23 
model [SI  29/21  40/12  51/3  63/4 
63/11 
Modified [l] 42/2 
Moines [3]  83/15  83/19  95/14 
moment [2]  7/15  55/23 
Monday [24] 27/20  37/22  45/10 
45/12  45/18  49/20  50/8  50/13  50/14 
59/2  59/4  67/9  67/12  67/20  67/21 
67/23  68/2  73/9  73/16  73/17  80/4 
88/25  89/22  89/23 
money [ 171  1419  24/21  51/22 
51/24  82/17  84/12  84/14  85/3  85/4 
85/12  85/14  85/16  85/23  86/3  86/14 
86/16  90/18 
Montana [l] 80/10 
month [SI  11/13  32/7  32/7  38/11 
55/3 
months [l] 101/12 
months' [l] 41/4 
monumental [3]  48/22  63/22  69/21 
more [SS] 4/20  6/17  13/9  13/25 
14/8  14/11  16/14  19/14  21/25  23/5 
23/5  23/19  24/12  25/13  25/19  26/12 
27/2  31/22  36/4  36/10  36/21  36/25 
39/22  40/10  43/24  46/22  49/16  50/4 
51/17  53/2  54/5  59/14  60/2  60/4 
64/19  6616  68/4  68/8  75/10  79/12 
81/17  82/5  82/6  82/10  82/10  82/25 
83/1  83/7 83/9 90/14  93/5  93/8  97/( 
98/5  98/6  98/19  99/2  99/9 
morning [13] 2/2  11/2  27/18  33/6 
34/6  42/21  49/2  50/11  60/18  71/19 
81/9  95/18  97/10 
Morris [l] 89/15 
most [19] 4/6  6/24  11/16  12/20 
23/17  27/4  36/18  44/2  46/23  53/4 
62/3  65/21  75/16  86/3  89/3  89/7 
90/22  93/19  101/10 
mostly [l] 17/8 
mother 111 93/18 
move [6] 44/8  59/1  59/7  79/24 
84/20  84/24 
moved [6] 31/8  45/18  53/14  85/5 
91/13  91/19 
moves [l] 45/22 
moving [4] 21/25  24/19  28/18 
58/16 

Mr [4] 30/22  42/19  57/25  62/14 
Mr. 1321  9/20  10/25  16/14  17/15 
18/13  23/11  23/19  25/8  26/15  26/2; 
30/24  31/23  32/16  34/3  42/20  48/2i 



M 
Mr.... [ 161 53/19 5416 58/2  58/14 
60/25 6216 63/21 65/19 68/6 7113 
7114  7119 72/11 7619 76/17 7912 
Mr. Adon [l] 5812 
Mr. Donaho [l] 76/17 
Mr. Evensen 151 53/19 6216 68/6 
7113  7119 
Mr. Felchle [7] 3413 5416 60125 
65/19 7114 72/11 7619 
Mr. Salk [7] 10125 17/15 18/13 
23/11 26/22  32/16 58/14 
Mr. Salk' [l] 30124 
Mr. Schreiner [6] 9/20 16/14 23/19 
2518 26/15 31/23 
Mr. Sobel [l] 7912 
Mr. Tolman [SI  42/20  48/24 63/21 
Ms [l] 9418 
Ms. [2] 79/25 80/11 
Ms. Reed [ 11 8011 1 
Ms. Reed's [l] 79/25 
M t  [ S I  2/18 7/13 48/23 
much [19] 15/12 15/17 23/21 
26/11 32/14 32/19 3313 49/16 62/10 
6619  6817 74/21 86/16 88/1  88/11 
92/25 92/25 93/14 101114 
multi [l] 30117 
multiple [l] 41/20 
Mury [2] 916  917 
museum [3] 1/23 2/12 2/13 
must [ 11 11/21 
my [64] 212  216  217  616 7/12 1114 
18/25 20119 21/22 27/18 27/19 
27/22 3318 34/17 34/24 3714 39/14 
4012 41/23 4312  4318 43/15 43/17 
4611 4611 47/10 4918  5318  5919 
65/11  66/21 7212 75/13 77/13 77/13 
7813  8119  8413 8414 85/9 86/10 
89/15 9011 90123  9118 91/17  91/22 
91/24  93/16 93/18 96/11 96/12 
96/14 96/21 9712  9719 97/23 9817 
98/11 99/12 99/13 10016  10219 
102114 
nvself r21 66/19  71/2 

N 
Y 2 O l O  [l] 1/16 
Y2010-1 [l] 1/16 
lame [ i s ]  212  4312  4918  80124 
8119  8413 8414 89/15 9011 9118 
93/16 96/11 9719  9817 99/12 
YAPS [SI  4315 43/16 44/10 
iation [9] 2/20 311 4/25 45/13 
46/25 48/15 6119 91/16 100/1 
iational [El] 3/23 16/16 16/19 
33/13 38/13 38/16 39/11 4314 
rationwide [7] 2/11 413  415 4614 
4712 47/18 47/19 
Yative [5] 36/12 56/17 56/24 5716 
75/19 
iature [I] 65/24 
iear [2] 15/11 1712 
iearby [l] 2/18 
iecessarily [4] 56/24 64/13 64/23 
69/14 
iecessary [2]  1619  3719 
teed [25] 19/19 31/14 3716 44/22 
46/11 51/24 52/17 6617 66/10 68/13 
68/20 7718  7918  8315 84/11 84/22 
84/24  85/24  86/22 9116  9314  9315 

9414 95/25 9615 
reeded [2] 14/15 68/16 
reeds [ll] 16/21 16/24 2917  40113 
41/13 43/14 44/13 59/21 59/22 8618 
93/23 
legate [l] 1512 
iegative [l] 4615 
let [l] 24/13 
ietwork [ 11 3517 
lever [3] 66/22 7411 94/10 
iew [ i s ]  1/24 516 13/13 13/23 
25/22 25/23 29/22 32/11 40112 
41/25 74/16 84/18  87/12  93/10 
10316 
iews [4] 4215 88/13  88/14  94/22 
rewspaper [l] 8917 
Yewspapers [ 11 4214 
iext [9] 10125 38/11 54/10 5513 
5513  5917 71/20 7316  8213 
lextdoor [l] 6513 
right [2] 14/14 91/20 
line [3] 59/24 60117 88/16 
io [29] 1/16 815 17/16 2014  2016 
211.5 24/11 2514  2515 26/17  27/19 
32/18 3517  40125 45/17 47/11 4815 
50124 50/25 54/15 5813 5818 58/18 
58/21 59/14 65/16 71/21 8511 9816 
robody [2] 2018 21/23 
ionetheless 141 6016 91/23 9218 
9311 1 
rormal [I] 82/15 
Yorth [113 34/18 35/12 3613 36/13 
5411 57/14 7312 75/16 75/23 8019 
92/20 
rorthwest [l] 35/13 
Yorthwestern [ 11 75/24 
rot [94] 317 516 l o l l 0  10116 1518 
19/19 2012  2118 23/24  24/11 24/24 
2517 25/13 26/17 3011 3118 31/12 
3212 35/22 37/20 3811 3812 40112 
40120 41/24 42/14  43/17  44/10 4517 
46/12 46/25 48/11 49/20 5015 51/14 
51/21 52/24 52/25 5314  5316  5319 
54/17  54/18  54/20 5519 55/22 5716 
5819 58/16 58/25 59/16 60122 61/14 
61/15 62/18 6317  6318 63/12 64/15 
65/15 66/24  66/24 67/11 67/19 6813 
69/10 70125  7111  7116  7117 72/13 
74/24 75/12 7614 76/16 79/16 82/21 

8918 89/19 90120 9115 91/22 9217 
92/18  94/17  96/19 96/22 99/14 
loted 111 7916 
~otes [l] 80113 
lothing [3]  9/13 33/21  54/21 
lotice [3] 4112  4114 69/16 
loticed [l] 83/12 
lotification [2]  1315 69/23 
IOW [36] 313 8/14 913 9/11 9/20 
16/10 18/5 2319 24/15 2511  2611 
26/17 26/19 2714 27/20 3011 3314 
3413 42/13 42/20 4911 60/19 61/11 
66/18  78/14  80/20 8215  8217 83/14 
83/18 84/21 8512 8515 92/12 9415 
9916 
lowhere [ 11 6115 
lumber [ l 5 ]  27/16 3215 38/25 
42/25 5115 5211 52/15 53/24 5411 
5418 56/25 59/12 67/11 100/8 10114 
lumbered [l] 10216 

8318 83/21 8418 85/17  88/17  88/25 

numbers [2] 30117 35/22 
numerous [2] 79/21 87/14 
NW r l l  10316 

0 
D'clock [ 11 60117 
Dbligation [ 1 3  48/13 
Dbvious [l] 20118 
obviously [2]  73/24  91/15 
Dccupancy [ 11 5612 
Dccur [2] 3012  4017 
Dccurred [l] 69/10 
Dccurrence [l] 6811 
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responding [2] 77/20  77/21 
response [2] 35/17  42/17 
responses [l]  8/22 
responsibility [4] 3/11  3/17  5/20 
63/22 
responsible [ 13  4012 
rest [ 11  75/21 
result [SI 25/15  3912  4717  84/11 
8913 
results [ 11 1513 
retail 171 35/20  36/20  36/24  37/18 
3915  4013  4211 
retention [l]  2716 
retired [l]  9012 
retirement [4] 1612  5217  5311  8419 
retracting [1]  46/13 
return [l]  78/17 
revenue 191 14/13  14/19  25/23 
38/13  38/18  3917  39/10  39/12  93/12 
revenue-generating [ 11  93/12 
revenues [Z] 4/11  9219 
review [6] 3/24  518  7/23  8/25 
40117  101/11 
reviews [2] 5/17  38/16 
revisited [ 11  28/11 
rich [l]  99/22 
Rick [Z] 8816  8818 
rid [2] 81/16  85/23 
Ridge [SI 7911  7914  79/11 
right [16] 216  614  1814  18/25  1918 
24/14  2511  26/17  26/19  27/4  42/14 
61/11  64/19  68/15  8916  92/12 
rise [ 21 9/11  99/20 
risky [l]  1312 
river [SI 7313  7316  7317  7417  7419 
road [l]  63/19 
Robert 131 33/12  4312  8119 
role [l]  7/22 
roles [l]  1215 
roughly [2] 23/17  23/25 
round [l]  5014 
round-trip [l]  5014 
route [6] 5312  68/24  7415  7416 
96/14  96/25 
routes [14]  3618  5011  5419  6817 
68/10  68/12  68/23  70115  74/12 
79/21  8012  8013  8018  96/13 
routinely [l]  39/15 
routing [l]  74/16 
rules [Z] 13/23  14/23 
run [3]  6018  60117  60124 
rural [72] 315  33/16  36/10  36/18 
38/25  39/21  39/22  4919  49/10 49/11 
49/14  49/15  49/21  5011  50123  52/19 
52/21  5312  5314  53/11  53/20  5412 
54/13  54/17  5518  5718  58/10  59/10 
59/20  60121  65/21  65/25  6616  6616 
66/11  66/12  66/19  66/21  66/23  6714 
6715  6717  67/15  67/23  6817  68/10 
68/22  68/23  69/11  70115  70117 
70118  7114  71/10  71/18  7315  7511 
7514  79/20  8112  8718  9019  92/13 



1 SD [l]  10312 
seamless [l]  63/11 

ural... [9] 92/15  92/16  94/19 Sears [l]  51/12 
94/25  96/14  96/21  96/25  97/15 second [6] 3315  3318  7813  81/18 
37/18 82/20  97/23 
!ushmore [3]  2/18  7/13  48/23 section [2] 54/15  5616 
!uth r2l 117  213 sections [11  54/23 

i secure [l]  43/22 
see 1191  719  16/10  16/20  22/11 

;-a-s-s [l]  81/10 2617  26/11  26/11  2718  27/13  28/14 
-0-n [l]  99/13 31/25  3214  3215  55/14  5919  85/23 
aid [9] 6/23  17/15  25/16  55/18 87/18  92/14  9418 

ake [l]  6413 seek [3] 15/10  8918  90112 
,ale [3] 51/20  88/22  8913 seeks [l]  613 
'ales [l]  66/15 seem [2] 40123  99/10 
ialls [SI 916  10125  17/15  18/13 seems [l]  31/23 
23/11  26/22  32/16  58/14 seen [2] 1319  32/12 
ialls' [ 11  30124 sees [l]  13/12 
;ame [ 141  5/12  38/23  38/24 45/14 segment [ 11  12/24 
16/21  60116  60119  6116  6619  67/11 selected [2] 36/16  4115 
7514  75/20  78/11  9216 sell [l]  1817 
iame-day [ 11  60116 selling [2] 26/13  8916 
iandlin's [ 13  8817 sells [l]  7115 
iass [l]  81/10 Senate [l]  3/21 
katellite [l]  57/18 Senator [l]  87/24 
;atisfaction [ 11  47/21 send [7] 18/22  60114  87/13  9516 
iatisfied [2] 39/16  94/14  9517  9519  98/12 
iaturday [75] 2/11  412  4/11  12/24 sending [2] 83/18  91/15 
12/25  1316  13/12  24/14  27/17  27/18 sends [I]  11/13 
2813  2816  2818  3013  30124  30125 senior [5] 917  34/23  3718  3818 55/: 
37/13  37/16  37/22  40121  4213  4518 sense [7] 15/17  3213  34/14  5713 
45/17  49/15  49/22  5012  50112  50112  68/21  6917  9519 
50120  50124 5114 52/20  5313  54/18 sensitive [I]  98/11 
54/20 55/8 5519  55/12  58/18  58/22 sent [7] 2616  39/20  4516  4519 
5911  5912  62/15  6314  65/16  66/16  70113  70114  83/14 
6717  67/12  67/22  67/23  68/14  68/20 sentiment [l]  1416 
69/19  7115  7117  73/11  73/14  73/19 separate [5] 20111  57/13  85/14 
73/25  74/10  74/25  7614  79/12 80/5 85/17  85/18 
81/16  81/22  81/23  88/19  89/13 separation [l]  20113 
89/20  9018  90114  9215  93/25  99/14 serious [ 11  3514 
Saturdays 131 37/16  37/19  93/10 seriously [3] 6/25  61/19  7218 
save [5] 82/12  83/12  84/11  84/14 serve [3] 5/20  34/19  4313 

;aved [23 24/21  8512 serves [l]  46/12 
saving [4] 45/22  82/17  85/23  90/18 service [226] 
savings [4] 14/13  14/19  22/23 service's [lo]  412  4/16 5/18 818 
241 13 4419  48/13  5219  62/16  7917  79/23 
saw [2] 20114  94/10 service-oriented [ 11  4611 1 
Cay [ZO]  2015  21/11  2219  2411 services [19] 918 11/12  1211  1713 
25/10  25/13  51/23  55/24  56/11  4717  48/14  6617  68/20  69/12  7515 
56/18  7016  7617  80124  81/10  83/24  75/11  79/22  8217  8715  9319  94/13 
84/21  8512 85/15 95/14  96/21  9513  98/19  9912 
zaying [6] 24/14  24/17  2514  2515 serving [2] 61/20  88/14 

ays [a] 9/17  6716  93/24 set 131 6/16  3811  60116 
cale [l]  46/22 setting [2] 3/12  92/16 
,can [l]  87/12 seven [3] 4/25  52/14  63/13 
,cenario [l]  69/15 several [l]  10112 
,cenes [l]  45/22 shall [l]  80118 
,chedule [2] 8118  94/23 share [4] 22/18  22/19  4718  66/18 
,cheduled [I]  38/10 shared [3] 5512  55/10  75/21 
:chedules [l]  94/20 shares [ 11  76/18 
lcheduling [l]  6/22 sharing [2] 3313  70116 
ichreiner [SI 914  9/20  16/14  23/19 she [ 151  79/17  8012  8017  80113 
2518 26/15  30122  31/23  93/20  93/22  93/22  93/22  93/23 

crambling [l]  13/24 She's [l]  10112 
cream [l]  29/10 sheriff [l]  7519 
Script [ 11  103116 shift [2] 11/24  1311 
;crutiny [ 11  7/21 

i5/4  86/14  86/19  89/18  92/17 seeing [l]  27/24 

87/19 served [3]  4316  8012  8013 

3118 5418 session [l]  9717 

icott [l]  88/12  93/24  93/24  93/25  9412  9412  9414 

;hifting [ 13  11/20 
ship [l]  83/25 
shipping [2] 40113  41/13 
;hops [l]  60112 
Short [l]  34/13 
;hortsighted [l]  90117 
ihould [15]  14/12  29/13  29/20 
30118  51/23  6214  66/21  6813  9215 
93/10  9414  94/16  98/18  9911  9918 
show [4] 18/10 3411 51/13  10012 
showcase [l]  9311 
showing [l]  5215 
sic [2] 14/14  9417 
sick [2] 52/22  52/24 
side [lo]  9/23  1015  10/18  14/19 
2215  7316  7317  7417  7418  98/15 
sign [l]  49/23 
significant [3]  312  417  4515 
signs [I]  41/25 
silly [l]  9516 
similar [2] 51/25  52/23 
simple [l]  4815 
simply [l]  27/12 
since [6] 2/20  1718  17/24  39/10 
8716  8717 
sincerely [l] 8/10 
single [l]  59/17 
Sioux [7] 34/12  35/10  3612  6113 
83/14  93/18  97/13 
sites [2] 13/20  4916 
sits [l]  6719 
sitting [4] 28/16  6118  75/22  9213 
situation [2] 52/17  60120 
six [22] 1/13  5/10  1715  1812  19/15 
21/17  22/17 2.512  4113  4311  4414 
5311  54/12  58/7  66/16  72/13  74/22 
76/14  79/14  79/24  94/21  97/19 
six-day [lo]  1/13  5/10  1812  19/15 
5817  72/13  74/22  79/14  79/24  94/21 

six-hour-a-day [ 11  54/12 
sixth [3] 2718  2719  9214 
sized [2] 4317  4714 
skill [l]  10219 
slow [4] 1216  14/24  79/10  79/12 
slower [l]  25/20 
small [lo]  46/25  4712  52/15  6019 
71/10  71/10  84/19  84/22  92/13 
95/23 

smaller [5] 6/19  50121  53/19  5414 
56/25 

smoothly [I]  41/10 
so 1881 512  6/15  6/21  712  814  911 
1014  10111  1714  17/23  18/24  1916 
19/10  20/18  20124  2211  2218  22/24 
24/19  2515  26/10  28/20  28/24  3016 
30/15  31/12  3313  34/15  5017  54/17 
54/19 55/5 55/7  56/25  5911  6214 
62/20  63/19  64/14  64/19  6513  6518 
6613  66/23  6719  67/13  6812  68/11 
71/21  7216  7219  7315  7319  73/23 
7411  74/14  74/17  76/23  7713  78/13 
80121  8116  81/22  8213  8214  82/13 

8411  84/23  86/16  88/4  92/16  93/22 
9411  96/18  96/22  96/25  97/25  9813 
98/10  9918  10016  100/12 
Sobel 121 7912  7916 
software [l]  1419 
solely [l]  88/16 
solutions 141 13/25  1418  40125 

82/18  82/25  8317  8318  83/17  83/21 



;elutions... [ 11 43/24 
;olved [l]  44/19 
iome [43] 317  6/18  6/19  13/14 
1618  18/15  20119  25/16  26/12  29/22 
3019  3111  3114  31/25  3218  39/24 
40110  42/13  4614  46/16  5012  50121 
51/22  5512  57/10  57/16  65/24  6611 
6613  67/13  67/25  6816  74/16  74/20 
7612  77/25  80113  81/17  82/20  83/21 
9019  92/13  92/14 
someone 131 49/23  86/17  86/24 
something 1161  19/17  21/10  2418 
29/25  3516  44/13  44/14  54/25  5916 
67/25  7012  7013  70114  7217  73/25 
7612 
sometime [l]  30114 
somewhat [l] 25/17 
somewhere [l]  18/22 
son [l]  9819 
soon [2]  3014  60118 
sorry [ 11  17/21 
sort [Z] 69/17  84/24 
sorting [Z] 71/13  71/20 
sounds [l]  81/11 
sources [l]  31/16 
Pouth [38] 1/24  6/13  16/15  18/25 
1918  19/11  32/23  33/12  33/17  34/10 
35/11  35/13  3612  36/13  4313  47/12 
49/11 5011  50122 5411 57/19  59/23 
6012  60122  6114  6117  75/16  75/24 
79/19  8019  92/21  97/12  97/14  99/24 
10013  100/10  10112  10211 
sparsely [ 13  80112 
speak [4] 9/22  1015  9013  9214 
speaking [4] 21/11  55/17  80123 
91/25 
Spearfish [lo]  47/25  93/17  9415 
94/10  94/11  9516  9516  9518 95/11 
95/13 
special [l]  34/16 
specific [7] 3/21  519  12/12  2315 
7415  7416  8016 
specifically [2] 41/17  99/25 
speculation [ 11  3813 
speed [2] 3113  64/13 
spell [l] 9719 
spiral [l] 51/11 
spirit [l]  34/14 
spoiled [l]  8214 
spoke [l]  65/23 
sprayed [l] 98/21 
square [l]  59/25 
is [l]  10211 
itability [l]  37/10 
stable [l]  39/11 
staff [2] 2/13  13/19 
staffing [l]  85/22 
stagnant 123  32/13  32/14 
stagnate [ 13 99/19 
stamp [5] 2411  2412  24/25  36/21 
66/15 
stamps [5]  36/22  36/24  51/20 
56/14  7115 
stand [2] 2116  33/19 
standard [17]  3/13  9/23  9/23  1014 
10118  21/13  23/19  23/21  2419  24/20 
25/12  25/19  31/10  45/14  6515  65/12 
75/18 

standards 1141  19/17  2119  23/23 
2815  28/10  5814  5817  59/14  59/18 
6112  6116  6419  64/10  6518 
star [3] 4811  91/21  9313 
start 111  54/10 
starts [l]  5412 
state [12]  29/14  35/14  46/17  75/23 
88/13  88/14  94/22  97/11  97/12 
97/16  98/15  10211 
stated [3] 15/10  50118  9418 
statement [7] 814  10122  35/18 
42/13  53/19  55/10  89/18 
statements [SI  618  8/17  11/14 
28/24  10017 
states [18] 111 214  3/20  411  11/16 
2212  33/11  3418  35/12  36/15  43/18 
50122  57/14  6213  8017  85/20  87/18 
88/16 
statistics [ 11  57/10 
statues [l]  2/17 
status [2] 99/18  99/24 
statutory 111  319 
Stephanie [ 11  8817 
still [14]  18/10  21/12  23/12  2416 
32/14  3916  40113  4817  50119  5511 
5517  92/15  9811  98/10 

stock [l]  66/15 
stops [l]  5313 
stores [l]  36/23 
story 111  40119 
straits [l]  8618 
strategies [ 11 15/20 
stream [l]  64/21 
street [l5] 1/13  1/24  13/13  1515 
3614  3617  3619  37/14  4516  4518 
45/11  45/12  5819  58/25  95/17 

streets [l]  2/17 
stressed [l]  85/25 
stretch [2] 23/14  2415 
stretched 111  25/14 
stretching [l]  2214 
stripes [3] 86/13  86/15  86/17 
strong [l]  32/22 
structure [l]  74/16 
Studies [ 11  18/10 
study [4] 818  27/15  30113  48/10 
stuff [3] 5512  90111  9112 
subject [l]  517 
submit [3]  76/21  76/23  77/10 
submitted [3]  35/18  3818  7915 
subscribe [ 11  9419 
substantial [3]  10111  10116  40110 
substantially [ 13  5712 
Subtotal [l]  103119 
suburban [2] 49/16  68/24 
success [ 11 47/22 
such [12]  7/18  1118  13/14  13/21 
32/22  45/23  7919  8419  8617  86/12 
8715  94/22 
sudden [l]  2912 
suddenly [2] 8217  82/19 
sufficient [ 11  12/18 
suggested [2]  15/19  2612 
suit [l]  40112 
Suite [l]  10316 
summer [2]  912  101112 
Sunday [ 13  89/21 
superior [l] 91/24 
supervisor [4] 34/20  4319  43/12 
601  13 

iupervisors [3]  33/14  4314  52/12 
iupplement [ 11 42/10 
supplemented [ 11  36/21 
iupply 111  36/23 
support [2] 2/13  13/18 
supporting [2] 4/17  4/19 
sure [8] 34/13  5511  57/12  64/19 
7018  81/16  82/21  83/21 
surely [l]  9219 
surrounding [l]  49/13 
swear [SI  8/16  9/11  9/12  33/19 
33/20 
system [ 31 316  4619  59/13 
svstems rii 13/17 

r 
table [3]  1519  17/23  17/25 
tailored [l]  41/17 
take [25]  6/25  1011  10115  11/22 
21/12  24/22  2513  28/16  3019  39/22 
46/10  4916  54/13  56/12  61/18  64/15 
6716  7519  78/16  8412  84/19  84/20 
92/23  10113  101/11 
taken [5]  1/23  12/12  3017  78/21 
92/14 
takes [3] 2217  5413  71/14 
taking 131 719  2718  29/20 
talk [11]  25/16  2712  40123  61/10 
64/17  64/18  66/23  73/22  8814  8816 
96/12 
talked [2] 6312  7118 
talking [13]  22/15  23/12  23/16 
23/22  23/25  24/10  2517  30123 58/12 
63/16  6418  71/25  75/12 
task [l]  76/16 
team [ 2 ]  3/18  3514 
technical [2] 4/21  88/23 
telecom 111  77/10 
telecommunications [ 11 11/11 
telephone [ 11  10114 
television [l] 4214 
tell [l]  39/16 
teller [l]  3711 
temporary [2] 4319  60113 
ten [3] 15/18  36/12  6819 
ten-year [l]  15/18 
term [l] 37/10 
terminal [l]  61/15 
terminated [l] 5315 
terms [3] 3/21  29/23  59/12 
Terrific [ 11  8819 
territories [ 11  11/16 
test [l]  13/16 
testament [l]  2/19 
:estify [3]  38/10  53/10  8114 
:estimony [23]  6/18  718  812  816 
8/21  9/12  1113  1114  16/12  17/14 
26/23  32/20  33/20  3817  44/16  4917 
53/14  70125  7113  78/13  79/25  80117 
80118 
than [22]  815  15/21  19/15  23/21 
25/19  3614  36/10  36/21  36/25  43/24 
49/16  59/14  6012  6015  6618  68/23 
74/21  85/14  92/25  9316  9912  10014 
thank [74] 2/12  6/10  6/11  6/12  712 
716  717  9/10  9/16  10124  16/10  1611; 
18/17  2318  23/10  26/17  26/21  31/20 
32/19  32/25  3313  3316  33/18  42/19 
42/21  42/23  48/16  48/19  48/23 
48/24  4914  4915  53/10  53/13  56/10 



r 
:hank... 1391  57/23  6217  62/10 6417 
6917  70120  70123  7618  77/15  77/20 
78/12  78/13  79/18  79/22  80/16 
87/21  87/22  88/1  8819  88/11  89/14 
89/25  9117  93/14  93/15  9618  9619 
9714  9715  97/10  9813  9914  100/15 
100/16  100/17  100/21  101/14 
101/20  103124 
rhanks [2] 31/19  31/21 
:hat 14001 
:hat's [47] 313  1415  17/18  1911 
19/10  19/17  2215  22/11  24/15  26/19 
2715  27/24  30116  4611  48/24  5512 
56/22  57/23  60119  61/20  62/22 
64/23  6612  67/14  6915  6919  69/20 
7012  71/18  71/24  71/25  7217  7317 
75/16  7617  77/15  82/15  8312  85/23 
8711  8716 8818 9116  93/16  9816 
98/20  10117 
:heir [SS] 2/13  718  911  9/18  1817 
1817  20120  20/20  21/20  27/16  2914 
2918  3215  3218  32/11  40112  41/12 
43/14  46/19  4717  47/13  4811 4818 
49/23  50/20  50123  5116  5116  51/13 
51/17  53/20  6018  60124  61/18  61/20 
63/10  63/12  68/19  68/19  69/13  7311 
78/18  80124  80/25  81/21  81/22 
82/14  8317  85/22  89/5  90119  94/13 
94/20  94/23  9615  9617  9713  97/17 
them [24] 8/16  8/17  3319  35/24 
38/11  43/14  50/23  5316  53/23  55/22 
57/13  6519  66/25  7319  73/13  7518 
8115  82/17  82/18  84/20  84/25  90/25 
96/13  97/19 
themselves [ 11  53/21 
then [22] 8/18 1111 21/14  27/20 
56/11  68/12  7113  7118  71/12  71/14 
71/20  73/12  7419  74/11  7714  78/17 
79/15  84/25  87/13  89/21  95/10  9716 
there [44] 7/14  8/18  12/22  13/17 
1915  1915  2519  25/15  2611  3111 
31/12  311  12  3614  40124  49/25  50124 
5212  53/23 54/15 54/21 58/8 58/13 
58/21 6014 60114  60119  63/18  64/16 
65/15  66/18  6719~  68/11  7017  7019 
7116  71/15  71/21  7314  7413  7419 
84/13  84/23  85/19  95/16 
there's [30] 7/18  10118  16/20  1711 
20118  24/20  2514  2514  2615  27/19 
31/25 5411 54/22  5919  6011  63/16 
65/22  6619  69/20  69/23  73/13  74/11 
8516 85/17  8714  87/14  92/23  93/11 
95/15  9613 
rherefore [l]  79/13 
these [23] 814 8/20  37/24  4219 
49/24  52/20  5314  63/14  65/24  69/20 
75/25  76/11  7713 8018 89/11  92/13 
9313  96/14  96/16  96/20  9811  9815 
101/1 
they [lo61 
they'll [3]  7411  84/19  96/18 
they're [12] 1819  2514  61/19  6618 
7116  72/20  7611  7818  82/12  82/17 
8314  96/23 
they've [SI 21/23  7616  7711  77/12 
83/22 
thing [SI 22/13  58/20  61/25  7017 
7017  70119  83/11  8717 

hings [14]  19/25  2615  2715  75/14 
84/14  84/17  8711  8714  87/15  9015 
90/11  9113  9512  95/16 
hink [40] 1011  1714  1811  18/22 
20124  26/22  27/14  2916  2919  30115 
3112  5811  6216  62/13  62/22  6316 
64/17  64/23  6618  66/10  67/14  69/25 
7511  7512  75/15  77/18  7819  82/22 
83/23  8617  9014  9017  90/16  90/18 
9116  9215  94/16  9716  100/11  101/15 
:hinking [l]  2412 
:hird [SI 81/12  81/20  8211  8216 
82/11  82/16  8311  8315 
:hird-class [6] 81/12  81/20  8211 
8216  82/11  8311 
:his [96] 219  2/14  3/23  3/25 416 
4/23  5/12  5/24  5/25  6/16  6/22  6/23 
6/23  711  7/10  7/21  811  8/12  8/23 
8/25  912  912  1114  1116  11/20  1214 
1219  1312  1318  14/17  14/22 15/11 
15/16  17/17  1814  1912  19/20  2518 
2519  2711  27/13  2814  3012  3318 
34/15  39/13  41/22  42/12  42/23 
44/15  4618  46/10  48/17  4917  50/15 
5112  5117  51/10  53/11  5417  56/19 
61/18  61/24  6314  63/23  63/24  6415 
64/17  64/18  65/13  65/25  6716  69/22 
7017  70125  7112  73/15  74/19  80/19 
8514 86/18  86/24 8814 8918  89/18 
92/19  93/13  9416  95/18  99/14  99/2C 
100/9  10116  101114  101121  102/10 
:horough [l]  7011 
:hose [54] 2/23  11/17  13/17  1715 
22/21  25/15  2912  29/24  3019  32/10 
35/22  38/20  4016  41/23  45/13  46/15 
4812  50/25  54/16  54/18  54/20 5516 
57/11  58/15  58/17  59/21  60121 
64/10  65/10  6613  68/12  68/16  70/1€ 
7119  71/23  7219  7318  74/14  75/10 
75/13  76/21  76/22  76/22  7713  8012 
80112  84/17  84/24  86/15  9113  9315 
9614  97/24  100/12 
:hough [2] 21/11  37/25 
:hought [SI 2518  25/21  7112  7215 
81/15 
:houghtful [l]  53/13 
:houghts [SI 28/11  6611  81/18 
82/20  97/23 
:housand [2] 3217  72/17 
:housands [ 11  8911 
:hree [31] 815 10119  20122  21/12 
21/13  2212  23/16  23/20  2415  28/17 
35/15  36/14  4517  4812  59/14  59/18 
61/10  61/11  72/18  72/25  7417  74/12 
74/13  77/19  79/21  8012  8013  80/15 
8117  98/25  98/25 
:hree-day [9] 10119  20122  4517 
59/18  72/25  79/21  8012  8013  80/15 
:hree-digit [ 11  35/15 
:hreshold [l]  8016 
:hrough [18]  3213  35/16  35/16 
3611  37/22  49/20 5018 50/16  6314 
67/12  67/21  67/23  6812  7112 8518 
8717  93/20  9918 
:hroughout [5] 5/21  11/15  55/11 
85/20  91/16 
rhursday [7] 4519  5019  73/11 
73/12  73/19  7414 8015 
rhus [l]  91/16 
ridwell [l]  55/25 

tight [2] 13/22  81/8 
till [l]  93/25 
time [28] 5/13  718  719  12/18  13/14 
13/16  1618  16/10  24/15  2717  27/22 
28/20  28/25  29/11  38/24  41/19 
48/19  5311  5417  64/22  6717  6811 
6814  81/21  9216  9317  9813  101/10 

timely [4] 88/21  8913  90114  90121 
times [6] 517  25/10  4616 4818 6714 
981 1 

timing [l]  13/21 
today [25] 215  218  2/24  317  5/16 
7/10  7/17  816  8/15  3317  42/12  4311: 
53/17  54/22  5817  6218  6414  6716 
7913  79/16  81/14  87/25  92/25  93/24 
99/17 

today's [l]  2/15 
together [2] 1813  70111 
told [5] 5/14  21/23  21/23  8111 

Tolman [6] 33/12  42/20  4312  48/24 

tomorrow [l]  64/23 
Tony [2] 118  215 
too [9] 6/21  2217  77/16  81/10 
81/18  82/13  82/18  8313  86/16 

tool [l]  96/20 
top [4] 6118  61/12  95/18  9615 
TOPIC [l]  1/12 
topics [2] 88/23  100/19 
total [SI 38/25  3912  3916  3918  4613 
57/14  57/20  103121 

touch [l]  20116 
touched [l]  17/15 
tough [l]  2717 
tours [l]  43/10 
touted [l]  15/17 
towards [l]  52/25 
town [13]  6/14  6019  68/18  68/19 

87/23 

57/25  63/21 

71/10  71/11  71/14  71/14  71/20 
92/13  95/12  9711  9713 

towns [l]  4317 
track [l]  98/22 
tracking [3]  98/14  98/19  9917 
tradition [l]  88/20 
traditionally [ 11  39/20 
trailers [ 11  2911 
transactions [2] 3916  39/20 
transcribed [ 11  8/21 
transcriber [ 11  78/17 
transcript [l]  8/25 
transfer [2] 61/14  61/15 
transition [ 11  41/10 
transparency [ 11  3/14 
transportation [SI 54/24  61/16 
9413 

treasury [ 11  85/17 
treat [l]  8211 
trends [3] 38/19  38/20  39/11 
Tri [3]  88/13  88/14  94/22 
Tri-State [SI 88/13  88/14  94/22 
trip [l] 5014 
triple [l]  2913 
trips [l]  9713 
troublesome [ 11  12/20 
truck [l]  61/15 
trucking [l]  60115 
true [4] 45/14  50/20  65/16  10217 
truly 111  28/14 
trust [l]  5216 



T 
truth [4] 9/13  9/13  33/21  33/22 
try [6] 30/8  42/13  62/24  81/21 
85/25  97/3 
trying [3]  82/25  83/12  90/17 
Tuesday [7]  50/14 59/4 73/10 
73/12  73/19  74/4 80/5 
tuition [l] 99/19 
turn [6] 8/16  46/9  51/7  51/10  95/7 
95/10 
turnaround [2]  31/25  82/18 
turnout [ 11 7/18 
two [24] 8/15  18/3  20/22  21/13 
22/3  23/16  24/3  24/5  24/19  24/20 
25/18 45/8 52/16  54/12  59/3  73/20 
74/4  74/9  81/1  86/19  86/22  86/23 
98/5 98/6 
two-day [4] 24/3  24/20 45/8 59/3 
type [3]  57/16  70/19  96/25 
types [4] 20/24  39/24  69/21  75/13 
twicallv r i i  2014 

U 
U.S.P.S [ 11 87/19 
Uh [3]  10/23  17/13  65/18 
Uh-huh [3]  10/23  17/13  65/18 
unable 113 79/3 
uncommon [l] 30/8 
under [SI  6/3  15/1  36/7 56/4 56/5 
73/15 80/6 85/13 
understand [13] 37/7  40/5  40/23 
41/11  41/19  44/11  44/13  62/24 
63/19  64/1 64/6 67/11  79/7 
understanding [3]  15/12  21/22 
64/3 
unfortunately [2]  67/3  98/13 
unheard [l] 60/20 
union [3] 84/5 85/9 85/11 
unique [3]  60/20  65/24  67/25 
unit [3]  43/11  84/18  103/2 
UNITED [13] 1/1 2/4  3/20  411 
11/16  22/2  33/11  34/8  36/15  43/18 
62/2  85/20  87/18 
units [SI  37/2  37/18  54/16  54/18 
54/20  57/15  57/15  57/19 
universal [l] 3/12 
unless [2]  67/24  74/15 
until [lo] 20/16  30/2  45/10  45/11 
45/17  50/13  50/14  67/9  67/20  101/7 
up 1251  6/16  13/1  13/19  19/22 
22/14  23/11  26/13  28/17  29/2  33/1 
33/19  51/2  57/10  57/18  60/16  68/17 

87/2  87/17 
up-selling [l] 26/13 
upon [4] 38/1  41/11  63/22  65/25 
urban [SI  49/16  59/11 66/53 66/8 
66/11  69/15 
urge [2] 44/6 48/9 
us [31] 3/18  5/13  5/14  6/13  7/9 
7/16  17/24  19/4  19/19  21/21  21/23 
22/18  22/19  32/20  33/7  39/16  39/18 
48/18  48/25  51/22  51/23 54/5 56/8 
61/6  61/17  63/22  64/3  65/3  69/7 
79/16  101/18 
USA 113 60/9 
usage [l] 57/20 
use [19] 2/14  18/9  24/22  28/2  42/9 
46/9 58/17  66/21  68/14  68/17  70/12 
73/2  82/6  83/1  87/10  96/17  96/22 

7114  71/23  7217  7315  73/6  83/8 as/a 

96/23  98/13 
used [3]  66/22  83/13  94/13 
useful [5]  22/21  42/5  57/24  77/15 
77/24 
user [l] 41/14 
user-friendly [ 11 41/14 
users [l] 4/18 
uses [l] 93/22 
using [2]  58/7  82/11 
USPS.com [l] 41/15 
usually [3]  10/10  17/10  71/16 
utility [l] 11/11 
utilize r31 91/14  91/16  92/24 

W 
vacancies [l] 47/15 
vacancy [ 11 56/2 
vacant [l] 47/16 
valid [l] 66/2 
value [ll] 12/16  14/2  14/23  26/25 
26/25  27/13  27/24 46/8 58/14  58/19 
63/16 
variety [l] 88/22 
various [2]  20/23  25/10 
versus [6] 15/5  25/3  59/20  75/7 
82/15  94/21 
very [42] 6/15  6/25  7/17  15/6 
17/20  18/16  18/18  19/4  19/4  20/18 
22/11  26/11  32/19  32/20  49/14 
53/11  53/14  53/16  57/23  60/23  61/7 
61/10  62/10  62/23  63/9 69/9 71/10 
73/3  77/12  77/15  77/24  82/18  88/1 
88/11  90/16  92/12  93/13  93/14 
94/14  95/19  96/7  101/14 
viable [3]  18/6  43/23  98/1 
vibrant [l] 46/11 
vice [9] 1/8  2/5 6/9 9/7  23/9  34/5 
37/4  49/3  70/22 
vice-president [ 11 9/7 
view [3]  4/22  13/2  66/3 
views [5]  4/19 11/5 43/16  48/20 
64/ 1 
violate [ 13 85/11 
visit [2]  7/13  34/12 
visiting [l] 43/13 
vital [2]  6/1  12/1 
vitally [ 11 6/20 
volume [9] 5/23  38/18  38/24  39/2 
39/24  43/25  46/3  83/7  84/12 
volumes [6] 4/10  13/1  13/20  15/18 
28/20  32/1 
volunteer 111 7516 

w 
W-o-b-i-g [l] 90/2 
wage [l] 100/4 
wages [3]  99/18  99/25  100/3 
wait [3]  50113  74/2  93/25 
waiting [2]  13/25  53/2 
Wal [I] 51/12 
Wal-Mart [l] 51/12 
want [19] 6/7  7/7  7/20  23/23  24/6 
24/7  41/1  56/18  60/25  63/12  63/21 
65/9 81/10 88/4 90/5 90/6 92/21 
95/21  100/17 
wanted [3]  19/1  62/21  89/23 
was [39] 5/7  6/16  7/15  20/17  21/1f 
22/8  22/9  23/2  23/4  26/1  26/2  44/2( 
47/5 48/5 54/22  58/2 58/8 58/21 
59/25  60/13  60/16  60/16  60/19 
60/20  62/6  62/7  64/13  70/13  72/2 

72/2  72/4  76/16  77/8  79/2  87/23 
90/24  91/24  94/25  97/5 
WASHINGTON [6] 1/3  5/2  38/11 
101/4  101/17  103/7 
Nasn't [2]  20/16  64/12 
Nay [12] 21/25  39/18 46/4 60/15 
73/13  73/23  74/12  74/13  90/15 
90/18  92/13  96/3 
Nays [6] 22/4  25/6  39/23  51/6 
51/15 52/2 
inre [164] 
inre'd [6] 23/1  23/6  26/6  33/4 65/9 
81/4 
we'll [ill 8/15  10/25 11/1 23/7 
25/3  30/4  55/14  78/14  78/17  80/24 

Ne're [41] 7/16  22/22  24/11  24/11 
24/14  24/17  24/24  25/2  25/5  29/16 
30/23  61/8  61/11  61/14  61/15 65/5 
67/11  75/12  75/22  76/20  76/25 
78/10  81/7  81/12  81/15  82/5  82/9 
82/16  82/25  83/6  83/8  83/8  83/9 
83/18  84/10  85/25  86/7  92/12  97/1 
97/6  98/1 
Ne've 1111 6/24  12/12  38/23  73/3 
77/18  77/24  78/7  81/20  82/3  82/10 
98/5 
inreather [l] 67/25 
Webinars [SI  76/17  76/21  76/22 
76/24  77/3 
inrebsite [2]  41/15  100/23 
Wednesday [SI 45/6 73/10  73/16 
73/17 80/4 
Meek [16] 45/16  51/9  51/14  55/3 
66/16  72/18  72/20  74/4  74/8  74/9 
74/25  76/19  81/16  87/14  94/1  97/19 
Neekend [ 2 ]  27/17 31/9 
Meekends [2]  12/22  12/25 
Nelcome [4] 2/8  32/24  33/9  34/9 
Nell [29] 7/8  8/10  9/23  11/7  17/12 
18/17  19/11  21/16  22/3  23/4  23/25 
26/6  30116  34/19  35/13  37/16  56/22 
61/7  61/10  61/20  68/18  70/11  73/1 
74/19  81/5 86/9 92/21  100/17  101/5 
Nent [3]  32/6  71/20  86/20 
Mere [20]  7/14  17/4  19/24  22/3 
22/15  22/16  23/12  23/13  24/1  28/5 
43/24 55/9 58/9 58/23 64/8 76/14 
77/4  92/3  92/14  99/16 
Neren't [l] 78/24 
Nest [2]  83/16  84/1 
Nestern [6] 16/21  42/8  47/12 
59/23 80/8 81/11 
Nhat 1461 5/16  11/6  11/7  17/15 
18/9  20/4  21/22  21/24  22/3  23/15 
23/18  24/9  24/16  25/16  26/2  30/23 
40/5 40/7 48/6 51/25  54/8  54/21 
5714  57/9  6017  61/16  62/18  63/15 
66/3  68/19  68/21 69/5 69/7 71/18 
71/25  73/18  73/23  74/23  76/7  77/7 
78/22  80/21  81/19  83/19  91/6  98/23 
Nhat's [5]  32/2  67/3  75/18  76/18 
82/4 
Nhatever [4] 24/21 65/8 95/21 
96/6 
Nhatnot [Z]  98/14  99/1 
Nheels [SI  66/13  66/23  67/1  70/12 
7  1/6 
Nhen [40] 20/9  21/16  22/22  23/12 
31/18  40/6  41/6  41/19  42/7  48/5 

101/9 

http://USPS.com


W 
Nhen... 1301 5016 51/12 52/21 5915 
60112  6318 64/14  64/17  64/20 6615 
66/23  67/19 7118  7513 81/14  83/25 

91/19 93/23 95/25  96/14  97/17 
100113  10118  101118 
Nhenever [l] 69/20 
where [25] 1913~ 19/25 20114  2215 
25/18 27/13 27/24 2917  30117 41/24 
5419 54/13 63/16 63/20 69/11 72/16 
75/10 7611 76/17 83/21 84/19 8714 
87/12  95/18  99/15 
whereas [4] 23/18 2414 86/23 
95/22 
wherever [l] 47/18 
whether [SI 2017  20112 54/24 6113 
64/15 65/15 7817 97/19 
which [17] 17/15 25/14 4715 51/10 
57/17 5811  6114 68/24  72/24 73/14 
76/10  83/16  83/19 85/15 8616 91/19 
9917 
while [5] 6/14 16/19 76/25 7912 
85/21 
whistles [l] 2619 
who [31] 3/18 813 25/15 33/10 
33/12 33/15 3.513  3819  4916  5112 
5412 54/19 58/23 59/22 60121 6217 
68/12 7119  7214 72/13 73/16 7413 
74/10 74/21 7816  7817 78/24 79/20 
80114  80122 8814 
who'd [l] 8116 
who's [l] 10111 
whoever [l] 77/10 
whole [Z] 55/20 101/10 
why [SI 1911 3717 44/25  61/20 
75/16 83/24  95/23  95/24 
wide [l] 100118 
widen [l] 99/23 
widespread [l] 4/22 
will [96] 4/23 4/23 514 5/16 816 819 
8/16 8/18  8/22  8/24 1016  1114  1116 
1215 12/15 12/22 1311 1319 13/13 
13/14 13/16 13/17 13/19 13/20 
15/10 15/20 22/20 27/10 27/21 2919 
29/10 30112  30115 31/12 31/16 3319 
35/22 35/23 37/18 37/20 37/21 3813 
4011 4016 4017  4019  40112  40115 
4113 41/21 41/22 4211 4212  4218 
42/15  44/14  45/19 4618 46/21 46/24 
4712 48/21 49/23 5017  5115 54/13 
54/14 54/18 54/20 54/23 5512 55/12 
58/11 58/18 62/19 63/25 6411 6415 
65/14 68/11 7017 74/17 76/22 84/25 
85/10 85/12 86/16 86/17 86/24 
87/12 87/19 89/19 89/20 10112 
101/11 101117 
willing [l] 5613 
willingly [l] 85/11 
willingness [l] 8/11 
window [2] 37/19 43/11 
wings [l] 1411 
winter [l] 86/20 
winters [ 11 97/14 
wish [l] 80117 
within [3] 64/22  68/10 70111 
without 171 19/17 23/23 28/17 5012 
50112 74/15 97/24 
witness [2] 33/15 79/15 

8514 85/23 86/18 8814  90123  9012s 

witnesses [SI 713  717 816 8/15 
9/17 3315  3412  3819 
witnesses' [Z] 8/11  8/21 
Nobig [l] 90/1 
won't [2] 6414  8615 
wonder [ 11 5112 
wondering [I] 7012 
wonders [ 11 44/25 
word [3] 1817 34/12 4216 
words [I] 44/23 
work [17] 318  2417 2611 3512  4211: 
52/25 61/18 6212 6419 70111 7816 
81/11 8416 85/25 8611 9111 9611 
worked [I] 5311 
workers [2] 8415 95/23 
workforce [ 11 4411 
Working [6] 8318  8319 98/10 99/11 
99/16 10013 
world's [ 11 5/22 
Norse [l] 13/22 
Norst [l] 2413 
would [99] 9/11 10120  1417  1517 
15/12 1714  1715  1717  1812 19/18 
19/19 2011 22/19 22/21 22/24 2418 
25/17 2617 26/10 26/11 2711 2816 
28/13 2916  3113  3115 37/12 37/15 
44/22  44/25 4514  4517  4519 45/11 
45/13 45/15 4614  4616 46/18 4716 
4914 49/15 5013  5019 50/19 50124 
51/10 51/24 51/25 51/25 5218  5315 
5316 54/15 5511 5517 55/24 5613 
5617  5618 5711 57/11 57/17 58/5 
58/14 58/25 59/4 59/5 60114  60117 
6218 66/17 66/25 67/13 67/21 67/24 

71/21 73/15 73/17 7617 79/12 80/2C 
8114 88/25 89/12 9018 90/19 94/20 
94/23 97/23 99/13 100/6 100/12 
NOUldn't [4] 9/21 2614  2618  8313 
Nritten [Z] 35/18 80118 
Nrong [2] 24/15 46/10 

NWW.PRC.GOV [ 1) 100124 
Nvomina r21 60115  80110 

68/12  68/13  68/16 68/17 6916  7016 

Nww.data.gov [I] 57/22 

Y 
feah 161 30121 5712 57/12 6916 
72/24  74/18 
fear [13] 3/25 5/24 15/18 18/21 
37/24 3813 38/22 39/13 47/18 7212 
86/19 98/9 10012 
fears [18] 10112 1211 3916  4316 
44/24 4612 46/15 47/10  49/10 5211 
52/25 5312 71/17 86/22 86/23 88/16 
94/13 97/25 
fep [ 11 74/11 
res [23] 9/14 9/15 16/19 1717 
17/11 1919 19/12 2118  2714  3117 
31/12 32/15 33/23 33/24 33/25 
55/13 55/21 56/15 72/15 7415  7617 
7715 92/16 
festerday [l] 7/13 
festerday's [ 1) 40118 
(et [4] 2019  20122 82/17  94/18 
field [l] 5919 
fork [2] 1/24 10316 
fou [253] 
fou'd [4] 17/16 22/18 6915 98/23 
fou'll [l] 40118 
fou're [25] 9/12  11/19 1718 17/25 

23/15 23/24 2412  2413  2419  2517 
32/24 33/20 34/13 63/15 63/20 
67/18 71/25 7819  8614  8614 86/22 
86/23 92/16 9313 98/24 
rou've [SI 30122 48/25 5814 77/23 
83/11 92/10 9513 97/20 
rounger [l] 96/24 
lour 1611 10122 16/12 16/14 16/16 
16/24  17/14 19/14 22/19 26/23 
26/23 26/24 3111 31/23 3211 3212 
3213 32/19 3313 34/12 36/16 42/13 
48/16 48/19 48/21 53/13 53/15 
53/15 53/18 55/5 55/20 56/11 56/16 
5719 5811  6211 6212 62/14 6415 
64/24 68/22 7113 72/10  72/12 7615 
77/20 78/13 8312 87/12  87/14 8811 
9311  9312 93/10  96/24 9813 98/21 
98/22 100114  100122  100122  101116 

L 
:ip [l] 35/15 


